SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
300 Lakeside Drive, P. O. Box 12688, Oakland, CA 94604-2688

BOARD MEETING AGENDA
February 22,2018
9:00 a.m.

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors will be held at 9:00 a.m. on Thursday, February 22, 2018,
in the BART Board Room, Kaiser Center 20" Street Mall — Third Floor, 344 — 20 Street, Oakland,
California.

Members of the public may address the Board of Directors regarding any matter on this agenda.
Please complete a “Request to Address the Board” form (available at the entrance to the Board Room)
and hand it to the Secretary before the item is considered by the Board. If you wish to discuss a matter
that is not on the agenda during a regular meeting, you may do so under Public Comment.

' Any action requiring more than a majority vote for passage will be so noted.

Items placed under “consent calendar” are considered routine and will be received, enacted, approved,
or adopted by one motion unless a request for removal for discussion or explanation is received from a
Director or from a member of the audience.

Please refrain from wearing scented products (perfume, cologne, after-shave, etc.) to these meetings, as
there may be people in attendance susceptible to environmental illnesses.

BART provides service/accommodations upon request to persons with disabilities and individuals who
are limited English proficient who wish to address BART Board matters. A request must be made
within one and five days in advance of Board meetings, depending on the service requested. Please
contact the Office of the District Secretary at 510-464-6083 for information.

Rules governing the participation of the public at meetings of the Board of Directors and Standing
Committees are available for review on the District's website (http://www.bart.gov/about/bod), in the
BART Board Room, and upon request, in person or via mail.

Meeting notices and agendas are available for review on the District's website
(http://www.bart.gov/about/bod/meetings.aspx), and via email ,
(hitps://public.govdelivery.com/accounts/CATRANBART/subscriber/new?topic_id=CATRANBART _
1904) or via regular mail upon request submitted to the District Secretary. Complete agenda packets
(in PDF format) are available for review on the District's website no later than 48 hours in advance of
the meeting. ‘ :

Please submit your requests to the District Secretary via email to BoardofDirectors@bart.gov; in
person or U.S. mail at 300 Lakeside Drive, 23" Floor, Oakland, CA 94612; fax 510-464-601 1;or
telephone 510-464-6083.

Kenneth A. Duron
District Secretary



Regular Meeting of the
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The purpose of the Board Meeting is to consider and take such action as the Board may desire

in connection with:

1.

CALL TO ORDER

A. Roll Call.

B. Pledge of Allegiance.

C. Introduction of Special Guests.

2. CONSENT CALENDAR

A. Approval of Minutes of the Meetings of January 25, 2018, and February 8
and 9, 2018.* Board requested to authorize. _

B. Award of Invitation for Bid No. 9034, F1berglass Walkway * Board
requested to authorize.

C. 2018 Organization of Committees and Special Appointments Revision.* -
Board requested to authorize.

3. PUBLIC COMMENT - 15 Minutes

(An opportunity for members of the public to address the Board of Directors on matters under
their jurisdiction and not on the agenda. An additional period for Public Comment is provided at
the end of the Meeting.)

4. ADMINISTRATION ITEMS

Director Allen, Chairperson
NO ITEMS.

5. ENGINEERING AND OPERATIONS ITEMS

Director Simon, Chairperson

A. Award of Contract No. 15CQ-200A, Rail Procurement * Board requested
to authorize.

B. Change Order to Contract No. 01RQ-110, Construction of Hayward
- Maintenance Complex Project Maintenance Facilities, with Clark
Construction, for Car Lift Rail Modifications to the Hayward Shop
Shallow Pit Car Lifts (C.O. No. 235).* Board requested to authorize.

C. Santa Clara County BART Extension: Update on Phase I and Phase II.*
For information.

D. BART Police Citizen Oversight Model Evaluation Report.* For
information.

E. Quarterly Performance Report, Second Quarter Fiscal Year 2018 - Service
Performance Review .* For information.

* Atteichment available : 20f4



6. PLANNING, PUBLIC AFFAIRS, ACCESS. AND LEGISLATION ITEMS
Director Blalock, Chairperson

A. Dublin/Pleasanton Station Hybrid Parking Update.* For information.

7. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT

A. Report of Activities, including Updates of Operational, Administrative,
and Roll Call for Introductions Items.

8. BOARD MATTERS

A. Board Member Reports.
(Board member reports as required by Government Code Section 53232.3(d) are
available through the Office of the District Secretary. An opportunity for Board
members to report on their District activities and observations since last Board Meeting.)

B. Roll Call for Introductions.
(An opportunity for Board members to introduce a matter for consideration at a future
Committee or Board Meeting or to request District staff to prepare items or reports.)

C. In Memoriam.
(An opportunity for Board members to introduce individuals to be commemorated.)

9. PUBLIC COMMENT
(An opportunity for members of the public to address the Boatd of Directors on matters under their
jurisdiction and not on the agenda.)

10. CLOSED SESSION (Room 303, Board Conference Room)

A. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE EMPLOYMENT / APPOINTMENT
Title: District Secretary/Interim District Secretary
Gov’t. Code Section: 54957(b)(1)

B. CONFERENCE WITH NEGOTIATORS
Designated Representatives: Directors Keller, Raburn, and Simon
Title: District Secretary/Interim District Secretary
Gov’t. Code Section: 54957.6 '

* Attachment available 30f4



C. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS:

Designated representatives: Grace Crunican, General Manager; Michael Jones, Assistant
General Manager, Employee Relations; and Martin Gran, Chief
Employee Relations Officer

Employee Organizations: (1) Amalgamated Transit Union, Local 1555;
(2) American Federation of State, County and Municipal

Employees, Local 3993;
(3) BART Police Officers Association;
(4) BART Police Managers Association;
(5) Service Employees International Union, Local 1021; and
(6) Service Employees International Union, Local 1021,
- BART Professional Chapter
‘ (7) Unrepresented employees (Positions: all)
Government Code Section:  54957.6

11. OPEN SESSION

A. Compensation and Benefits for Interim District Secretary. Board
requested to authorize.

* Attachment available 4 0of 4



DRAFT

SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

300 Lakeside Drive, P.O. Box 12688, Oakland, CA 94604-2688

Board of Directors
Minutes of the 1,806th Meeting
January 25,2018

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors was held January 25, 2018, convening at 9:01 a.m.
in the Board Room, 344 20™ Street, Oakland, California. President Raburn presided; Kenneth A.
Duron, District Secretary.

Directors present:

Absent:

Directors Allen, Blalock, McPartland, Saltzman, Simon, and Raburn.

None. Directors Dufty, Josefowitz, and Keller entered the Meeting later.

Director Keller entered the Meeting.

Consent Calendar items brought before the Board were:

1.

2.

Approval of Minutes of the Meeting of January 11, 2018.

Resolution Accepting Caltrans Adaptation Planning Grant Funds for the
BART Sea Level Rise and Flooding Resiliency Study.

Change Order to Contract No. 79HM-120, SFTS MB, with Manson
Construction Company, Inc., for Revised Cathodic Protection System
(C.0. No. 31).

Director Allen made the following motion§ as a unit. Director Blalock seconded the motions,
which carried by unanimous acclamation. Ayes — 7: Directors Allen, Blalock, Keller,
McPartland, Saltzman, Simon, and Raburn. Noes - 0. Absent —2: Directors Dufty and

Josefowitz.

That the Minutes of the Meeting of January 25, 2018, be approved.

Adoption of Resolution No. 5366, In the Matter of Accepting Fiscal Year
2017-2018 Adaptation Planning Grant from the California Department of
Transportation (Caltrans).

That the General Manager be authorized to execute Change Order No. 31,
Revised Cathodic Protection System, for a credit to the District of not less
than $1.00, for Contract No. 79HM-120, SFTS MB, with Manson
Construction Company, Inc.

President Raburn called for Public Comment.

Clarence Fischer addressed the Board.



DRAFT

Director Dufty enteréd the Meeting.

Darrel Carey addressed the Board.

Director Josefowitz entered the Meeting.

The following individuals addressed the Board.

Michael Bernick
Lock Holmes

Director Allen, Chairperson of the Administration Committee, brought the matter of Magnetic
Stripe Ticket Surcharge Waiver for Transit Operators before the Board. Mr. Bob Franklin,
Department Manager, Customer Access, presented the item. The item was discussed. Director
Josefowitz moved that the General Manager be authorized to waive the $0.50 per trip magnetic
stripe ticket surcharge for tickets purchased by County Connection, if the use of Clipper® is an
infeasible option, if the trip is for official transit purposes only, until December 31, 2018, and
that staff report back to the Board on the status of County Connection’s progress toward
transitioning to Clipper. Director Keller seconded the motion. Director Blalock noted that Aleta
Dupree had submitted public comments on the item. The motion carried by unanimous
electronic vote. Ayes —9: Directors Allen, Blalock, Dufty, Josefowitz, Keller, McPartland,
Saltzman, Simon, and Raburn. Noes — 0.

Director Simon, Chairperson of the Engineering and Opetrations Committee, brought the matter
of Change Orders to Contract No. 01RQ-110, Construction of Hayward Maintenance Complex
Project Maintenance Facilities, with Clark Construction: Maintain Run-Around Track Capability
(C.O. No. 74), before the Board. Mr. Thomas Horton, Group Manager, Hayward Maintenance
Complex, presented the item. The item was discussed. Director Saltzman moved that the
General Manager be authorized to execute Change Order No. 74, Maintain Run-Around Track
Capabilities, to Contract No. 01RQ-110, Hayward Maintenance Complex Project Maintenance
Facilities, with Clark Construction, for an amount not to exceed $1,551,000.00. Director Blalock
seconded the motion, which carried by unanimous electronic vote. Ayes —9: Directors Allen,
Blalock, Dufty, Josefowitz, Keller, McPartland, Saltzman, Simon, and Raburn. Noes — 0.

Director Simon brought the matter of Change Orders to Contract No. 01RQ-110, Construction of
Hayward Maintenance Complex Project Maintenance Facilities, with Clark Construction:
Additional Cabling and Technology Systems Modifications (C.O. No. 108), before the Board.
Mr. Horton presented the item. Director McPartland moved that the General Manager be
authorized to execute Change Order No. 108, for Additional Cabling and Technology Systems
Modifications for Intermediate Distribution Frame/Main Distribution Frame (IDF/MDF) Room,
to Contract No. 01RQ-110, Hayward Maintenance Complex Project Maintenance Facilities, with
Clark Construction, for an amount not to exceed $419,000.00. Director Blalock seconded the
motion, which carried by unanimous acclamation. Ayes—9: Directors Allen, Blalock, Dufty, .
Josefowitz, Keller, McPartland, Saltzman, Simon, and Raburn. Noes — 0.

Director Simon brought the matter of Change Order to Contract No. 79HM-120, SFTS MB, with

Manson Construction Company, Inc., for Marine Barrier Additional Steel Framing and Welding
(C.0. No. 80), before the Board. Mr. Horton presented the item. Director McPartland moved

2-



DRAFT

that the General Manager be authorized to execute Change Order No. 80, MB Design Growth, in
an amount not to exceed $3,300,000.00, for Contract No. 79HM-120, SFTS MB, with Manson
Construction Company, Inc. Director Blalock seconded the motion, which carried by unanimous
acclamation. Ayes —9: Directors Allen, Blalock, Dufty, Josefowitz, Keller, McPartland,
Saltzman, Simon, and Raburn. Noes — 0. .

Director Simon brought the matter of Upper M-Line Traction Study before the Board. Mr. Paul
Oversier, Assistant General Manager, Operations; Mr. Duncan Watry, Principal Planner;

Mr. Steve Sims, Project Manager; and Mr. Tim Chan, Manager of Planning, presented the item.
The item was discussed.

Director Simon brought the matter of Santa Clara County BART Extension: Update on Phase I
and Phase II, before the Board. Mr. Oversier; Ms. Bernadette Lambert, Project Manager; and
Mr. Robert Mitroff, Chief Planning and Development Officer, presented the item. The item was
discussed.

Director Blalock, Chairperson of the Planning, Public Affairs, Access, and Legislation
Committee, brought the matter of Execution of Agreement with Contra Costa Transportation
Authority for Design Completion of the Mokelumne Intermodal Trail Bridge, Brentwood, before
the Board. Ms. Rachel Russell, Senior Planner, presented the item. The item was discussed.
Director Keller moved that the General Manager or her designee be authorized to execute an
agreement with Contra Costa Transportation Authority (CCTA) providing for BART to
reimburse CCTA in an amount of $200,000.00 for work associated with completion of the design
of the Mokelumne Trail Overcrossing. Director Saltzman seconded the motion, which carried by
unanimous acclamation. Ayes —9: Directors Allen, Blalock, Dufty, Josefowitz, Keller,
McPartland, Saltzman, Simon, and Raburn. Noes — 0.

Directory Blalock brought the matter of BART Parking Program Update before the Board.
Mr. Franklin presented the item. The item was discussed.

President Raburn called for the General Manager’s Report.

General Manager Grace Crunican and Mr. Oversier reported on the debut of the Fleet of the
Future train cars. The report was discussed.

Ms. Crunican reported on steps she had taken and activities and meetings she had partlclpated in,
ridership, upcoming events, and outstandlng Roll Call for Introductions items, noting on-going
discussions regarding a regional means-based fare program and Clipper card utilization.

President Raburn called for the Quarterly Report of the Controller/Treasurer for the Period
Ending September 30, 2017. Ms. Rose Poblete, Controller/Treasurer, presented the Report.

President Raburn called for Quarterly Report of the Independent Police Auditor. Mr. Russell
Bloom, Independent Police Auditor, presented the Report. The Report was discussed.

President Raburn called for Board Member Reports, Roll Call for Introductions, and In
Memoriam.



DRAFT

Director Allen repbrted she had attended the Contra Costa Mayors’ Conference, given a
presentation to the Asian Pacific Islanders American Public Affairs group, attended the opening
of the Pleasant Hill Bike Hub bike station, a Contra Costa Transportation Committee meeting,
the TriValley-San Joaquin Valley Regional Rail Authority meeting, and the Fleet of the Future
ribbon cutting ceremony.

Director Josefowitz requested an update on the status of ACE upgrades.

Director Blalock reported he had attended the South Bay Engineers Club meeting in Pleasanton.

Director Simon reported she had attended the Contra Costa Mayors’ Conference and several
meetings with West Oakland community groups regarding development in that area.

Director Dufty reported he had attended a LEAD SF policy committee ineeting, and thanked the
District Secretary for the profound impact his integrity and hard work had had on the District.

President Raburn reported he had participated in the bike station dedication at Pleasant Hill /
Contra Costa Centre Station and the Fleet of the Future ceremony, and attended the Women’s
March in Oakland. '

President Raburn called for Public Comment.

Jerry Grace addressed the Board.

" The Meeting was adjourned at 1:10 p.m.

Kenneth A. Duron
District Secretary



DRAFT

SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
300 Lakeside Drive, P.O. Box 12688, Oakland, CA 94604-2638

Board of Directors
Minutes of the 1,807th Meeting
February 8 and 9, 2018

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors was held February 8 and 9, 2018. The Meeting was
a Board Workshop. The first session, convening at 8:48 a.m. in the Renaissance Room,
Renaissance ClubSport, 2805 Jones Road, Walnut Creek, California. President Raburn presided;
Kenneth A. Duron, District Secretary.

Directors present: Directors Allen, Blalock, Dufty, Josefowitz, Keller, McPartland,
Saltzman, Simon, and Raburn. .

“Absent:  None.
President Raburn called for Public Comment.
Robert S. Allen addressed the Board.
The Workshop was held.
General Manager Grace Crunican; Ms. Kerry Hamill, Assistant General Manager, External
Affairs; and Mr. Carl Holmes, Assistant General Manager, Planning, Development, and

Construction, gave an overview of the workshop and of the District’s accomplishments during
Fiscal Year 2017.

Ms. Abigail Thorne-Lyman, Manager of Planning; Ms. Ellen Smith, Department Manager,
Strategic Planning; and Mr. Aaron Weinstein, Department Manager, Marketing and Research,
gave a presentation on 2018 Context, including segments on State of the Region, Strategic Plan,
and Ridership Trends and Challenges. The presentation was discussed.

The Board Meeting recessed at 9:58 a.m.

The Board Meeting reconvened at 10:15 a.m.

Directors present: Directors Allen, Blalock, Dufty, Josefowitz, Keller, McPartland, Simon,
Saltzman, and Raburn.

Absent:  None.
Ms. Pamela Herhold, Acting Assistant General Manager, Administration and Budgets;

Mr. Dennis Markham, Division Manager, Financial Planning, gave a presentation on Financial
Outlook — Long Range Forecast. The presentation was discussed.

-1-



DRAFT
Mr. Michael Jones, Assistant General Manager, Human Resources, and Ms. Mary Beth Redding,
Bartels and Associates, gave a presentation on Financial Outlook — Pension Funding Strategies.
The presentation was discussed.

Gena Alexander addressed the Board.

The Board Meeting recessed at 12:03 p.m.

The Board Meeting reconvened at 12:32 p.m.

Directors present: Directors Blalock, Dufty, Josefowitz, Keller, McPartland, Saltzman, and
Raburn.

Absent:  Director Simon.
Julia Liou addressed the Board.
Director Allen entered the Meeting.
Mr. Sean Brooks, Department Manager, Real Estate and Property Development; Mr. Weinstein, ;
and Mr. Ravi Misra, Chief Information Officer, gave a presentation on Non-Passenger Revenue
Opportunities, including segments on Transit Oriented Development, Advertising, and BART

Digital Railway and Strategy. The presentation was discussed.

Mr. Robert Powers, Deputy General Manager; Ms. Angela Borchardt, Research Project

. Supervisor; Mr. Tim Chan, Manager of Planning; Chief of Police, Carlos Rojas;

and Ms. Jennifer Easton, Art Program Manager, gave a presentation on Rider and Public
Experience, including segments on Quality of Life on BART — Customer Feedback, and Quality
of Life Initiatives — Impact of Homelessness on Riders and System; Partnerships for Public
Safety; BART Police Department Recruitment, Hiring Efforts, and Patrol Deployment Study;
and Public Conduct Campaign. The presentations were discussed.

Jerry Grace addressed the Board.

The Board Meeting recessed at 2:45 p.m.

The Board Meeting reconvened at 3:02 p.m.

Directors present: Directors Allen, Blalock, Dufty, Josefowitz, Keller, McPartland;
Saltzman, and Raburn.

Absent: Director Simon.



DRAFT

Mr. Paul Oversier, Assistant General Manager, Operations; and Ms. Tamar Allen, Chief
Maintenance and Engineering Officer, continued the presentation on Rider and Public
Experience — Quality of Life Initiatives, including a segment on Station Cleaning Programs.
John Arantes addressed the Board.

The Station Cleaning Programs segment was discussed.

Mr. Oversier; Mr. John MéCormick, Dep'artment Manager, Operations Planning and Support;
and Deputy Chief of Police Lance Haight continued the presentation of Rider and Public
Experience — Quality of Life Initiatives, including a segment on Fare Evasion.

Jerry Grace addressed the Board.

The Fare Evasion presentation was discussed.

Mr. Oversier gave a presentation on Riders and Public Experience — Service Reliability. The
presentation was discussed.

President Raburn called for Public Comment. No comments were received.

President Raburn announced that the Board would enter into closed session in the Board Room,
Renaissance ClubSport, under Item 5-A (Public Employee Employment/Appointment), Item 5-B
(Conference with Negotiators), and 5-C (Public Employee Performance Evaluation) of the
Meeting agenda, and that the Board would reconvene in open session at the conclusion of the
closed session.

The Board Meeting recessed at 4:38 p.m;

The Board Meeting reconvened in closed session at 4:53 p.m.

Directors present: Directors Allen, Blalock, Dufty, Josefowitz, Keller, McPartland,
Saltzman, and Raburn.

Absent: Director Simoh.

The Board Meeting recessed at 5:10 p.m.

The Board Meeting reconvened in closed session at 5:25 p.m.

Directors present: Directors Allen, Blalock, Dufty, Josefowitz, Keller, McPartland,
Saltzman, and Raburn.

Absent: Director Simon.



DRAFT

The Board Meeting recessed at 6:38 p.m.

The Board Meeting reconvened in open session at 6:39 p.m.
Directors present: Director Raburn.

Absent:  Directors Allen, Blalock, Dufty, Josefowitz, Keller, McPartland,
Saltzman, and Simon.

President Raburn announced that the Board had concluded its closed session and there were no
announcements to be made.

The Board Meeting adjourned at 6:39 p.m.

The Board Meeting reconvened on February 9, 2018, at 8:36 a.m., in the Renaissance Room,
Renaissance ClubSport, 2805 Jones Road, Walnut Creek, Cahforma President Raburn presided,
Kenneth A. Duron, District Secretary.

Directors present: Directors Allen, Blalock, McPartland, Saltzman, and Raburn.

Absent: Director Simon. Directors Dufty, Josefowitz, and Keller entered the
Meeting later.

President Raburn called for Public Comment. No comments were received.

Director Keller entered the Meeting.

Mr. Holmes; Mr. Jones; Ms. Hamill; Mr. Maceo Wiggins, Acting Department Manager, Office
of Civil Rights; Ms. Allen; and Mr. Robert Mitroff, Chief Planning and Development Officer,
gave a presentation on the BART Safety, Reliability, and Traffic Relief Program (Measure RR)
Update.

Director Dufty entered the Meeting.

The presentation was discussed.

Director Josefowitz entered the Meeting.

Discussion continued.

The Board Meeting recessed at 9:42 a.m.



DRAFT

The Board Meeting reconvened at 9:54 a.m.

Directors present: Directors Allen, Blalock, Dufty, Josefowitz, Keller, McPartland,
Saltzman, and Raburn.

Absent:  Director Simon.
President Raburn introduced and welcomed former Board member Gail Murray.

Mr. Oversier gave a presentation on Major Projebts - Passenger Rail Service, Operations, and
Rail Yard Management. The presentation was discussed.

The following individuals addressed the Board.
Robert S. Allen

Bob Vinn

Randall Glock

Mr. Powers and Mr. Mitroff gave a presentation on Major Projects — BART Extension to Silicon
Valley. The presentation was discussed.

Jetry Grace addressed the Board.

Mr. Thomas Dunscombe, Group Manager, Capital Projects, gavé a presentation on Major
Projects - Communications Based Train Control. The presentation was discussed.

Ms. Smith and Mr. David Kutrosky, Managing Director, Capitol Comdor gave a presentation on
Major Projects — Second Transbay Crossing.

The Board Meetmg recessed at12:11 p.m.

The Board Meeting reconvened at 12:26 p.m.

Directors present: Directors Allen, Blalock, Dufty, Josefowitz, Keller, McPartland,
Saltzman, and Raburn.

Absent:  Director Simon.
Jerry Grace addressed the Board.
The presentation on the Second Transbay Crossing was discussed.

Director Dufty exited the Meeting.



DRAFT

President Raburn brought Workshop Review before the Board. Ms. Smith recapped the items
covered in the Workshop. The Review was discussed.

The Board Meeting was adjoufned at 1:18 p.m.

Kenneth A. Duron
District Secretary



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

GENER MANAGER APPROVAL: GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:
| / 19 Feps Zag
g M' SRMa,
DATE: 1/17/2018 N BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No

Originator/Prepared by: Joan Stephan

Gen Ceounsel Controller/Treasurer| District Secretary
DeptiMaintepance and Engineering :) %' A
A
e
Signature/Date:
Z/rz/ﬂi ) X//l/lg [ ] [ ]
¥ ¥

0
4/\\’2'} ]

AUCTO AFM STEPABLE DUCT TRAY FIBERGLASS WALKWAY SYSTEM

PURPOSE: To request Board authorization to award Invitation For Bid No. #9034 to
ATLANTIC TRACK & TURNOUT CO., BLOOMFIELD, NEW JERSEY in the
amount of $1,879,949.99 (includes all taxes) for the purchase of FIBERGLASS
WALKWAY.

DISCUSSION:

This procurement involves the purchase of fiberglass walkway components and associated
hardware needed for the installation of a fiberglass walkway system between the Union City
and Fremont traction power substations (AUC and AFM).

The proposed fiberglass walkway system between AUC and AFM will serve several
purposes. First, it will provide a stable walking surface adjacent to the track for both
maintenance access and emergency passenger egress. The elevated areas will also include a
hand rail for improved safety. Second, it will serve to protect new armored cables, that were
installed at surface between AUC and AFM as part of a different project, from weather
elements and vandalism. This protection is necessary because one cable has already been
faulted as a result of attempted theft, which required maintenance forces to splice the cable
to regain power redundancy. The fiberglass walkway system cover will also reduce the
exposure of the cables to both destructive ultraviolet light and inclement weather.

Low smoke zero halogen fiberglass was chosen for this project to reduce the risk of stray
current proliferation as well as the risk of smoke and toxicity in the event of a fire. Fiberglass
is also lighter for ease of installation and will allow for an accelerated schedule for installation
under blanket conditions.



AUC TO AFM STEPABLE DUCT TRAY FIBERGLASS WALKWAY SYSTEM (cont.)

Once procured, BART forces will install the roughly three (3) miles of fiberglass walkway to .
complete this project.

This is a two (2) year estimated quantity Contract. Pursuant to the terms of the District’s
standard estimated quantity contract provisions, during the term of the Contract the District
is required to purchase from the Supplier a minimum amount of 50 percent of the Contract
Bid Price. Upon Board approval of this Contract, the General Manager will also have the
authority to purchase up to 150 percent of the Contract Bid Price, subject to availability of
funding.

A notice requesting Bids was published on November 16, 2017, and correspondingly, the
solicitation was posted on the BART Vendor Portal. Bid requests were mailed to three (3)
prospective Bidders. Bids were opened on December 5, 2017 and two (2) Bids were
received.

‘| Bidder Lot Price Grand Total including
9.75% Sales Tax
Atlantic Track & Turnout Co. $1,712,938.49* | $1,879,949.99*
Bloomfield, NJ
Enduro Composites, Houston TX | $1,727,267.39 $1,895,675.96

* Amount after minor arithmetical correction by the district using the Bidder's Unit Prices.
Independent cost estimate including tax by BART staff: $ 1,823,095.72

Staff has determined that the apparent low Bidder, Atlantic Track & Turnout Co, submitted a
responsive bid. Staff has also determined that the bid pricing is fair and reasonable based
on BART staff’s independent cost estimate.

Pursuant to the District’s Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) Program, the Office of
Civil Rights is utilizing race and gender-neutral efforts for Invitations for Bid (IFB).
Therefore, no DBE goal was set for this IFB.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Funding of $1,879,950 for Bid No. 9034 is included in total project budget for FMS #
15EJ700 — 34.5KV Cable Between AUC and AFM. The Office of Controller/Treasurer
certifies that funds are currently available to meet this obligation. The following table depicts
funding assigned to the referenced project and is included in totality to track funding history
against spending authority. Funds needed to meet this request will be expended from a
combination of these sources as listed.



AUC TO AFM STEPABLE DUCT TRAY FIBERGLASS WALKWAY SYSTEM (cont.)

As of January 29, 2018, $6,853,950 is available for this project from the following sources:

Fund No | Eand Description f | Eund Sotircé| Amount
3001 FY11 Capital Improvements CA-05-0253-00 | Federal 109,200
3401 FY12 Capital Improvements CA -05-0263-00 | Federal 1,043,000
353G FY08 Capital Improvements CA-05-0224-00 | Federal 200,000
3602 FY13 Capital Improvements CA-54-0007-00 | Federal 3,008,400
3603 FY14 Capital Improvements CA-54-0023-00 | Federal 928,000
3605 FY15 Capital Improvements CA-54-0041-00 | Federal 283,160
6018 FY11-12 PRJ Match MTC RES# 4044 Local 200,000
6302 FY12-13 MTC B-Toll AB664 Local 554,100
851W FY07-11 Capital Allocation ‘ BART 225,300
8525 FY13 Capital Allocation BART 232,000
8526 FY 14 Capital Allocation BART 70,790

BART has expended $4,628,138, has committed $200,937 and reserved $0 to date for other
action.. This action will commit $1,879,950 leaving an available fund balance of $144,925 in
this project.

There is no fiscal impact on available unprogrammed District Reserves.

ALTERNATIVES: ‘
Reject all Bids and re-advertise. Staff does not believe, however, that this would result in a
better price or increased competition.

Another alternative is to reject all Bids and not re-advertise. However, during development of
the design for this project, alternative methods for constructing the walkway were
considered. None of the alternatives met the safety requirements deemed necessary for use
on the project. Without procurement of this walkway, the installed cables will continue to be
vulnerable to theft and weather and there will not be a safe and clear walkway for use along
the A2 track.

RECOMMENDATION:
Adopt the following motion.

MOTION:

The General Manager is authorized to award IFB No. #9034 for Fiberglass Walkway To

Atlantic Track & Turnout Co. for an amount of $1,879,949.99, including tax, pursuant to

notification to be issued by the General Manager, and subject to compliance with the
District’s Protest Procedure and FTA’s requirements related to protests.



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

MEMORANDUM
TO: Board of Directors DATE: February 15, 2018

FROM: District Secretary
SUBJECT: 2018 Organization of Committees and Special Appointments Revision

Board Rule 3-3.2 requires the ratification by a majority vote of all members of the Board any
appointment of any Committee member by the Board President. The Rule includes a provision
that such appointments shall be submitted directly to the Board.

In accordance with Board Rule 3-3.2, President Raburn is bringing a revision to the 2018
Organization of Committees and Special Appointments before the Board of Directors for
ratification at the Regular Board Meeting on February 22, 2018. President Raburn proposes the
creation of the Labor Negotiations Review Special Committee. A prior Labor Negotiations
Review Ad Hoc Committee established in 2014 had been allowed to sunseton 12/31/16
following consideration of the Collective Bargaining Report and Recommendations by Agreement
Dynamics, Inc. presented at the September 11, 2014 Regular Board Meeting.

e Labor Negotiations Review Special Committee. The objectives of the committee are to
ensure that recommendations in the Collective Bargaining Report and Recommendations
by Agreement Dynamics, Inc. remain relevant, are revised where necessary and followed.
The intent is to ensure errors that occurred in 2013 during the collective bargaining
negotiations are avoided with BPOA/BPMA in 2018 and to prepare for the negotiations
with ATU, SEIU, AFSCME in 2021.

Members: Bevan Dufty, Chairperson, Joel Keller, Rebecca Saltzman

Should you have any questions about the establishment of the Committee or recommended
appointments, please contact President Raburn or me at your convenience.

Kenneth A. Duron
cc: Board Appointed Officers
Deputy General Manager
Executive Staff
MOTION:

That the Board of Directors ratifies the proposed revision to the Organization of Committees and
Special Appointments for 2018 creating the Labor Negotiations Review Special Committee.



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL: , 4 m ZO' VENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:
} Cla O

it .

DATE: 2/7/2018 b BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No \

Controller/Treasurer| District Secretary C

i@ | f

aa | (O8

Originator/Preps etyi- by: Mark Letman

Dept: Maintce and Engineering
1

J
i

—

Award of Contract 15CQ-200A For Rail Procurement

PURPOSE:

To request Board authorization for the Generél Manager to award Contract No. 15CQ-200A
for Rail Procurement to L.B. Foster Company, Pittsburg, Pennsylvania for the Base Bid
Price of $20,425,877.95, including all applicable sales taxes.

DISCUSSION:

Contract No. 15CQ200A is five (5) year Contract to purchase eight hundred (800) foot
lengths of Continuous Welded Rail (CWR) and special trackwork steel components for the
District’s Measure RR funded, track infrastructure replacement projects. Premium head
hardened rail and upgraded steel components will replace legacy track and interlockings, and
update ninety-pound rail (90RA) to one hundred nineteen pound per yard rail (119RE) in
BART maintenance yards.

Pre-advertisement notices were mailed to fifteen (15) prospective Bidders. On December 18,
2017 the Contract was advertised and seven (7) prospective Bidders registered for the
Contract documents. Two potential suppliers attended a pre-bid meeting held on J anuary 10,
2018. Bids were opened on January 30, 2018 and three (3) Bids were received. '

Bidder Grand Total Including 9.75% Sales Tax
Progress Rail Services Corporation $17,111,649.30

Albertville, AL



Award of Contract 15CQ-200A. For Rail Procurement (cont.)

A&K Railroad Materials, Inc. $17,451,845.24
Salt Lake City, UT

L.B. Foster Company $20,425,877.95
Pittsburg, PA.

Independent cost estimate by BART staff: $20,567,924.20 including all applicable sales
faxes.

Two (2) of the Bids submitted were determined to be non-responsive due to non-compliance
with the Bid requirements. Progress Rail Services Corporation did not submit the required
Bidders Bond and A&K Railroad Materials, Inc. did not submit a signed Bid Form. Staff
has determined that only L.B. Foster Company submitted a responsive Bid. Staff also
determined that L.B. Foster's Bid price was fair and reasonable based upon the independent
cost estimate and market survey of qualified suppliers.

Pursuant to the District's Non-Discrimination Program for Subcontracting, the Availability
Percentages for this Contract are 2.2% for Minority Business Enterprise ("MBEs"), 1.1% for
Women Business Enterprises ("WBEs"). The apparent low Bidder, L.B. Foster Company,
had a zero percent commitment to the utilization of MBE and WBE participation. Therefore,
L.B. Foster Company was requested to provide the Office of Civil Rights with supporting
documentation to determine if it had discriminated on the basis of race, national origin, color,
gender or ethnicity. Based on the review of the information submitted by L.B. Foster
Company, the Office of Civil Rights found no evidence of discrimination.

Pursuant to the District's Non-Federal Small Business Program, the Office of Civil Rights set
an 8% Small Business (SB) Participation Goal for this Contract. Bidders who meet the SB
Participation Goal are eligible for a Small Business Preference of 5% of the lowest
responsive Bidder's Bid. Since L.B. Foster Company committed to subcontracting 7.5% to
SBs, it did not meet the SB Participation Goal and it was not eligible for the Prime
Preference. However, due to the first and second low Bidders being found non-responsive,
L.B. Foster Company is now the apparent low Bidder. Thus, the Prime Preference will not
apply to Foster's Company's Bid.

FISCAL IMPACT:

This Contract is an estimated quantity Contract. Upon Board approval of this Contract, the
General Manager will also have the authority to purchase up to 150 percent of the Contract
Base Bid Price, subject to the availability of funds.

Funding in the amount of $30,638,817 ($20,425,878 base Contract value including CA Sales
Tax, plus $10,212,939 additional potential Contract value) to award Contract No. 15CQ-
200A is included in the total budget for FMS# 15CQ002 Replace Rails, Ties, Fasteners Ph3,



Award of Contract 15CQ-200A For Rail Procurement (cont.)

Measure RR.

The table below lists funding assigned to the referenced project and is included to track
funding history against spending authority. Funds needed to meet this request will be
expended from the following sources:

Source Fund Description Total
BART Measure RR General Obligation Bonds $616,949,279
BART BART Operating to Capital Allocation $197,246
' $617,146,525

As of 02/08/2018, $617,146,525 is the tota] budget for this project. BART has -

expended $20,808,474 committed $23,986,579 and reserved $30,312,892 to date for other
actions. This action will commit $30,638,817, leaving an available fund balance of
$511,399,762 in fund sources for this project.

The Office of the Controller/Treasurer certifies that funds are currently available to meet this
obligation.

This action is not anticipated to have any Fiscal Impact on unprogrammed District Reserves.

ALTERNATIVES:

Reject the Bid and re-advertise the Contract. This however, is not likely to result in increased
competition or lower prices and would delay the procurement of rail, consequently
postponing the replacement of rail infrastructure, which could negatively impact revenue
service. ”

RECOMMENDATION:

On the basis of analysis by Staff and certification by the Controller-Treasurer that the funds
are available for this purpose, it is recommended that the Board adopt the following motion.

MOTION:

The General Manager is authorized to award Contract No. 15CQ-200A, an estimated
quantity contract, for Rail Procurement, to L.B. Foster Company of Pittsburgh, PA, for the
Base Bid Price of $20,425,877.95 including all applicable sales taxes, pursuant to notification
to be issued by the General Manager, subject to compliance with the District's Protest
Procedures. The General Manager is also authorized to purchase up to 150 percent of the
Contract Base Bid Price, subject to the availability of funds.



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

GENERAL AGER APPROVAL;: /GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:
l 4 Fe’b Zo' 9 Approve and forward to Board of Directors
DATE: 1/12/2018 A BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No 3

Originator/Prepared by: Kevin Sanderson

Jroe

Signature/Date% 2/’2 /’ g

Controller/Treasurer| District Secretary A -

Dept: Extensions

4
Z{V”Is’/[ ] CIND /\’\\,t\]

Contract No. 01RQ-110, Hayward Maintenance Complex Project Maintenance
Facilities, Change Order No. 235, Car Lift Rail Modifications to the Hayward Shop
Shallow Pit Car Lifts

PURPOSE.:

To authorize the General Manager to execute Change Order No. 235 for Contract No.
01RQ-110, Hayward Maintenance Complex Project Maintenance Facilities with Clark
Construction, for Car Lift Rail Modifications to the Hayward Shop Shallow Pit Car Lifts, in
an amount not to exceed $816,000.

DISCUSSION:

On July 23, 2015, the Board of Directors authorized the award of Contract No. 01RQ-110,
Hayward Maintenance Complex Project Maintenance Facilities in the amount of
$98,390,000, to Clark Construction. The Contract is for the construction of a new
Component Repair Shop and the addition of vehicle lifts and associated utilities and
trackwork at the existing Hayward Shop.

Following commencement of the Contract Work and equipment testing activities had begun,
it was determined that the car lifting rail component of the shallow-pit car lifts were too long
and prohibited the removal of certain revenue vehicle components during maintenance and
repair activities. As a result, the Contractor will need to perform additional work to modify
the rails of the existing car lifts in the Hayward Main Shop as well as the future car lifts to be
installed in the Hayward Back Shop. Because this additional work is not described in the
Contract Documents, a change to the Contract is required. The estimated value of this
Change Order is an amount not-to-exceed $816,000. Pursuant to Board Rule 5-2.3, Change
Orders involving expenditures greater than $200,000 require Board approval. The
Procurement Department will review this Change Order prior to execution for compliance



Contract No. 01RQ-110, Hayward Maintenance Complex Project Maintenance Facilities, Change Order No. (cont.)

with procurement guidelines.

The Office of the General Counsel will approve the Change Order as to form prior to
execution. .

FISCAL IMPACT:

Funding in the amount of $816,000 for the award of Change Order No. 235 to Contract No.
01RQ-110 is included in the total budget for FMS# 01RQ003, HMC-Shops Mod &

Component Repair.

The table below lists funding assigned to the referenced project and is included to track
funding history against spending authority. Funds needed to meet this request will be
expended from the following sources:

Proposed Funding
F/G 5602 - High Speed Passenger Rail Bond | $61,389,000
F/G 656K - VTA $49,710,000
F/G 8526 - FY14 Operating Capital Alloc $2,477,367
F/G 8529 - FY15 Operating Capital Alloc $7,386,920
F/G 8530 - FY16 Operating Capital Alloc $1,881,418
TOTAL | $122,844,705

As of February 2, 2018, $122,844,705 is the total budget for this project. BART has
expended $93,985,469 committed $16,556,496 and reserved $3,458,911 to-date for other
action. This action will commit $816,000 leaving an available fund balance of $8,027,829 in
these fund sources for this project.

The Office of the Controller/Treasurer certifies that funds are currently available to meet this
obligation.

This action is not anticipated to have any fiscal impact on unprogrammed District Reserves.

ALTERNATIVES:

The Board can elect not to authorize the execution of this Change Order. If this Change
Order is not approved, District staff will not be able to utilize the new car lifts to their full
advantage, contributing to a loss in vehicle maintenance and repair efficiency.

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommend that the Board approve the following motion:



Contract No. 01RQ-110, Hayward Maintenance Complex Project Maintenance Facilities, Change Order No. (cont.)

MOTION:

The General Manager is authorized to execute Change Order No. 235 to Contract No.
01RQ-110, Hayward Maintenance Complex Project Maintenance Facilities, with Clark
Construction, for an amount not to exceed $816,000, for Car Lift Rail Modifications to the
Hayward Shop Shallow Pit Car Lifts.



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

ATTACHMENT #1
CONTRACT NO. 01RQ-110

BACKGROUND

CO No: 235

CHANGE ORDER SUMMARY

Name of Contractor:  Clark Construction Group
Contract No./NTP: 01RQ-110/ October 21, 2015
Contract Description: ~Hayward Maintenance Complex Project — Maintenance Facilities

Percent Complete as of:

Dollars Percent Complete as of:

02/06/2018 — 82%
02/06/2018 — 86.20%

COST % of Award Cost Contract Amount
Original Contract Award Amount $98,390,000.00
Change Orders:

Other than Board Authorized C.O.s: 4.36% $4,289,804.00

Board Authorized Change Orders: 2.72% $2,676,208.00

This Change Order No. 235: .80% $ 816,000.00

Subtotal of all Change Order 7.88% $7,782,012.00

Revised Contract Amount:

SCHEDULE

Original Contract Duration:
Time Extension to Date:

Time Extension Due to Approved COs:

Revised Contract Duration:

$106,172,012.00

860 Days
62 Days
62 Days

922 Days

SUMMARY REASON FOR THIS CHANGE ORDER

Car Lift Rail Modifications to the Hayward Shop Shallow Pit Car Lifts

Following commencement of the Contract Work and equipment testing activities had begun, it was
determined that the car lifting rail component of the shallow-pit car lifts were too long and prohibited the

“removal of certain revenue vehicle components during maintenance and repair activities. As a result, the
Contractor will need to perform additional work to modify the rails of the existing car lifts in the Hayward
Main Shop as well as the future car lifts to be installed in the Hayward Back Shop.



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Directors / DATE: February 15,2018
FROM: General Manager

SUBJECT: Santa Clara County BART Extension: Update on Phase I and Phase I1.

Staff will provide a verbal update at the Board of Directors’ meeting on February 22, 2018 on the

status of the negotiations for the BART-VTA Operations & Maintenance Agreement and the outcome
of the most recent meetings on the tunneling coordination for the Phase II Extension.

If you have any questions about these matters, please contact Robert Powers, Deputy General Manager
at 510-464-6126.

/ W' ; Woﬂ_—-
% Grace Crunican

cc:  Board Appointed Officers
Deputy General Manager
Executive Staff




SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

TO: Board 6f Directors DATE: February 15, 2018
FROM Independent Police Auditor
SUBJECT: BART Citizen Oversight Model Evaluation

Pursuant to Chapter 3-01 of the BART Citizen Oversight Model (Model), the Board of Directors: (Board),
with input from the BART Police Citizen Review Board (BPCRB), Independent Police Auditor (IPA),
BART Police Associations (BPOA and BPMA), complainants, and the public will evaluate the BART
Police citizen oversight structure after the first year of implementation to determine whether the need exists
to make changes and/or otherwise make adjustments to the system to imptove its continued performance.
Chapter 3-01 further provides that this evaluation shall in no ‘way be intended to eliminate the BART Police
citizen oversight structure.

In ordet to facilitate the review and evaluation required by the Model, and after significant research and
extensive discussion, the Office of the Independent Police Auditor (OIPA) engaged the OIR Gioup, a law
enforcement consulting organization led by veteran former federal civil rights prosecutor Michael Gennaco,
and featuring a number of the nation's most experienced police practices and oversight professionals.

‘The thorotigh teview undertaken by OIR expanded the list of required stakeholders and participants. Local
interviews wete primarily conducted by Aaron Zisser, who has worked as: a ‘consultant on reforini and
oversight in the criminal justice system, either conducting reviews on behalf of oversight ahd monitoring
agencies or advising client-agencies on improving their cotrections or police oversight functions.

‘The evaluation commenced in January 2017 and a final report-was generated and submitted in June 2017
(with an Addendum in July 2017) including a total of 54 recommendations for improverment, The report
was distributed and discussed at a July 18, 2017 Operations, Safety and Workforce Standing Committee
meeting and again af a Board meeting on August 10, 2017.

OIPA was instructed to provide the Board with an assessment of the necessary resources to implement each
of the 54 recommendations, and this request has been fulfilled with the submission of the attached color-
coded Implementation Matrix for your consideration. At 'your request, OIPA has also provided the Board
with copies of materials generated for your consideration by the BPCRB. A resource assessmefit submitted
by the Chief of Police has been integrated into the OIPA Implementation Matrix along with OIPA’s
impression of any impact to the operations of the BPCRB. Materials from other entities such as BPOA,
BPMA, BPD and the General Managet may be submitted to.you independently and under separate cover,

ce:  Bodrd Appointed Officers



Independent Review of the BART Police Oversight
Structure

June 2017

GROUP

Michael J. Gennaco
323 821 0586
7142 Trask Avenue
Playa del Rey, CA 90293
OIRGroup.com

Aaron B. Zisser
628 400 1203
Oakland, CA

civilrightsconsulting.com



I
IL.

A. Background.

B.

C. Acknowledgements

ITI. Findings and Recommendations..

PO zZErMFR

“SrEmaEmEY AR

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Executive Summary....

Introduction....

-----------

Scope and Methodology

Clarifying Oversight’s Scope

Increasing OIPA’s Monitoring Responsibilities
Making the Complaint Process Available to All

Enhancing OIPA Investigations

Improving the Disposition Process of OIPA Investigations .
Additional Risk Management Role for OIPA.

Developing a Mediation Program

Ensuring Prompt OIPA Notification of All Critical Incidents

Enhancing OIPA’s Footprint Regarding Use of Force

25

Mapping Out a Significant Role for the Auditor in BART PD’s Early Identification System

26
Increasing OIPA’s Role as Auditor

Expanding OIPA’s Role in Policy Development

Ensuring Integration of Oversight in BART PD’s Policies and Practices
Clarifying the Relationship Between OIPA and the BART Police Citizen Review Board
Clarifying and Enhancing the Roles of the BART Police Citizen Review Board .........cccounen.

Providing Increased Transparency Authority for BART Oversight
Ensuring Periodic Review of BART Oversight

27
28
29
.30
31
34
34



I._ Executive Summary

Overview of the review: Chapter 3-01 of the BART oversight model (hereinafter the
“Model”) provides as follows:

The Board of Directors, with input from the BART Police Citizen Review Board,
Auditor, BART Police Associations, complainants and the public, will evaluate
the BART Police citizen oversight structure after the first year of implementation
to determine if the need exists to make changes and or otherwise make
adjustments to the system to improve its continued performance. This evaluation
shall in no way be intended to eliminate the BART Police citizen oversight
structure. -

This review and report were commissioned and conducted in furtherance of BART’s compliance
with this provision of the Model; that is, to facilitate the Board of Directors’ evaluation of the
oversight structure.

Our review began in January 2017. We interviewed the stakeholders whose input is expressly
set out in the Model, but we conducted many additional interviews with a broad range of other
significant parties. We ensured that the evaluation takes account of the original impetus for the
establishment of the oversight system — the January 1, 2009, shooting of Oscar Grant by a BART
Police Department (BART PD) officer — as well as the subsequent systemic reviews of policies
and practices. Because oversight’s effectiveness depends heavily on the community’s trust,
engagement, and support, we placed a high premium on community attitudes and concerns
regarding the oversight system. We measured these factors in a variety of ways.

During our review, all individuals we met were generous with their time, accessibility, and
candor. Representatives of the Board of Directors, the BART Police Citizen Review Board, and
the BART PD were particularly helpful in providing both relevant documents and important
insights regarding the issues discussed herein. The Office of the Independent Police Auditor
(OIPA) was especially helpful in facilitating the mechanics of our work, and was continually
available to provide documents and important perspective. To the degree that our findings and
recommendations may help enhance the current civilian oversight system, it reflects the
cooperation, assistance, and acumen provided by these stakeholders.

The oversight system: The BART PD oversight system, established in July 2010 following a
process that involved community input, consists of the OIPA and the BART Police Citizen
Review Board. According to the Model, OIPA (with a current staffing level of three) is to
conduct investigations of complaints alleging serious officer misconduct, make
recommendations on BART PD policies and practices, audit Internal Affairs (IA) investigations,
conduct close monitoring of officer-involved shootings, conduct community outreach, issue

! The Oversight Model is available on the website of the Office of the Independent Police
Auditor: https://www.bart.gov/about/policeauditor and attached to this report as Attachment A.




public reports on investigation outcomes and trends, and provide stafﬁng and other resources to
the BART Police Citizen Review Board.

The BART Police Citizen Review Board consists of 11 members. Each of the nine Directors
selects one member, while one is appointed by the police associations, and one is “at-large.”
According to the Model, the Review Board is to hold monthly public meetings, review OIPA’s
investigations, review BART PD and OIPA recommendations regarding BART PD policies,
make its own recommendations regarding BART PD policies, conduct community outreach, and
issue reports on its activities. Its members are also authotized under the Model to part101pate in
officer and executive hiring.

‘Overview of findings: We found that the Model devised in response to the tragic shooting of
Oscar Grant created two oversight entities that have served a valuable purpose in establishing
effective civilian oversight over an agency that had no such previous external influences. The
fact that we offer numerous recommendations designed to strengthen and clarify the original
Model should in no way diminish the work of those who have worked diligently to fulfill the
overarching objectives of accountability, advancing progressive police practices, and fostering
greater community trust in law enforcement. Instead, this Report seeks to fulfill a key part of the
Model’s original vision: one that recognized that a constructive re-assessment of BART’s
nascent oversight program should be built into the design.

From that starting point, we found several areas in which the Model could benefit from revision
and reform. These include significant omissions in the Model relating to investigations and '
auditing authority, and the ambiguities in provisions relating to outreach, reporting,
investigations, and policy recommendations.

The review features a total of fifty-three recommendations. They range in scope from broad
issues of jurisdiction and structure to more particular or technical adjustments to specific
provisions in the Model. Among the key categories that produced specific suggestions for
reform are the following:

Recommendations to expand authority and related findings: We recommend expanding the
oversight system’s authority in two areas:

e Broader audit authority First, we recommend expanding the auditing authority to
allow OIPA to review any operational aspect of BART PD — as opposed to merely
reviewing IA’s operatlons

o Investigations absent a complaint: Second, we recommend authorizing OIPA to
conduct its own independent investigation or review into any use of force or potential act
of misconduct without the need to await receipt of a qualifying citizen complaint.

Other recommendations and findings:

o Independence from each other’s roles and responsibilities should be reinforced through
structural changes to OIPA and the BART Police Citizen Review Board for the sake of
their respective and mutual effectiveness. OIPA’s obligations relating to staffing the



Review Board should be removed, the requirement of a Review Board performance
evaluation of the IPA should be eliminated, and orientation and training for Review
Board members should be enhanced to delineate roles and responsibilities.

Case Auditing should be conducted in a more consistent and thorough manner that
allows for not only pre-completion input into the IA investigation, but also the ability to
influence dispositions and discipline prior to BART PD’s final decision.

A Systemic Auditing protocol should be developed and implemented. OIPA should
analyze trends and patterns, and it should be involved in BART PD procedures relating to
use-of-force reviews and early identification of officers who may require remedial
interventions. '

Investigations should address a broader range of complaints; any person should be able
to file a complaint; and written protocols should be developed regarding investigative
techniques, procedures, and coordination with other BART components to ensure
confidence in OIPA’s investigations and to ensure that it receives all complaints coming
in to BART.

Use of Force Review should become an arena in which OIPA more regularly .
participates, including assessing individual incidents, and contributing to holistic
discussions of tactics and training, and other potential elements of constructive feedback.

Policy, procedure, and practice recommendations should constitute a regular and
formalized element of OIPA’s interactions with and influence on BART PD.

Public reporting by OIPA should be enhanced, in the form of greater detail with regard
to its case monitoring role of internal investigations initiated by BART PD. Similarly,
OIPA should report on the increased activities proposed in this report.

Mediation should continue to be studied for ways to make it more attractive to
complainants and officers. ‘

An oversight system evaluation should be conducted periodically.



I1. Introduction

A. Background.

BART PD: Established in 1969, BART PD is comprlsed of 296 personnel, of which 206 are
sworn peace officers,” according to BART PD’s website.” BART PD covers the entire BART
system, which extends into four counties. The Chief of Police reports to the General Manager
. (GM), who is appointed by the Board of Directors.

Shootmg of Oscar Grant and aftermath: On January 1, 2009, Oscar Grant was fatally shot by
BART police officer Johannes Mehserle on the Fruitvale Station platform. On August 11, 2009,
the law firm Meyels Nave 1ssued a report regarding policies and practices “relevant to the” Oscar
Grant shooting.®

From June 2009 to September 2009, the National Orgamzatlon of Black Law Enforcement
Executives (NOBLE) conducted a review of BART PD’s policies and practices, and it issued a

. reporton J anuary 1, 2010, which identified areas for improvement in a number of areas of BART
PD’s operations.* A follow-up audit was conducted in 2013, and BART PD continues to report
on its ongoing efforts to implement the recommended reforms

In June 2010, Mehserle was convicted of involuntary manslaughter and acquitted of murder and
voluntary manslaughter charges.

BART Public Safety Accountability Act: In September 2009 — immediately following the
Meyers Nave report and before the completion of the NOBLE report — a bill was proposed in the
state legislature to create an independent oversight system for BART PD. In July of 2010, the
BART Public Safety Accountability Act was enacted. It directed the BART Board of Directors
to “establish an office of independent police auditor, reporting directly to the board, to
investigate complaints against dlstrlct police personnel” and assigned the following “powers and
duties” to the appointed audltor

(1) To investigate those complaints or allegations of on—dufy misconduct and off-duty
unlawful activity by district police personnel, within the independent police auditor’s
purview as it is set by the board.

2 “History of the BART Police Department,” http://m.bart.cov/about/police/employment.

> Meyers Nave, “Review of BART PD Policies, Practices and Procedures Re: New Year’s Day
2009,” 1 (Aug. 2009), available at
https://www.bart.gov/sites/default/files/docs/Meyers Nave Public Report.pdf.

4 NOBLE, “BART Management Audit,” (Jan. 2010) [NOBLE Audit (2010)], available at
https://www.bart.gov/sites/default/files/docs/NOBLE Final Report.pdf.

5 CA Pub. Util. Code § 28767.8(a) (2016).



(2) To reach independent findings as to the validity of each complaint.

(3) To recommend appropriate d1s01p11nary action agamst district pohce personnel for those
complaints determined to be sustained.®

The Act also authorized the Board to create “a citizen review board to participate in
recommending appropriate disciplinary action.”

Oversight Model: Pursuant to the legislation, the BART Board of Directors formed a committee
to study what type of oversight should be established. There were numerous public hearings
with robust input from members of the community. The Model eventually promulgated called
for an independent police auditor, as well as a citizen review board. Responsibilities of the
oversight system — detailed in this report — included: investigations of complaints alleging
serious officer misconduct, recommendations on BART PD policies and practices, auditing of
Internal Affairs investigations, close monitoring of officer-involved shootings, community
outreach, and issuing public reports on investigation outcomes and trends.

OIPA: The OIPA is appointed by and reports directly to the Board of Directors. OIPA con51sts
of three staff, including the Independent Police Auditor (IPA), an 1nvest1gator and an
administrative support person.

BART Police Citizen Review Board: The Review Board consists of 11 members, including
nine members appointed by the respective Directors, a member appointed by the police
associations, and an at-large member selected through a formal application process.

B. Scope and Methodology
Scope: Chapter 3-01 of the Oversight Model provides as follows:

The Board of Directors, with input from the BART Police Citizen Review Board,
Auditor, BART Police Associations, complainants and the public, will evaluate the
BART Police citizen oversight structure after the first year of implementation to
determine if the need exists to make changes and or otherwise make adjustments to the
system to improve its continued performance. This evaluation shall in no way be
intended to eliminate the BART Police citizen oversight structure.

Even though the Model calls for an evaluation after one year of implementation, no assessment
has ever been conducted since the inception of BART’s civilian oversight. While this lapse was
unfortunate, it is a testament to OIPA and the Board of Directors that this 1ndependent review
has now been commissioned.

We sought to answer two basic sets of questions:

5 CA Pub. Util. Code § 28767.8(b)(1)-(3) (2016).

" CA Pub. Util. Code § 28767.8(c) (2016).



e Does the oversight structure perform as contemplated in the language of the Model? If
not, what ambiguities or omissions in the Model’s language may impact optimum
performance?

e Could the oversight structure be improved or enhanced to further the oversight system’s
goals, as articulated in best practices and understood by the communities it serves?

Overview of methodology: To these ends, we evaluated:
e The language of the Model for ambiguity or weaknesses.

e Whether practice could benefit by providing clearer authority, expansion of duties, and
reconsideration of priorities.

e The perceptions and concerns of communities BART serves and BART system
stakeholders, as well as national best practices, to gauge what changes would help to
instill additional trust in the oversight structure and aid in serving its goals.

Interviews: Our review began in January 2017 and entailed more than 50 interviews with nearly
four dozen stakeholders. These included OIPA staff; BART Police Citizen Review Board
members; seven BART directors; local oversight professionals; local advocacy groups, including
the local ACLU affiliate and the Coalition on Homelessness; police associations; IA officers; and
BART PD command staff.

Community interest and concerns: Just as it was essential that we speak with police officials
and representatives, community feedback — particularly input from impacted communities,
including communities of color — was of critical importance in our review. This is because the
effectiveness of civilian oversight depends heavily on the community’s trust in its independence,
authority, and capacity.

Community members — especially those who have perceived or borne the brunt of systemic
unfairness and an adversarial relationship with law enforcement — are much more likely to
provide information and insight to an oversight entity that they consider fair, meaningful, and
empowered. Those contributions from the community can, in turn, strengthen the legitimacy and
the effectiveness of the oversight entity. And this dynamic can ultimately increase community
trust in the police department, as well — the public is reassured by the sense of accountability and
gives credence to the positive acknowledgements of progress that the oversight entity can
provide. Accordingly, our recommendations draw heavily on what we learned from and about
the communities served by BART.

We assessed community interest through interviews with individual residents as well as political
leaders, leaders of community and advocacy groups, and leaders of other Bay Area oversight
agencies who could speak to broader community sentiment. We also gauged community interest
and concerns through other Bay Area initiatives on oversight, as well as input prowded during
the original 2009 process.



Finally, we sought to account for any countervailing concerns, with an eye toward maximizing
the understanding and acceptance of all key stakeholders, including those subject to oversight
and those with contrasting viewpoints on how it should function.

" BART Police Citizen Review Board sessions and documentation: We attended three Review
Board sessions and requested and reviewed additional documentation, including:

The Model and earlier drafts of the Model

Review Board bylaws

Complaints and OIPA investigation reports

Notifications provided to officers and complainants

OIPA monitoring reports regarding IA investigations

OIPA and Review Board reports

Review Board agendas and minutes

OIPA and Review Board policy recommendations

IPA and Review Board member selection materials

The 2010 NOBLE report, the follow—up 2013 audit, and the 2009 Meyers Nave report
Outreach materials '
Public information regarding the process for developing the oversight Model, community
members’ observations of the oversight system, and serious incidents 1nvolv1ng BART
PD officers

Best practices and standards: In addition to drawing from our own experience and exposure to
various oversight models and practices, we consulted best practices and standards from a variety
of sources, 1nclud1ng the National Association for the Civilian Oversight of Law Enforcement
(NACOLE) reports and reports by other professional organizations; scholarly literature on
oversight; the NACOLE code of ethics (cited in the Model); the Core Principles for an Effective
Police Auditor’s Office (cited in the Model); U.S. Department of Justice, Civil Rights D1v131on
investigations and consent decrees® and COPS Collaborative Reform Initiative reports and the

Final Report of the President’s Task Force on 21 Century Policing (May 2015).'°

C. Acknowledgements

We received enormous support throughout the review process from a range of stakeholders and
are grateful to each person who took the time to sit down with us for an interview. We were able
to interview most members of the Board of Directors, who expressed strong interest in the
review. Some helpfully directed us to other stakeholders. BART PD’s executive staff, Internal

® The U.S. Department of Justice publishes its findings letters and settlement agreements on its
website: https;//www.iustice.gov/crt/special-lit.igation—secti.on-cases—and~mattersO.

? The U.S. Department of Justice catalogues its COPS assessment reports
https://cops.usdoij.gov/collaborativereform.

'% Final Report of the President’s Task Force on 21% Century Policing (May 2015), available at
https://cops.usdoij.gov/pdf/taskforce/taskforce finalreport.pdf.




Affairs investigators, and the police associations, as well as the OIPA staff were open and candid
and provided invaluable insights.

The current IPA enlisted this review, provided a comprehensive list of potential interviewees,
contacted many of them to help schedule interviews, and was readily available for ongoing
questions. The IPA provided critical OIPA documents and spent many hours sharing his
understanding of and views on the system with us. We applaud his energy and interest and note
that this review likely would not have happened but for his proactivity and creativity. The IPA’s
embracing of this peer review process, and full coopeération with it, is testament to an admirable
growth mindset.

Finally, we are grateful to the family of Oscar Grént, who remain constructively engaged in the
subjects of oversight and accountability, and who took the time in that spirit to share their '
experience and suggestions with us. : ‘

10



II1. Findings and Recommendations_

BART’s current oversight model has many admirable features and has served its transit
community well for almost six years. The Model provides OIPA with access to the most
sensitive of Police Department records and gives it the ability to conduct independent -
investigations, audit internal investigations conducted by BART PD, and make policy
recommendations. Moreover, the Model provides the BART Police Citizen Review Board with
an opportunity to meaningfully weigh in on complaint investigations and recommend
disciplinary outcomes, an authority that very few community-based oversight entities possess.

However, the Model has ambiguities and places unnecessary limits on oversight authority. This
is due in large part to requiring the existence of a complaint before authority can be exercised. In
addition, the Model saddles OIPA with administrative functions for the BART Police Citizen
Review Board, blurring the lines between oversight entities with complementary yet distinct and
‘independent roles. The recommendations set out below — which flow from an evaluation process
expressly contemplated by the original model —are intended to provide clarity regarding both
OIPA and the BART Police Citizen Review Board’s authority. The recommendations suggest a
course that could result in more impactful oversight for the benefit of the community and BART
PD alike. ‘

A. Clarifying Oversight’s Scope

The Model Should Make Explicit that OIPA’s Oversight Scope Includes All Employees of
BART PD and Any Potential Violations of Policy.

Currently the Model states that OIPA has the authority to exercise its oversight duties with
regard to “any and all law enforcement activities or personnel operating under the authority of”
BART. We have been informed that this passage has been interpreted to include non-sworn
members of BART. However, for purposes of clarity, the Model should indicate that all
employees of BART are within OIPA’s oversight authority. :

Many of the non-sworn employees of a police agency have considerable interaction with the
public and are indirectly imbued with the authority of the law enforcement entity for which they
work. Accordingly, those employees often have significant influence on whether the public is
appropriately served by the agency. For that reason, all police department employees should be
subject to civilian oversight’s ambit. ‘

Moreover, at least as to sworn officers, the Model should make clear that any potential violations
of policy should fall within the ambit of OIPA. Law and practice has also recognized that there
is a clear nexus between off-duty conduct and on duty responsibilities for sworn officers. For
that reason, it has been long held that police officers can be held accountable for off-duty
misconduct inconsistent with their duties and responsibility to uphold the law. For example,
officers who are found to have engaged in domestic violence or impaired driving can be
independently sanctioned for that conduct by their employing agencies. In order to ensure
accountability for these actions, progressive oversight entities have recognized that they must

11



similarly be able to exercise oversight over off-duty officer conduct. The Model for OIPA must
- ensure that such oversight authority exists over BART PD.

- Recommendation One: The Model should be revised to make clear that the scope of OIPA’s
authority extends to non-sworn employees of BART PD and to all potential misconduct
involving sworn officers whether on or off duty.

B. Increasing OIPA’s Monitoring Responsibilities

OIPA Should Consider Revising Its Approach Towards Monitoring Internal Affairs
Investigations Conducted by BART PD Toward Real-Time Monitoring and More
Transparency.

Pursuant to the Model, OIPA has the authority to audit internal affairs investigations conducted
by BART PD to determine if the investigations are “complete, thorough, objective and fair.”
OIPA also has the ability to “require” follow-up investigation into any citizen complaint or
allegation that is handled by BART PD.

OIPA has, in the past, exercised this authority provided by the Model when it determined that a
BART PD investigation did hot meet investigative standards. However, we are aware of a recent
instance when there was resistance by BART PD after the Auditor identified an incomplete and

substandard investigation and sought follow-up investigative work. BART PD should be
reminded of the non-discretionary language in the Model requiring it to conduct follow-up
investigation when requested by OIPA. To ensure an effective remedy should there be any
BART PD compliance issues, the Auditor should be able to present any significant lapse to the
attention of the General Manager, the Board of Directors, and the BART Police Citizen Review
Board and set out the incident in its public reporting.

The Model provides the opportunity for OIPA to engage with BART PD as it proceeds with its
internal investigative process. That ability has been enhanced by OIPA’s direct access to IA’s
investigative database. We have been informed that OIPA regularly uses its database access to
audit investigations being conducted by BART PD and has provided input and suggestions such
as identifying additional witnesses to interview. OIPA also provides feedback on completed
investigations to BART PD."

However, to the degree that OIPA provides such auditing of the Department’s internal affairs
investigations, most of the feedback occurs after the case has been completed and a disposition
has already been rendered. At that point, any post hoc input from OIPA has a potentially limited
impact on disposition decisions made by the Police Department since the disposition has already
been determined and subject officers and complainants notified about that decision.

Another approach to auditing of BART PD cases that appears to be workable within the current
Model would be for OIPA to deploy “real-time” monitoring of cases. Under that paradigm,

"' To the degree there remains any uncertainty, OIPA should be provided the authority to
monitor any internal investigations conducted by BART PD, including internally generated
investigations.

12



OIPA would audit active Internal Affairs investigations, serve as a resource during the pendency
of the investigations, and, upon their completion, would review each case for completeness and
objectivity. OIPA would then provide any feedback to Internal Affairs, suggesting any
additional investigation prior to the case being completed. Similarly, prior to BART decision-
makers’ determination as to whether the evidence indicates a violation of policy, OIPA would
offer independent recommendations on investigative outcomes. Finally, on founded cases, OIPA
would present its recommendations with regard to the appropriate level of discipline. While
BART PD would have ultimate authority regarding each of these internal decisions, OIPA’s real -
time involvement in these decisions would likely make its 1nput more impactful than the “after
the fact” interaction currently deployed. 12

In addition to providing quality assurance in real time for thorough investigations and evidence-
based determinations on outcomes, OIPA could and should weigh in on other important
investigative decisions. Sometimes, allegations of misconduct implicate potential crimes. The
decision whether to forward such allegations to the District Attorney is one in which OIPA
should participate Additionally, under this approach, OIPA could play a helpful role in the
proper scoping of i 1nvest1gat1ons

As importantly, OIPA should document and report on its aud1t1ng function. Currently, there is
no detailed report of OIPA’s auditing of BART PD cases, and the data reported regarding
discipline and the outcomes by investigating agency (i.e., OIPA versus IA) is unclear. If OIPA
decides to fransition its current auditing function into real-time monitoring, it should
significantly enhance its reporting of this function to the BART Police Citizen Review Board,
the Board of Directors, and the public. OIPA should set out a narrative of each case audited,
whether it found the investigation adequate, any input made by OIPA regarding improving the
investigations, the disposition, and, in founded cases, the discipline imposed. OIPA should also
report on the degree to which it concurred or disagreed with BART PD’s case determinations.
This increased level of transparency would provide stakeholders an important window into the
Police Department’s accountability system and an independent assessment of its vibrancy.'®

Recommendation Two: OIPA should consider modifying its monitoring function of BART PD
internal affairs investigations to “real-time” monitoring, offering recommendations on the
strength of investigations and appropriateness of dispositions prior to BART PD completing
the process.

12 We have been informed that, to the credit of the former Chief, occasionally OIPA had been
asked in real time to provide input regarding investigative or disposition determinations by

- BART PD. Our recommendation is for a more comprehensive expansion of this encouraging
dynamic.

1 We leave to OIPA to determine based on its resources what portion of BART PD’s internal
investigations it could monitor in real time. One potential “bright line” suggestion would be to
monitor all internal investigations conducted by the Department’s Internal Affairs unit.

13



Recommendation Three: Should OIPA move to real-time monitoring, it should be involved in
decisions regarding whether a matter should be forwarded to the District Attorney for criminal
review, and the appropriate scoping of an investigation.

Recommendation Four: OIPA should make its reported data on investigations and
recommended discipline clearer and should publicly report its involvement and auditing
Junctions in detail, setting out its assessment of the quality of each investigation and the,
appropriateness of each disposition and disciplinary determination. The Model should be
modified to provide OIPA the express authority to report any resistance by BART PD to
conduct additional investigation to the attention of the Board of Directors, the General
Manager, the BART Police Citizen Review Board, and the public. '

C. Making the Complaint Process Available to All

The Model Should Be Revised to Allow Any Person to File a Complaint with OIPA or the
BART Police Citizen Review Board Against Any BART Employee.

Currently, the Model provides for a very limited universe of persons who may file a complaint
with OIPA or the BART Police Citizen Review Board. Only “victims of on-duty police
misconduct, a victim’s parent or guardian or a witness to misconduct” are permitted to file
complaints against “a BART police officer.” The Model’s limitation on who qualifies as a
complainant has led to circumstances in which OIPA has been handcuffed in its ability to
investigate concerning incidents.

In one recent case, a widow of a person who died in custody did not qualify as a “complainant”
under the Model’s definition. And in another case, a concerning use of force incident that
occurred on a train platform, was captured on video, was uploaded on You Tube, and received
thousands of views but did not qualify for OIPA purview because a qualified complainant did
not file with the Auditor.

There is no rational justification for denying access to any individual who desires to file a
complaint with BART’s oversight entities. In fact, progressive oversight entities even allow
receipt of anonymous complaints. In addition, for the reasons discussed above, OIPA should
have clear authority to investigate complaints against any BART PD employee, not just police
officers. '

Recommendation Five: The Model should be revised to provide any persons the ability to file a
complaint with OIPA and/or the BART Police Citizen Review Board against any BART PD

employee.
D. Enhancing OIPA Investigations

The Model Should Be Revised to Provide OIPA the Discretion to Investigate Any
Complaint Received.

Currently, the Model provides OIPA the authority to investigate “all complaints of allegations of
police officer misconduct regarding unnecessary or excessive use of police force, racial profiling,
sexual orientation bias, sexual harassment, and the use of deadly force, suspicious and wrongful

14



deaths.” It is inconsistent with progressive oversight practices to limit OIPA’s investigative
authority to these categories. Instead of setting out what OIPA “can do,” the Model should
provide OIPA the discretion and authority to investigate any complaint received.

Recommendation Six: The Model should be revised to provide OIPA the ability to investigate
any allegation of misconduct that implicates the policies of BART PD."*

.OIPA and BART PD Should Consider New Investigative Models Designed to Create
Efficiencies and Avoid Duplicative Investigations.

Currently, when OIPA determines to investigate a complaint and proceeds with its investigation,
BART PD conducts its own investigation into the same allegations. This paradigm results in two
investigations of the same allegation with the same purpose — to determine whether the facts
indicate a violation of BART PD policies. In addition to the inefficiencies of having two
investigations being conducted for the same purpose, such an investigative scheme has the
potential of requiring the complainant, witnesses, and involved officers to be interviewed twice,
with any inconsistencies being used to undermine the investigation if a disciplinary
determination is challenged. Moreover, the existence of two investigations with separate review
criteria could lead to disparate results based on the same set of facts. :

For these reasons, we recommend that OIPA and BART PD examine the possibility of
developing an investigative paradigm whereby the Auditor has initial review authority on
complaint allegations made to his Office. In those cases, the Auditor should determine whether
to investigate the case or refer all or some of the allegations to BART PD for investigation. Any
allegations referred to BART PD should be monitored by OIPA. BART PD should defer any

" investigation of allegations assumed by OIPA. Such a paradigm would eliminate the
inefficiencies of two investigations undertaken for the same purpose and the potential negative
consequences discussed above.

Recommendation Seven: OIPA and BART PD should develop an investigative paradigm
whereby OIPA would determine whether to investigate any complaint allegations received
initially by the Office and BART PD would defer investigating allegations that the Auditor
opted to investigate.

OIPA Should Develop an Investigative Handbook.

Too frequently, investigative authority is provided to entities with little guidance or direction on
how to exercise that authority. This has proven true in our experience regarding police agencies
and their internal review processes, and oversight agencies are often susceptible to the same

' To the degree that our recommendations provide clear authority for OIPA to investigate
allegations of misconduct, it may become necessary for the Auditor and BART PD to work out
protocols regarding which entity investigates which allegations. One “bright line” rule that may
work is for the entity that initially receives the allegation to take the investigative lead. We are
confident, however, that OIPA and the Police Department will be able to work out these
jurisdictional questions. :

15



omissions. OIPA apparently falls within this paradigm. While, to its credit, OIPA did create
investigative templates and standard formatting for its investigations, principles of investigation
were not set out in any handbook or manual. Such a handbook is particularly important for
internal investigations of police officers, given the unique substantive elements and the
distinctive framework of statutory requirements set forth in California’s “Police Officer’s Bill of
Rights.”

An investigative handbook that codified basic principles would help ensure that OIPA
investigations were conducted consistent with best internal investigative practices.'”> Moreover,
the development of an investigative handbook should not create a substantial resource burden.
Our experience suggests that, while the handbook should be tailored to OIPA’s oversight
responsibilities for BART PD, universal investigative principles that already exist in handbooks
of other agencies could be easily incorporated into an OIPA version.

Recommendation Eight: OIPA should develop a handbook to provide guidance and
expectations for its internal investigations.

OIPA Should Develop Internal Guidelines Regarding Investigative Timelines for
Completion of an Investigation.

Under California law, in order for discipline to be imposed, a subject police officer generally
must be informed of the agency’s intent to discipline within a year of agency knowledge of the
investigation. For that reason, with some exceptions, internal investigations of police officers
need to be completed within a year of their initiation. While police agencies and oversight
entities imbued with investigative authority recognize this statutory requirement, many recognize
the interest in completing investigations well before the one-year deadline. There are several
reasons for this.

First, if an investigation languishes unnecessarily, the complainant and subject officer will not
receive timely notice of the result. More importantly, because most discipline is intended to be
remedial, a delayed investigation will result in the remediation also being delayed. Nor does the
quality of evidence tend to improve with age; on the contrary, memories fade and a delayed
investigation can undermine the gathering of accurate and complete recollections. Finally,
collateral issues such as consideration for promotion or special assignment can be unnecessarily
delayed for the subject officer during the pendency of unresolved investigations.

Fortunately, OIPA has established a history of being timely in completing its investigations, in
part because of its relatively small caseload. However, because the recommendations set out in

I3 While a qualitative review of OIPA’s internal investigations was not the focus of our inquiry,
we learned of one investigative technique that was concerning, namely the frequent use of
telephone interviews by OIPA. Investigative principles strongly favor in-person interviews
because of the natural limitations that exist if an interview is conducted over the telephone.

16



this report envision a lar ger caseload for OIPA, it is important to establish formal protocols for
maintaining timeliness.'

Recommendation Nine: OIPA should set out investigative timelines in its internal protocols
that not only meet the statutory requirements but also reflect a commitment to prompt and
efficient resolution of cases.

The Model Should Be Amended so that OIPA’s Disciplinary Determinatio_ﬁs Correspond to
Those Utilized by BART PD.

Currently, the Model states that OIPA is to recommend that the matter be “dismissed” at the
conclusion of an OIPA investigation in which the allegations are not supported by the evidence.
Such a finding is not a generally accepted outcome for internal investigations in California.
Rather, police agencies provide a menu of disposition options; for BART PD they are sustained,
not sustained, exonerated or unfounded.

We have been informed that, in practice, OIPA makes findings after its investigation consistent
with the four options available to BART PD. However, in order for the Model to conform to
current practice, the language should be revised accordingly. :

Recommendation Ten: The Model should be clarified to reflect that upon the conclusion of an \
OIPA investigation, OIPA should recommend a finding of sustained, not sustained,
exonerated, or unfounded.

OIPA Should Revise its Closing Letters to Pr0v1de the Complainant as Much Information
as Legally Permissible.

At the conclusion of an internal investigation, OIPA prepares a closing letter informing the
complainant of the results. Consistent with many closing letters we have reviewed, OIPA’s
closing letters are brief and provide little detail about the underlying investigation. Instead, the
notification letter simply reports the outcome without explaining the basis for the decision or the
nature of the investigative process. Complainants whose allegation is not proven (i.e.,
exonerated, unfounded, or not sustained) are left wondering about the thoroughness of the
investigation and the legitimacy of the result.

California law provides restrictions on the type of information that can be provided to a
complainant. Those restrictions, for example, have been interpreted to bar the agency from
providing precise information about the disciplinary action taken. However, there is room under
the law to give complainants more insight into the process. There is no prohibition, for example,
on providing the number of witnesses interviewed, or whether video or audio evidence existed
and was reviewed. By sharing this information, and otherwise tailoring the notification to the
unique circumstances of the case, OIPA could move away from the type of “form letter”
response that can exacerbate disappointment and undermine trust in the process. Accordingly,

16 We iterate that the ability to successfully keep to any internal timelines will be dependent on a
sufficient allocation of resources to OIPA.

17



" OIPA should craft closing letters that offer 1ns1ghts into the process and the means by which the
result was reached.

Recommendation Eleven: OIPA should tailor its closing letters to each individual case and
provide the complainant additional information about the investigative steps taken to reach its
conclusion.

At the End of an Investigation, OIPA Should Consider Offering the Complainant the
Opportunity to View Video Evidence.

Because of the adoption of body-worn cameras and the other video surveillance available at
BART stations, there is a significant likelihood that the conduct complained about may be
captured by video evidence. Video evidence can be significantly dispositive of allegations made -
against police officers. In cases in which video evidence exists and has contributed to the
decision not to sustain an allegation, it is recommended that OIPA offer the complainant the
opportunity to view the video, particularly when the complainant is the alleged victim of the
misconduct.'”

Recommendation Twelve: When a concluded investigation does not result in a sustained
Jinding, OIPA should offer the complainant the opportunity to view any video account of the
incident.

E. Improving the Disposition Process of OIPA
Investigations -

The Model Should Be Revised so that More Transparency is Provided Regarding the
BART Police Citizen Review Board’s Determination on Case Outcomes.

Currently the Model requires the Auditor to submit his findings to the BART Police Citizen
Review Board for consideration. Under current practice, the Review Board considers the
Auditor’s recommendations and votes in closed session regarding whether to agree or disagree
with those recommendations. The Model is silent about how that vote is reported. Current
practice is to report out the results of any vote and the vote count when not unanimous, but the
way in which individual Board members voted is not discernable.

While the case deliberation must remain private in accord with state law, there is no legal
prohibition on publicizing how each Review Board member voted. Moreover, when there is a
dissent, a rationale for the opposing votes should be crafted that could be made public.
Accordingly, and consistent with enhanced transparency, the Model should be revised to
stipulate that such information will be made public in the interest of providing further insight
into the process and outcomes. :

' Competing privacy interests may prevail in cases in which the complainant is not the person
being captured on video and in those situations OIPA should use its discretion on whether to
offer to show the video evidence.

18



There may be occasions where OIPA may be interested in presenting monitored BART PD cases
to the BART Police Citizen Review Board in order to receive input and feedback. Modifying the
Model to provide the Auditor flexibility and discretion to do so is consistent with the document’s
overarching interest in gaining meaningful feedback and input from the community-based
oversight entity.

Recommendation Thirteen: The Model should be revised to instruct that the BART Police
Citizen Review Board’s vote tally by member on the Auditor’s case recommendations and
Sindings should be made public. In cases in which a non-unanimous majority agrees with the
Auditor’s case recommendations and findings, the dissenters should set out their rationale for
diverging from the majority’s determination.

Recommendation Fourteen: The Model should be revised to provide the Auditor the discretion
to present BART PD internal investigations to the BART Police Citizen Review Board in order
to receive input and feedback.

The Model Should Be Revised to Provide More Clarity Regarding Process When BART’s
Chief Disagrees with OIPA/BART Police Citizen Review Board’s Recommendation.

Currently the Model states that, should the BART Chief of Police disagree with the findings and
recommendations of the Auditor and the BART Police Citizen Review Board, the Chief has the
ability to appeal the determination to the General Manager in a confidential personnel meeting.
The Model further states that the General Manager shall then make a decision and convey his/her
decision to the Chief, Auditor, and the BART Police Citizen Review Board. The Model then -
instructs the Chief to implement the General Manager’s decision.

We have been informed that this process has been used at least twice in the six-year existence of
BART’s oversight system. Based on recollection, we learned that in both cases, the Chief
communicated with the General Manager’s Office, pursuant to the Model, and the General
Manager decided to accept the Chief’s recommendations.

As implemented and as the current Model suggests, the appeal process has to date amounted to
an ex parte meeting between the Chief and the General Manager. In that process, the General
Manager only apparently heard the arguments put forth by the Chief; neither the Auditor nor the
BART Police Citizen Review Board had an opportunity to be heard or to rebut the Chief’s
arguments. Moreover, because there was no public accounting of this process, there was no
record of the Chief’s reason for disagreement or the rationale for the General Manager accepting
the Chief’s view over those of the oversight entities.

In common law jurisprudence, most “appeal” processes consist of a forum where the appealing
party submits arguments in writing, all other parties submit papers in response to the moving
party and all parties can be heard in a meeting. Moreover, the decision-maker generally affords
each party the opportunity to respond to any arguments put forward by the “appealing” party at
the meeting. However, under the current plain language of the Model and apparent practice, the
Chief of Police has the apparent ability to present his arguments to the General Manager without
any opportunity for the Auditor or the BART Police Citizen Review Board to be heard.

19



The Model should be revised to explicitly provide for an opportunity for the Auditor and a
representative (e.g., the chair) of the BART Police Citizen Review Board to have seats at the
General Manager’s meeting with the Chief in order to be able to listen to the Chief’s arguments
and to respond to them accordingly.'® Such a process will provide the General Manager the
opportunity to hear from all impacted parties and be able to make a better-informed
determination based on input from each of them. The Model should also be revised to require
the Auditor to publicly report on the outcome of any such appeals consistent with state law.

Recommendation Fifteen: The Model should be changed to require the Chief to timely put
Jorward the reasons and arguments for appeal in writing and provide the Auditor and the
Chair of the BART Police Citizen Review Board the opportunity to respond in writing, to be
present at any appeal meeting, and to respond fo any additional arguments set forth by the
Chief at the appeal meeting. The Model should be further revised to require the General
Manager to set out her/his findings in writing.

Recommendation Sixteen: The Model should be changed to require the Auditor to publicly
report the results of any such appeal meeting consistent with state law confidentiality
requirements.

The Model Should Be Revised so that the Chief of Police Does Not Determine Disputes
Between the Auditor and the BART Police Citizen Review Board on Case Outcomes.

Currently the Model states that in cases in which the BART Police Citizen Review Board
disagrees with the Auditor and fail to come to a consensus, the Review Board and the Auditor
are to appeal the disagreement to the Chief of Police for a determination. - Under the current
model, the Chief then listens to both parties and determines whether to accept either the Review
Board or the Auditor’s findings.

Under the current language of the Model, the potential exists for an untenable situation in which
the head of the agency subject to oversight is empowered to be the initial decision-maker when
the two oversight entities disagree on outcome.!® A more appropriate dispute resolution process
would be for the General Manager to convene a meeting with the Auditor, the Chair of the
BART Police Citizen Review Board, and the Chief of Police. During that meeting, the General
Manager would hear the opposing positions of the oversight entities and render a disposition
determination accordingly.

Recommendation Seventeen: The Model should be changed so that when the BART Police
oversight entities disagree on a case disposition, the General Manager will convene a meeting
and, after receiving input from the oversight entities and the Chief of Police, render a
disposition determination.

'8 Moreover, in order for the envisioned process to effectively work, the Chief must timely
present any appeal to the General Manager.

' We have been informed that, to date, this provision has not been applied in an actual case.
While this is fortunate, the potential for such a circumstance obviously continues to exist.

20



The Model Should Be Modified to Allow Complainants to Appeal to OIPA Any BART PD
Internal Affairs Findings.

Currently the Model provides complainants thé right to appeal to OIPA the findings of an
internal investigation conducted by BART PD regarding “on-duty incidents.” There is scant
rationale for so limiting appellate rights of complainants.

Recommendation Eighteen: The Model should be revised to proi’ide complainants the right to
appeal to OIPA the findings of any internal affairs investigation conducted by BART PD.

Complainants Should Be Informed as a ‘Matter of Course of Their nght to Appeal BART
PD Internal Affairs Findings to OIPA.

We have been informed that the right to appeal BART PD IA findings to OIPA has been used by
complainants only infrequently. One explanation for this may be complainants’ unawareness of
this option. Pursuant to state law, when BART PD closes an internal affairs investigation, it

" informs the complainant of that event by letter. The ¢losing letter could be used as an efficacious
way to make complainants aware of their right to appeal the findings to OIPA.

Recommendation Nineteen: BART and OIPA should work with BART PD to ensure that the
Police Department’s required notification letter to the complainant regarding case outcome
also informs the complainant of his/her right to appeal the finding to OIPA.

Recommendation Twenty: OIPA should regularly report on the number of appeals received
and the results of those appeals.

The Model Should Be Revised to Protect all Disposition and Disciplinary Decisions from
Unprincipled Changes at the End of the Process.

Currently, the Model simply states that any discipline recommended shall be subjected to an
administrative hearing prior implementation to address the “due process” rights of public
employees. However, the Model does not articulate a role for either oversight entity in the post-
disciplinary processes that currently exist.

Prior to the actual imposition of discipline, BART employees have the ability to argue that any
decision is not supported by the evidence or is inappropriate or otherwise unfair. Currently, the
Chief of Police has the ability to modify the initial determination and rescind charges or
discipline as he sees fit. As a result, the potential exists for initial disciplinary findings by the
oversight entities to be entirely undone by the Chief with neither notice nor opportunity for input
from them. The Model’s silence on oversight’s role in post-disciplinary appellate processes
creates a huge hole in the process that must be filled in order to ensure the effectiveness of
oversight.

One easily implemented remedy would be to add a provision to the Model requiring the Chief to
consult with the Auditor prior to modifying any disposition or discipline decision. If the
employee has raised principled reasons during the post-discipline process for a modification, the
Auditor should obviously be open to the Chief’s proposed amendments. Conversely, the Auditor
should have the opportunity to resist changes in outcome that do not seem to have a reasonable

21



basis. If the proposed change is sufficiently significant in its impact on accountability, the
Auditor should request a meeting with the General Manager prior to the change being
effectuated. The Model should also require the Auditor to report on any post-disciplinary
changes in disposition and discipline and whether he agreed with the modifications.*

After a disciplinary determination has been made, BART PD employees have the ability to
appeal to an arbitrator. BART is required in this forum to establish the policy violation and
discipline, and any determination by the arbitrator is binding on the parties. Again, our
experience with other jurisdictions is that prior or during these proceedings, the Chief and entity
may be approached by representatives of the employee with an offer to settle the case. The
settlement offer is usually an agreement by the employee to drop the appeal in exchange for a
lessening or removal of the disciplinary determination. Without the oversight entity’s input in
these settlement offers, the potential exists for a settlement that undermines accountability.

Again, an easy remedy exists. The Model should require input from the Auditor before any
settlement agreement is struck between BART and the appealing employee. Should the Auditor
determine that the settlement offer was unreasonable and undermined accountability, the Auditor
should be able to convene a meeting with the General Manager for a final determination
regarding the settlement offer. Finally, the Model should require the Auditor to report on any
disciplinary determinations that are settled, whether he was consulted, and whether he agreed
with the decision to settle the case.

The arbitration process itself is beyond the authority of OIPA but nonetheless warrants attention
as an important influence on its work. Arbitration hearings test the strength of internal
investigations and disposition determinations and can uncover potential weaknesses in those
processes. In addition, an arbitrator has the authority to rescind even termination cases and order
the agency to return the police officer to work — a power that is worthy of public awareness and
scrutiny.

During our review, we were informed of at least one instance in which a BART police officer
was returned to work after being initially terminated by the Department for a serious violation.
However, because the Model sets out no role for its oversight entity in these processes, the
Auditor did not review or assess the reason for the decision to return this terminated employee to
BART employ. As importantly, the Model did not contemplate a public accounting of this
decision as part of the Auditor’s transparency responsibilities. This should be addressed.

Recommendation Twenty-One: The Model should be revised to require the Chief of Police to
consult with the Auditor prior to modifying any initial disposition or disciplinary
determinations.  The Model should provide the Auditor an appeal process to the General
Manager should he believe that any modification would result in a serious erosion of

2% We were informed of one case in which a BART police officer originally received notice that -
he was to be terminated for a serious infraction that was investigated by the Police Department.
However, that decision was reversed during the grievance process and the employee was
returned to work. The appropriateness of this decision notwithstanding, this is the type of case
that OIPA should be reporting on publicly.

22



accountability. The Model should require the Auditor to publicly report on any modification
of an initial disposition or disciplinary modification and whether he agreed with the
modification. .

Recommendation Twenty-Two: The Model should be revised to require BART to apprise
OIPA of any offers to settle cases after discipline has been imposed and provide the Auditor an
opportunity for consultation. The Model should provide the Auditor the opportunity to appeal
any intention to settle the matter to the General Manager should the Auditor find that the
settlement would amount to a serious erosion of individual accountability. The Model should
require the Auditor to publicly report on any cases settled at the post-discipline stage and
whether OIPA agreed with the decision to settle.

Recommendation Twenty-Three: The Model should be revised to require the Auditor to report
on any arbitration determinations that modify or rescind initial disposition and disciplinary
decisions and to evaluate the reasons for any modification. The Model should require the
Auditor to identify any systemic issues that formed the basis for any modification and work
with BART PD to remediate those issues.

OIPA Should Report Publicly the Results of Any Completed Investigation.

While currently OIPA provides some information regarding completed investigations, we
recommend that its reporting be modified to include a narrative of the allegation, the results of
the investigation, whether the BART Police Citizen Review Board agreed with OIPA’s
recommendation, whether the Chief agreed with the proposed disposition, and whether there
were any post-disciplinary changes to the initial disposition. In most cases, the reporting should
begin when the investigation is initiated, with additional information being included as the
process moves forward. Consistent with state law requirements, identifying information about
the case or officers involved should not be included.

Recommendation T wenty-Four: OIPA should publicly report on every investigation from
inception to conclusion, providing information about the case result and the degree to which
OIPA and the BART Police Citizen Review Board recommendations were implemented.

F. Additional Risk Management Role for OIPA.

OIPA Should Be Expressly Authorized to Review Any Claim, Civil Complaint, and Law
Suit Settlements and Judgments.

When an individual believes he or she has been aggrieved by police officers, the person can file a
complaint with the agency and/or oversight entity. Some persons, however, seek relief through
the courts and file a claim or lawsuit instead. Depending on how the concern is received, the
entity’s response may be entirely different. Complaints filed with the agency or oversight entity
are investigated as personnel matters, while the evidence-gathering for litigation has a different
and inherently defensive orientation. We understand this dichotomy but see it differently — or at
least more broadly. Among other things, a claim or lawsuit is essentially a “citizen complaint
with a price tag attached.” If a jurisdiction handles these matters solely in litigation mode, it may
overlook important questions of potential mlsconduct or resist the kind of invéstigation that
might produce unwanted evidence.

23



For that reason, leading oversight entities routinely review claims and lawsuits to ensure that
such an appropriate internal inquiry does occur in addition to other responses. In a similar vein,
oversight entities monitor civil litigation to identify potential individual officer performance
issues as well as systemic issues that may be unsurfaced. In cases resulting in significant
settlements or adverse judgments, the oversight entity is often involved with the agency in
developing a corrective action plan designed to remediate any of those issues.

In large part, because the Model did not specify a role for OIPA in these matters, it has not been
involved in reviewing the civil litigation from an oversight and risk management perspective.
OIPA should expressly be provided such authorization so that it can perform this important
function.

Recommendation Twenty-Five: OIPA should be provided authority to review claims and
laws uits to ensure allegations of misconduct are thoroughly investigated.

Recommendation Twenty-Six: OIPA should review any significant settlements and adverse
Judgments involving BART PD performance and work with BART PD to develop corrective
actions intended to remediate any systemic issues.

Recommendation Twenty-Seven: OIPA should report publicly on its work in reviewing civil
litigation.

G. Developing a Mediation Program
OIPA Should Redouble its Efforts to Develop a Robust Mediation Program.

The Model expressly sets out a role for the Auditor in developing a mediation program. It states
expressly that OIPA “shall develop a voluntary alternative dispute resolution process for
resolving those complaints which may most appropriately be corrected or modified through less
formal means.” The Model also contemplated that the BART Police Citizen Review Board and
BART Police Associations would be part of the development process.

Nonetheless, in four years there has yet to be a case that has gone through a mediation process.
While a few individual instances have come close, participants withdrew from the process at the
eleventh hour.

Mediation — where involved parties can safely and productively articulate different viewpoints
with a neutral arbiter — provides a process consistent with contemporary principles of restorative
and procedural justice. The key to developing an effective mediation program is to make the
process worthwhile to all participants, and departments have often faced challenges in getting
officers to see the benefits. While these challenges are real, the experience of agencies in other
jurisdictions shows they are surmountable. OIPA should examine these other jurisdictions to
gain ideas for achieving a successful program. BART PD also should be more engaged in
working with OIPA and the Police Associations to consider additional incentives for police
officers to engage in mediation.

24



Recommendation Twenty-Eight: OIPA should redouble its efforts to create a mediation
process that is attractive to complainants and officers and provides an effective alternative
dispute resolution process.

H. Ensuring Prompt OIPA Notification of All Critical
Incidents

OIPA Should Receive Notification as to All Critical Incidents.

Currently, the Model provides that the Auditor shall be notified immediately regarding an
officer-involved shooting that results in the death or serious bodily injury to a member of the
public or a police officer so that the Auditor can respond in real time to the investigative scene.
The current language of the Model restr1ct1vely limits notlﬁcatlon of OIPA to only uses of
deadly force that result in death or serious bodily injury.?! While a shooting that does not result
in serious injury or loss of life has less significant consequences for the involved parties, a non-
hit shooting or one that results in minor injury still involved a decision by the officer to use
deadly force, and that decision is worthy of the same scrutiny. Additionally, the notification
protocol does not expressly include other uses of force that result in death or serious injury, or
incidents in which an off-duty officer may take police action and use deadly force.

We have been informed that, to the credit of BART PD, it has been regularly informing OIPA of
a broader set of critical incidents that do not fit squarely within the Model’s language. While
BART PD’s voluntary approach is praiseworthy, the Model should be modified so that it is clear
to all that notification of OIPA should occur for a broader category of incidents.

Recommendation Twenty-Nine: The Model should be enhanced to ensure that OIPA is timely
notified of any critical incident including all officer-involved shootings (on duty or off duty)
regardless of whether the use of deadly force resulted in injury or death, any use of force
resulting in significant injury, and any in-custody death.

I. Enhancing OIPA’s Footprint Regarding Use of

Force
LY

The Auditor Should Be Regularly Reviewing Uses of Force by BART Police Officers.

In order for peace officers to perform their public safety function they are provided unique
authority. In addition to being provided the power to arrest, police are provided the authority to
use force when necessary. This authority, however, must be strictly limited and its exercise
‘carefully scrutinized in light of the Constitution, the law, and internal policy. As a result, police
officers are required to report when they use force, and command staff of the agency has a
responsibility to review the policy and legal appropriateness of these incidents.

Because of the inherent seriousness of force incidents, and the profound ramifications of misuse
or abuse of this police power, independent oversight should be significantly involved in

2! The subheading of the Model is entitled “On-Duty Officer Involved Shooting Incidents,”
suggesting that there is no need to notify OIPA of off-duty uses of deadly force.

25



monitoring force. Currently, except for some officer-involved shootings, OIPA’s review of force
incidents is limited to situations when a “qualified person” complains of force. As a result, both
significant and minor force incidents escape the purview of BART’s overs1ght entity and are not
subjected to outside independent review.

OIPA should be afforded the opportunity to review every force incident and determine whether
the force should be the subject of an internal affairs investigation. OIPA should also review the
force to determine whether other issues are implicated for the involved officers or the
Department as a whole. OIPA should work with BART PD to ensure that each force incident is

-reviewed with an eye toward identifying systemic issues such as training, equipment,
supervision, and policy.

We also understand that BART PD convenes use of force review boards that examine significant
force incidents. OIPA should regularly participate in those review boards to provide an
independent pers;pective and to help assess individual performance and conduct as well as
1dent1fy systemic issues. Finally, OIPA should regularly report on its involvement in the force
review process and on any critical incidents. :

Recommendation T hirty: The Model should be revised to provide OIPA the authority for and
responsibility of reviewing use of force incidents by BART PD, regardless of whether the
incident is a subject of a complaint.

Recommendation T hlrty-One OIPA should regularly partzczpate in BART PD’s use of force
review boards.

Recommendation Thirty-Two: OIPA should report publicly on its use of force review program
including the outcome of BART PD’s use of force review boards.

Recommendation Thirty-Three: OIPA should report publicly on the mtemal review of any
officer-involved shootings, in-custody deaths, or serious uses of force.

J. Mapping Out a Significant Role for the Auditor in
BART PD’s Early Identification System

OIPA Should Be Involved in the Early Identification System.

We have been informed that BART PD continues to develop an early identification system. This
system is intended to use relevant data to identify police officers who may be displaying patterns
of conduct that need to be addressed before they become a problem for the officer, the agency,
and/or the public. For example, an early identification system may reveal an officer who uses
force significantly more frequently than his or her counterparts on the shift — a potential “red
flag” that could make further scrutiny worthwhile. The resultant intervention is intended to be
remedial rather than punitive and might use mentoring, closer supervision, or other non-punitive
strategies tailored to help mitigate or fix identified concerns.

Our experience is such programs are not only potentially beneficial, but also that independent
oversight can be a helpful resource in their development, implementation, and execution.
Currently, there is no role for OIPA in the Department’s early identification system; we are

26



confident that setting out a distinct role for an independent voice will strengthen the system that
BART PD has been developing.

Recommendation Thirty-Four: The Model should be revised to provide authority and
responsibility for OIPA to regularly participate in BART PD’s early identification process.

Recommendation Thirty-Five: OIPA should report regularly on the status of the Department’s
early identification system and resulfs.

K. Increasing OIPA’s Role as Auditor

The Model Should Be Modified to Increase the Auditing Function of the Independent
Police Auditor.

While the professional oversight entity for BART PD is named the Independent Police Auditor,
most of its work to date has been not auditing but investigating complaints. This incongruity
stems, in large part, because the Model does not clearly define the auditing role for the
Auditor.”*As a result, OIPA has not conducted systemic audits of vital police functions. Other
jurisdictions with robust oversight regularly conduct audits of their responsible police agencies,
including the following areas:

Recruiting and hiring practices

Background investigations

Supervisor performance

‘Email, MDC and texting reviews

Academy and in-service training

Performance evaluations

Promotional and special assignment processes

Potential bias-based policing in stops or searches

Stop and frisk practices

Complaint intake procedures

Appropriate use of the disciplinary matrix

Transparency and public reporting of data by the police agency
Crisis intervention practices and/or interactions with the homeless
Police Department outreach

Use of lock-ups _
Assessing compliance with precepts set out in pillars of 21* Century Policing

2 For example, one lost opportunity was that no role was created in the Model for OIPA to audit
and report on BART PD’s progress on implementing the recommendations set forth by the
NOBLE report referred to above.

27



These oversight entities publicly report on the results of those audits.”> Those same jurisdictions
often monitor systems audits conducted by the police agencies themselves and publicly report on
the results of those audits.

The Model should be revised so that OIPA is provided authority and responsibility to conduct
systemic audits of BART PD functions that impact the quality of the Department and the service
provided to its public. Similarly, the Model should provide OIPA the authority and
responsibility of monitoring internal audits conducted by BART PD and to publicly report the
results of those audits.?*

Recommendation Thirty-Six: The Model should be revised to provide OIPA the authority,
access to data and records; staffing, and responsibility to conduct systemic audits of BART PD
Junctions that impact the quality of the Department and the service provided to its public.

. Recommendation Thirty-Seven: The Model should be revised to provide OIPA the authority
and responsibility to monitor any audits conducted by BART PD regarding similar issues and
report publicly the results of those audits.

L. Expanding OIPA’s Role in Policy Development

The Model Should Explicitly Authorize OIPA to Be Involved in BART PD-Initiated Policy
Development. ' '

The current Model expressly authorizes the Auditor to develop, specific recommendations
concerning “General Orders and Directives, procedures, practices, and training” intended to
improve “professionalism, safety, effectiveness, and accountability” of BART PD employees.
To its credit, OIPA has made policy recommendations — for example, it most recently suggested
changes to the way in which BART PD deals with panhandlers. However, OIPA has had little
involvement in policy and training changes initiated by BART PD.? Our experience is that the
most efficacious method of policy development is to have the police incorporate the feedback
and input of oversight entities at an early stage, rather than the presentation of a “finished”
product for review at the end of the process.

2 We were informed that the recently retired Chief requested OIPA to conduct an audit of
background investigation files, but that the project was halted because of disagreement regarding
the Auditor’s access and authority.

>4 The increased role we recommend for OIPA in auditing, reporting, and real-time monitoring of
BART PD IA cases will likely result in a need to provide additional resources to the Auditor.

The Board of Directors, the General Manager, and OIPA should work jointly to determine the
degree to which additional resources will be needed to perform these additional functions.”

2 For example, BART PD recently developed language intended to modify its use of force
policy; OIPA had no involvement in its initial development.

28



Recommendation Thirty-Eight: The Model should be revised to pfovide OIPA the authority
and responsibility to be involved in any policy or training initiatives being developed by BART
PD and to report publicly on any reforms.

The Model Should Explicitly Authorize OIPA to Forward Any Policy Recommendaﬁons to
the General Manager and/or the Board of Directors.

While the Model currently authorizes the BART Police Citizen Review Board to forward any of
its policy recommendations to the General Manager and/or the Board of Directors, no similar
express language exists for OIPA. While we have been informed that in practice OIPA has been
provided the ability to forward policy recommendations it has made to these entities, it would be
advisable to revise the Model to expressly recognize this authority.

Recommendation Thirty-Nine: The Model should be revised to provide OIPA the express
authority to forward policy recommendations to the General Manager and/or Board of
Directors. In situations in which OIPA’s recommendations are not accepted by BART PD,
OIPA should consider whether to forward its recommendatzons Jor further consideration to
BAR T ’s governing entity.

OIPA Should Ensure that the Public Is Informed on Status and Outcome of Policy
Recommendations.

Over the years, OIPA has developed thoughtful policy recommendations. However, there is no
“record” of the degree to which BART PD accepted and integrated those recommendations. For
example, in its 2012-13 annual report, OIPA set out in detail recommended changes to BART
PD’s recording policy. However, in the subsequent annual reports, there is no follow up on
whether BART PD accepted or rejected each of the recommendations.

Recommendation Forty: In its annual report, OIPA should include an update on any previous
outstanding recommendations and the degree to which the recommendatwns were endorsed
by the Rewew Board and accepted by BART PD.

M. Ensuring Integration of Oversight in BART PD’s
Policies and Practices '

BART PD’s General Orders Should Include the Authorities and Responsibilities of its
Oversight Entities and a Provision Recognizing the Duty to Cooperate with those Oversight
Entities.

While the current General Orders and Directives of BART PD include some references to the
existence and responsibility of the Independent Police Auditor and the BART Police Citizen
Review Board, the specific responsibilities set out by the Model do not appear to be incorporated
into those Orders. BART PD General Orders should make specific reference to oversight and its
responsibilities. Moreover, BART PD’s Orders should inform its members of their responsibility
to cooperate and respect the role of its oversight entities.

29



Recommendation Forty-One: BART and OIPA should work with BART PD to ensure that
BART PD’s General Orders incorporate the authority of its oversight entities and the duty of
members to cooperate in the execution of that authovrity.

N. Ensuring Regular Dialogue Between Oversight and
BART Police Associations

OIPA and the BART Police Citizen Review Board Should Develop Mechanisms to Ensure
At Least Annual Meets with the BART Police Associations.

The Model instructs both OIPA and the BART Police Citizen Review Board to meet
“periodically” and “seek input” from the BART Police Managers Association and the BART
Police Officers Association. We have been informed that while meetings may have occurred
during the first year and have been subsequently scheduled, actual meetings over the past few
years have been sporadic at best. We believe that there is value in having periodic meetings
between the oversight entities and those tasked with representing the interests of BART police
officers. For that reason, a meeting schedule should be devised by both oversight entities to
ensure there is an attempt to meet with both Police Associations at least annually. OIPA and the
Citizen Review Board should annually report on any meetings that are held with the Police
Associations.

Recommendation Forty-Two: OIPA and the BART Police Citizen Review Board should
attempt to schedule a meeting at least annually with the two BART Police Associations. The
oversight entities should annually report on whether such meetings occurred.

O. Clarifying the Relationship Between OIPA and the |
BART Police Citizen Review Board

The Model Should Be Revised to Provide Further Guidance Regarding the Relationship
Between OIPA and the BART Police Citizen Review Board.

Consistent with oversight trends nationwide, BART’s oversight system includes a professional
oversight office and an oversight board appointed from the community. That paradigm has
resulted in OIPA being able to develop an expertise in police accountability practices adapted to
a police agency designed to police an extensive transit system and a Board selected from the
BART community that has a meamngful V01ce and role in both individual cases and systemic
reform.

While it is laudatory that the drafters of the Model recognized the value in having both police
practices experts and community members involved in providing oversight, more clarity is
needed in defining the relationship between the two entities. The Model should expressly
recognize that OIPA and the BART Police Citizen Review Board are to be considered as entities
with complementary oversight roles that are independent of each other.

Much of the source of confusion about the complementary oversight entities is that the Model
assigns the BART Police Citizen Review Board administrative tasks to OIPA. To eliminate this
overlap, BART should consider creating an Executive Assistant position to provide

30



administrative support for the BART Police Citizen Review Board. The Executive Assistant
would assume the administrative functions now set out in Chapter 1-05 of the Model including:

Records of Review Board meetings

Preparation of Review Board reports

Review Board staff support and facilitation of training

Review Board community outreach and communicating with the public
Application process for open Review Board seats

In addition to the administrative tasks expressly set out in the Model, the Executive Assistant
could also be responsible for assisting in developing the Review Board meeting agenda,
arranging Review Board training, coordinating Review Board outreach, assisting with Review
Board reporting responsibilities, and providing any addltlonal administrative support for the
BART Police Citizen Review.Board.

The Model currently states that the BART Police Citizen Review Board “shall assess and report
to the Board of Directors’ Personnel Committee on the performance and effectiveness” of OIPA.
We have been informed that this provision of the Model has not been implemented in practice.
The Auditor is subject to an annual performance review by the BART Board of Directors, the
appointing authority. In assessing that performance, the Board of Directors could and should
solicit input from several stakeholders, including the BART Police Citizen Review Board.
However, the Model should be modified to clarify that the BART Police Citizen Review Board
is not the “assessor” of the Auditor’s performance but simply another important source for input
to the Board of Directors.

Similarly, when a BART Police Citizen Review Board seeks reappointment to a new term, the
appointing Director should seek input from OIPA along with other important stakeholders on the
performance of that Review Board member. ~

Recommendation Forty-Three: The Model should be revised to expressly clarify the
independent yet complementary roles of the BART Police Citizen Review Board and OIPA.

Recommendation Forty-Four: BART should consider creating an Executive Assistant position
Jor the BART Police Cttzzen Review Board to assist wu‘h admmtstratlve tasks now assigned to
OIPA.

Recommendation Forty-Five: The Model should be revised to acknowledge that the BART
Police Citizen Review Board is one potential source of information when the Board of
Directors is seeking input on the performance of OIPA.

Recommendation Forty-Six: The Model should be revised to provide OIPA the opportunity for
input when a BART Police Citizen Review Board member seeks reappointment.

P. Clarifying and Enhancing the Roles of the BART
Police Citizen Review Board

31



The Model should provide clarification of BART Police Citizen Review Board Member
Qualifications.

Currently the Model disallows from service on the BART Police Citizen Review Board any
person “currently employed in a law enforcement capacity” or any “relative of current and ,
former BART Police Department personnel.” While prohibiting relatives of current and former
BART PD personnel from serving, the Model does not expressly disallow former BART PD
personnel themselves from membership on the BART Police Citizen Review Board. The Model
should be revised to correct this incongruity.

Recommendation Forty-Seven: The Model should clarify that former BART PD personnel are
ineligible to serve on the BART Police Citizen Review Board.

BART Police Citizen Review Board Members Should Have Requisite Training in Order to
Fulfill Their Responsibilities.

By selecting BART Police Citizen Review Board members from the community, BART
oversight benefits from each member’s life experience and perspective. However, modern day
policing is increasingly complex, and BART PD itself has a unique role in providing public
safety for a large transit system. As detailed above, the BART Police Citizen Review Board has
been provided considerable authority, including the ability to consider and vote on the Auditor’s
recommendations regarding specific complaint investigation dispositions.?® This authority
carries with it a heavy burden of responsibility and the BART Police Citizen Review Board
cannot effectively exercise that authority regarding investigation dispositions without each
member undertaking a careful read of each case.”’

Accordingly, in order to effectively carry out BART Police Citizen Review Board duties, each
member must be afforded a basic understanding of progressive police practices, constitutional
and state law, principles of civilian oversight, and BART PD’s distinctive challenges. The
training should also focus on how, as expressly stated in the Model, the BART Police Citizen
Review Board fulfills the “essential community involvement component” piece of the system
and how it can most effectively fulfill this role. To these ends, a training curriculum developed
for each new Review Board member, including ride-alongs, should be devised. In addition,
Review Board members should get additional training at least semi-annually, perhaps as an
agenda item during regularly scheduled meetings. As noted above, we recommend assignment
of an Executive Assistant to the Review Board; that individual could be responsible, with input
from the existing BART Police Citizen Review Board and the Auditor, for developing and
maintaining the BART Police Citizen Review Board’s training program.

%% The Board of Directors should continue to be mindful of the weighty responsibilities
demanded of each Review Board member when making future appointments.

27 Review Board members who have not had the opporfunity to read the investigation and
accomparnying materials should recuse themselves from deliberations and voting on the
Auditor’s recommendation for that particular case.

32



Recommendation Forty-Eight: A Training Curriculum Should Be Devised For Incoming
BART Police Citizen Review Board Members, and In-Service Training Slzould Be Provided at
Least Semi-Annually to Current Review Board Members.

Rotating the Location of the BART Police Citizen Review Board Meetings Would Allow
the Review Board to Reach More Communities.

As noted above, BART PD is responsible for providing public safety for a transit system to
traverses multiple jurisdictions over a wide-ranging area. Yet the BART Police Citizen Review
Board responsible for oversight over this region only meets at one location. Community
members served must travel to this location to attend meetings and provide public comment.
While this challenge is ameliorated by the transit-friendly locale of the meetings, it would
demonstrate the Review Board’s responsiveness to other communities to rotate the meeting
locations. While such a rotation may provide some logistical challenges it appears worth
exploring whether those hurdles can be overcome

Recommendation Forty-Nine: The BART Police Citizen Review Board should consider
rotating its meetings to a wider array of locales served by BART.

The BART Police Citizen Review Board’s Outreach Should Be More Vibrant.

The current Model notes that the existence of the BART Police Citizen Review Board effectuates
the essential community involvement component of the oversight system. To advance that
crucial role, the Model expects that the BART Police Citizen Review Board will lead in outreach
efforts to the community, particularly constituencies impacted most by policing, including
communities of color, immigrant communities, and individuals with psychiatric disabilities.
While the Review Board’s regularly scheduled public meetings fulfills that role to some degree,
the Model certainly contemplated that more could and should be done in the outreach arena. We
gather from the BART Police Citizen Review Board’s annual reports that outreach has been
largely undertaken by a few members. However, outreach should be an expected respon31b111ty
of all members of the Review Board.

To that end, before a Review Board member is appointed, the appointing authority should
emphasize the outreach expectation to the potential appointee. Moreover, at one year intervals,
the BART Police Citizen Review Board should place an item on the agenda in which each
member publicly reports on the outreach efforts he/she has undertaken. The degree to which a
member has engaged in public outreach should be considered by the appointing authority in
determining whether to reappoint the member to an additional term. The Executive Assistant
(recommended elsewhere) for the BART Police Citizen Review Board should track the outreach
efforts of individual members and the Review Board as a whole.

Recommendation Fifty: Procedures should be adopted by the BART Police Citizen Review
Board intended to ensure that the Model’s commitment to outreach is achieved. To that end,
each incoming member should be alerted to outreach expectations by his/her appointing
authority. On an-annual basis, each Review Board member should report publicly on the
outreach he/she has undertaken the previous year. Finally, the degree of each member’s



public outreach will be considered prior to reappointing the Review Board member to an
additional term.

The Model Should Provide More Flexibility for “Good Cause” Meeting Absences.

Currently, the Model calls for removal of any BART Police Citizen Review Board member who
misses more than three regularly scheduled meetings per year. While the interest in having
Review Board members attend meetings is well-placed, there may be situations where a member
has “good cause” to miss a meeting. For that reason, it would be advisable to provide each '
Director with flexibility to excuse his/her appointed Review Board member’s absence for good
~cause. Such excusal would not count against the absence limit requirements.

Recommendation Fifty-One: The Model should be revised to authorize excused absences JSor
good cause that would not count against the absence limitations.

Q. Providing Increased Transparency Authority for
BART Oversight

‘The BART Oversight Entities Should Be Expressly Authorized to Make Public Statements.

It is not uncommon for officer-involved shootings, in-custody deaths, 51gn1ﬁcant force incident
or allegations of misconduct to engender immediate controversy and concern, particularly if part
of the incident is captured on videotape. In those cases, the existence of oversight entities can
assist in tempering that concern with the recognition that there will be an independent review and
-accounting of the incident at the conclusion of any investigation. In recognition of this,
jurisdictions have provided their oversight entities full rein to make public statements about their
role in the wake of controversial incidents.

We have been informed that the Auditor has interpreted the Model to allow him the authority to
make public statements about his work and BART policing issues. That being said, the Model
should be revised to expressly authorize the Auditor freedom to make such statements.
Moreover, the Auditor should be free to speak with any media outlets about any aspect of
oversight and in conjunction with any public report or findings. The BART Police Citizen
Review Board’s ability to make timely public statements provides logistical challenges since the
Review Board meets as a body only periodically. However, the BART Police Citizen Review
Board should consider authorizing the Chair to make public statements on behalf of the Review
Board regarding role and process when an exigency to respond is presented.

Recommendation Fifty-Two: The Model should be revised to expressly authorize OIPA and
the BART Police Citizen Review Board to make public statements about their oversight work.

R. Ensuring Periodic Review of BART Oversight
BART’s Oversight Entities Should Be Reviewed on a Regular Basis.

As noted above, the current Model provided for an assessment of oversight after one year of
implementation. Because the world of oversight is new and constantly evolving, there should be
a commitment to a periodic review of BART s oversight entities on a going forward basis.

34



Recommendation Fifty-Three: The Model should be revised to call for periodic reviews of
BART’s oversight entities at a minimum of four-year intervals.

35



Independent Review of the BART Pohce OverSIght
~ Structure

July 2017

ADDENDUM

Ol

GROUP

Michael J. Gennaco
323 821 0586 _
7142 Trask Avenue
Playa del Rey, CA 90293
OIRGroup.com

Aaron B. Zisser
628 400 1203
Oakland, CA

civilrightsconsulting.com



INDEPENDENT REVIEW OF THE BART
OVERSIGHT STRUCTURE: ADDENDUM

The Model Should Set Out With More Clarity Procedures for Replacement of BPCRB
Members. | _

A question has arisen since the issuance of our initial June 2017 report, and we were asked to
address an issue surrounding the replacement of BPCRB members. The specific question was
whether a new BART Director may, prior to the end of the BPCRB member’s term of
appointment, replace the BPCRB member appointed by that BART Director’s predecessor. The
Model is currently silent on this specific issue. Chapter 2-04 of the Model does address removal
for cause “including but not limited to breach of ethics, confidentiality, or criminal conviction”
and allows for removal by a resolution adopted by the majority of the Board of Directors. As
stated in our Report, Chapter 2-04 of the Model also calls for automatic termination of a BPCRB
member after three Board meeting absences in a calendar year.!

Whether the Model currently provides authority for an incoming Director to remove a BPCRB
member unilaterally is not specifically addressed by the current Model. The fact that the Model
does not provide clear guidance on this issue suggests a need to amend the Model in order to do
so. Because our project was focused on improving the Model through revisions, we offer our
thoughts below.

From a civilian oversight perspective, modifying the Model to expressly allow a Director to
remove a BPCRB member appointed by his/her predecessor could be seen by some as
undermining the independence of the BPCRB. If a BPCRB member can be replaced by an
incoming Director for no reason, that BPCRB member may be concerned that making decisions
on individual cases, policies, or systemic issues that are controversial could then be a basis for
his/her removal. Such a tenuous situation may also dissuade otherwise interested individuals
from seeking appointment to the BPCRB.

On the other hand, the BPCRB’s strength and authority arise in part from the support and
confidence of the elected Directors in the member and the current Model appointment process
clearly provides Directors the ability to each select a member with virtually unfettered discretion.
Consistent with that discretion, a persuasive argument could be made that an incoming Director
should have the authority to replace a BPCRB member with a new appointee who better reflects
the values, interests, and philosophy of the incoming Director. '

In sum, the Model should be clarified to specifically speak to this issue. Potential options to
modifying the Model would be to expressly prohibit removal of BPCRB members except for
unexcused absences or good cause or provide incoming Directors a brief window such as 60
days during which they could replace the outgoing Director’s appointee. Requiring the incoming

*In our initial report, we have recommended modification of this provision in order to provide
relief for excused absences.



Director to act within a brief period of time reduces the perception that a BPCRB member is
being removed because the Director is unhappy with actions taken in a particular matter.

Recommendation Fifty-Four: The Model should be revised to clarify whether a newly-seated
BART Director may unilaterally remove his or her predecessor’s BPCRB appointee and

specify any time limits for doing so.



S

adedirt

; VIO 104 1o0d
-E_ ho Do uipWw m£ mo_ U_30>> s sjow:

A3 10103 Buntey Aynousa

‘Yool

PINOM S[DLBJOW JO MBIADI 10} BUlY [DUOI}
-IPPD 95D YDIYM U ‘UOISSaS PBso|D Ul
spodes Bupouow D3y O} PBZUOYLND S|
Apod JPy) $sjUn g3Dd¢g 104 oo suojo
-pupjs oN ‘suoypbBisaul palsjdulod Bul
-Uadoai 1o/pup Buisiaal v Ag jusds swiy
SZIWIUIW PINOD Y1 VIO YHM SUOISSNISIP
lsiyiBusi/elows uy sBobus o} v} alinbai
pInoMm JI UBnoyjy *ssulppsp uolsidwod
PaoIs|e22D PUD YdI0 AQ papusdxs
Bl [oUOIPPL 8Q pinom jopdull UIDW

T TMBIASI
[ousibw /poo}
HOM gyDOdg uo
1ooduwl 8jqissod

| ~X9 [pUolIPPY

§ -00;m®>c_.“co.%o Buidoos

“uol}

- syoudoiddo syj pup

“MBIABS [DUILIND 10} ABULOJ

IV, IDUISICT 8 O} POPIOM

1710} '8 PINOYS JOHOW O

Isteym Buipinbai suoisio
“9piUIPA[OAUI'D] PINOUS
L Bulouow Bull-p8l

0} 5AOWI VIO PINOUS

>oc®30mc U} 0} PPD ADWIPUD SMBIAIS.

"Sajl ojpND Yo4odsiq o) mt.o:_om_ vdiojo

Ul <n__O mc_bcmto 8ID occom;ma UIOMS.

o >>®_>®\_ _C:®+OE.Y

‘Pauyep Jseq
JHUN UMOUY
-un (opdu D
-Si4 raulll HJois
V| pasnalou

"BWIIBA0 (g
-1ssod Buipn|o
-ul ‘1S Bul
-ISIX® 10} Ul
10 ainjipuad

*sseo0ud sy} Bul

-18|dwiod Qd 13vg o} Joud
suoylsodsip jo ssausjoud
-olddo pup suoypbiysaa
-Uj JO YiBualis syt uo suoll
-ppuswWWIODal Buusio
‘Buuouow ,;swi-jpal,, o}
SUOHDBSOAUL SHOHD Jou
~IB{ul dd 1yvg 10 uolduny
Buuoguow sii BuiApouwi

XS |DUCHIPPY

.mE_tm>o Qg

JSPISUOD PINOUS VdIO

pliusiod |0 o) puL ad

.. .E<m 10: mmm>o_o_rcw LLIOMS .

| cuou o) spusixe. Aoy

: A0SV IO Jo-edoos ayy -

IDU} IOB[O SXOW Of PSSIA
=91 8Q PINOYS [9POW BY1

XIHLVIA NOILV.INIWNITdNI VIO — JUNLINYLS LHOISYIAO FD110d LHVE FHL 40 MIIATY LNIANIdIANI

. AP o U0:
,. co bmr:mc\s SIDYIC UIOMS
: mc_>_o>c_ {ONpUoDSILL:




afegd]e

"yibus| Bulssw pup-ewy

deid Buyaaui of SPPL Y21um gyDdg S}

AQ pipay $8s00 JO JBAUINU B} 850810

“MBIASI [OLSIOW

“pup sy deid-
‘BsDBIDUY AJUDD
-JIuBis pjnoo
puD g¥Ddg

© AQ piD8Yy suoi

-plussaid pod-
-01'8AlIDBISSAUL.

uolssas paso|o

-Ul 0S| PINOD.SIY[ "V dIO:AQ Paionpuod -40-J8guINU
suonpBbussAUl juspusdapul JO Jsquunu .8y} espald
8y} aspsIoUl of [olusiod 8y} oY SIU) | SOA Ul PINOD SIYL -

"oBpNBUD| [opow o} aBubyD D ssinbai

uoippuUsWWODal 8y} 40 uod AU :BJON

‘29BN

-UD| [oPOoW Bulsixe ayj sibjolA JoU 590p

Buiodes yons pup spodey Alyjuow

Ul sseo0ud Bulojiuow sy Buipipb

-1 [IB}ap [puoppL podal o} unBag spy

APL3JIO PUD UDD VIO ‘@BDNBUD| |opow
0} 8BUDYD D SOPN|DU] UoKDPUSWIWODS] | *MOIASI
SUL UBNOUYIY "Bl 4DIS VIO HUDDUBIS [PUS{OW 10 PO
asnbal pinos uoyoBlsaAu] | yons Buj -IoOM g¥0dg
-pipBal spoda pajiviep jo uoybindaiy S9A uo joodwit oN

Aoy 10j0) Suney Aynoygia

- “aunbar Ajqissod

- Msyrss

-Oljo Josigns
10} smalAIay]

. Ainp-uo Jusnb
. sy elowiu
. HosalIm v dIO
. AgpeipBisea
- “-upspuID|dwoD
. - jossgquunu-eyy
Ul 8sD8IDUFUY

| TETITIINEYNGY
| “|puoiippo.

| -ursaypbisaAul

*SWIISA0 Big
~Issod-Buipn|
. =Ut “Yjois Buj
-ISIX© 10§ |ull}
30 ainypusd
-XS |DUOHIDPDY

=) elle!

“Wis Qd 1¥vg Aup jsumbo
plnog msiasy usziiD
82ll0d [ava 8y} Jo/pup
VdIO Uim juipjduwiod

D S|y O} AP 8y} suos
-iad Aup spiaoid o) pasia
-84 89 PINOYs [9POW ay|

S92IN0SBS
adg uo jord
o) -W| ou s| assy|

"SWIIHBAO 9[q
-ssod Buipnio

-Ul ‘Jois Bul
-ISIXS 10} sul}

-X9 JOUORIPPY

Jo ainypuad

-ofgnd

Y| PUD ‘PIDOY MBIASY
USZHID 8210d 1vg oy}
18BDUDW [Dlsuss ayy
‘S10]0841( JO pIOg 8y} Jo
uoyuayo sy} of uoyoBy
$OAUL [DUOHIPPD $ONPUOD
Ol ad lavd Ag @ouDysis
-84 Aup podal o) Al
-loyno ssaudxs syl vdio
aplroid of payipowl oq
PINOYs [opow ay] "uoupu
-lulsep Aouidiosip pup
uoliisodsip yons Jo ssau
-sjpudoiddp syi pup uoly
-oBlsaAUL 4oD® Jo Alpnb
Oy} JO JUBWISSaSSD Sy} LNO
Bunles ‘Iojep uj suoyouny
BullipND PUD JUBSWSAIOAU]
syl podsu Ajoland pinoys
pup Jaips|o suydiosip
PepuUSWILIODSal pUD suol
-pBissAul Uo pPP papod
-91 S| SjPoW PINOYs YdIO

XIHLVIN NOLLVINIWITdINIL VdIO — JHNLINYLS LHDISYIAO IDI10d 1¥VE IHL 40 MIIATY LNIANIJIANI




adedle

g g <n=o Aq vﬁo@;u
.,m®>c_ mc_mn $9500 ho EQEDC ayLespslo-
=u >_E®Ucmambc_ jou _o_ao\s Sn Nl

“Ag _oo*om;mmé_ Buleg:sespojo Jagquunu:

- 8y eonpal PINOD UOYDPUSWILIODSI Sy

A3y Jojo) Suirey Aynowng

D19 ‘ssou

-INduinit ‘uolusteq/issuy Jadoidul ‘Aing
10 eoupwlolad BuipioBal suoyoba)o
SNOLSS 8ol ajpbBljsaAul 0} 10318 PINOM

- VdIO IPu Ajg3l st i inq “(Asapnoosip
"B59) suolpBs|o JoNPUODSILL IOUIW AjSAl}
-Dl2J JO SJUIDIAWOD O} UoKBIDSIP siut Ajd
-do PINOM YdIO 1ok Alssiiiun s1 4 “yibus)
Buleswt pup sy daid Buitesw o} sppp
U21Um g30dg au} Ag paosy sesod Jo Jeq
-WINU 94} 850810U} OSID PINOD SiY] "VdIO
AQ paionpuod suoybbisaaul Juspusd
-9pul JO JoguINU By} 8spaIoUl AjUD
-iuBis o} [pyusiod ayy) soy siy) suoy

"MBIABI [DURIPW
pup swi} daid

a5p8Iout PINOD
puR g30d4

Aq piosy suoy
-plussaid pod
-2) aAPBlSSAU|
UOISS85 Pasoid

jo. QE_Uch

~i. 'o1oblIS8AUl 0} paldo |
JoHPNY SU} {OUF SUOHE
“gfIo BuypBilissAli Isiap
pPInom-dd: L3y g puo a2y
-JO BYL AQ Aoyl paAieD
-84 sUolbBS| juoid

S RUI0D. AUD B1DBSS AU O
G L L L IBYIBYM SUILLISIeP PINOM |
omuold | vdllojeuwy

DJo EmEQo_m>

MAlo-Ageseym: wbipnipd
“oAljoBlseAurUD dojerep

-oB9|o (shouss jsow) pazuoyino Ajjusi 10 Jaquinu
-iN2 8y} puoieq suoyobBa|o ajoblsoA sy} espeId |
-Ul-0} VdiO MO[ID PINOM UOISUDAXS Siy| soA -Uj pINO2 SIyj

_FepelsWayl | Xe PWUIW - TPINOUS Od' LYY a PUD VIO
EIE]
Ul 8SDaI0UL UD
puB SWi} oS ‘
pasoaloul Ul *BWIHBA0 9|g ‘Ad 13v4g 4o s8I0
Unsalm ydio | -issod Buipnio -llod sy} sejoodu youy
AQ pajobiisea -Ul ‘Yois Bug | 1oNpuodsiw {0 uoybBe|in

-Uf sjuip|Idwod
40 Jagquinu ay}

~|SIXS 10} aull}
J0 aimnypuad

AUD 31pBIseAul 0} Alijlgo
SU} VdIO aplaoid o) pasia

€ Ul espaloul uy

“se0koid.
~s [osigns

tiics

-X© [OUOHIPPY

-91 89 PINOYS [SPOW 8u]

XIYLVIAl NOILVININITdIAIL VdIO — JUNLINYLS LHOISHIAO ID110d LUV FHL 40 MIIATY LNIANIJIANI




s8egdly

Aoyt 40j03 Suney Aynoyua

. (.*2}8 "01pnp yoind
-SIJ POMBIABI'SUOIIDIS PUD DME WO

PUD $[09[aNs JO #X PamaIAIBIUL VIO,
"B-e) podals.onpByseul paje|duod

Apuidiosip 0} Pablel UOIDULIONULUID]

OBPIA JO SINOY X POMBIAS *SSSSOULM.

ay}-wioy sjgopod Ajsps 89 'PINOM SHSDY.
aAlpBIsa AUl DYioads-Uou jng ‘sessenoid -

“MSIAB -

DUSIDW JO POO
- iom g¥Ddeg

‘add

o} fopduwl oN

.tot.m.c_

“=JSIX® JOL.OUl

jo-ainypusd
-XS [owIuIw

"UOISNOUOD $)f Yonal
O} Uy} sdoys sAlnblsaA
~Ul By} INOgp uoIPULIoMU)

jouclipp jupuw|duiod
8y} epiacid pup asp2 jon

-PIAIPUL YOS 0§ sialie] Bul
~SO|D S}I JOJID} PINOYS YdIO

‘adg
0} jondul oN

*$82IN0S
-84 J0 8in}
-ipuadxs oN

‘PapuUNoUN
1O ‘PBIDIBUOXS ‘PBUIDISNS
10U ‘paupisns o Buipuy

D PUSWILIODSL PINOYS
YdIO 'UoDBYSOAU VIO
UD JO UOISNDUOD By}
uodn oy} 108|481 Of poy
-ID|2 8¢ PINOUS [SPOW U]

-192 JO 2INSOjosip sy sHdIyoid mDf 8101S ON uo:jopdw) ON
*MOIASI
*200|d Ul Appal |oLISIDW IO PDO)
-jo seol1onId (o881 o) @BpNBUD] jspOW SUOM g3Ddg
o} aBuyD Jouiw © AjUo sainbal siy| S9A uo jondui) oN
"soullowl} AJOJNIoLS sPeSIXe AljDD "MBIAS]
-LIOJSIY PUD ‘sausull asoy) Buipsadxs joUsibW 10 PO
O} SHWWIOD APD8IID VIO PUD ‘Sininjs . Som-gyDdg
AQ paysiiapise a1 soulaLLIj co_+m_QEoU _ON uo jopdwli oN
*("o18 ‘aioMmyos Yoibdsiq
MBU “SUOIIDIS MBU ‘SDISWIDD UOIDLS MOU
‘6-8) sAjoas sasseD0Id UOYDS|OD LoD W *MBIASI
-Iojul [oLBiUl pUp selfojouyos} SO [usLU |JoUBIDW 10 PO
-NDOP BUIAL B JO UOHDBID ay) Of POJ| [jIM oM gDdg
ON uo opdu) ON

‘adg

“o}-opduwll oN

'$82IN0S
=81 0 aIn}
“jpusdxs oN

'S9SDD JO UOHN[O
<$aJ Jusioiys pup jdwoid
O} JUSULILWIOD D 103
-21-05|0 NG sjuswaiinbal

. AIOIN{DIS By} jo8UL AjUo
{ou joyt sjooojo.d jpuis)
-Ul SH Ui sauliawil, sALpBY
-$9AU INO 185 PINOYS VIO

adg
o} yondwl oN

“1i0s Buyisixs
1o} dwily Jo auny
-ipuadxs pazy

~lown /ulia}
labuoi

‘suoypb

-HSOAUL [OUIBIUL S} JO) SUOY}
-p{oadxs pup aouppPING
apirold of oogpupny

XLV NOILVININITdINI VdIO — FUNLINYLS LHOISHIAO IDI10d L¥VE IHL 40 MIIAIY LNIANIJIANI




28edils

slaquusWi gy Ddqg SU} AQ UoiDWIICUI

BU} JO MBIASI PINOM SD ‘BUILUNSUOD-SLLI}
8 pinom UolpBISSAUL Y| UD O} PBYID]
-10 @2ou8spiA8 8y} (o Buiussald pup ‘Buly
-HiuisupJ) ‘BuUIBDY oD "9DUSPIAS PaLDID
0SSP [J0 PUD spodal SADBIISSAUL ] MBIA
-91 0f €Dd4 SU} 8ZUoYIND Of |SPOW auyy
o} abupyo jupoyubis b Jussaidal pinom
}| "UOUDISPISUOD IO MBIASI 10} §DdY

O} psjussaid jou aIp asay; ‘suolpbiy
-SoAUl V| Jo} spodas Bupojiuow sainieustb

*MBIADJ [DUSIDW
puo swiy daud
aspaloul ApupD
-Jlubis pjnod
PuUD g40d4

AQ pipay
suolpjusssaid
UOIs585 PBSOID
40 Jequinu

ay} aspaio

Aay Jojo) Buney Ajnoyja

-up| mvoE ol mmmcc.co ._oc:z bcoc.
-lW 8y Ul BUIOA 10§ PBISPISUOD SOM JOUL

SousplAs pU

mc_@_3>_b NOUJIM m_oc.o:Q. c_o_o_xm >__2 .

O} s1ojusssip U0y PaPDIdWOD g ADW |}

PUD Smaiaal Aualind vdiO UBnouy

-Uj pinom siy|

POl

Slom paspaId
-ul aui sjp
-Uny of 314 UL
ainbail pjnom
pupR - awl oJs

Ul 9sD8IoU| UY

"OWIIHIBA0 B|q
-1ssod Buipn|o
-uj ‘yYois Bui
-1SIX® 104 swll}
10 sunypusad
XS [OUOIPPY

“opgpss) pup indul
SAI9D81 0} J8p.o Ul pInog
MBIASY UBZYID 921|0d
13vg 8y} o} suoyobiisen
-Ul OLUBIU} Gd 13vg juss
-a1d 0} UoYBIoSIP 8y} J0)
-IPNY 8u} aplAcld O} pasia
-21 89 PINOUS |[SPOW ay|

i

*all} ]euuosiad b Jo pod pawssp

8Q AW oy} 03PIA JO BINSODSIP Bul
-pioBal mpj Bulsixe AQ paliwil 1o payaiy
-0id 8g ApW YO ‘sesseooud Apuydio
-SIP O} Pab|al UCUDWIOU UIDHSD JO 8Ins
-0JOsIp Yy} siiaiyoid mbj a1pls 8snpoag

ON

.>>m_>_9

|OLSIDWI 1O PRO)
HOM dDd8g
uo jopdul) ON

! BOQE ON

' *s821n0s”

=910 38Ul

oainiipusdxs.

- JupoyuBsul

“UolbUILISIaP-S,All
-lofoud oy} woly Buiblea
=P 10} 8|DUOHPI JIBY) N0
185 pINoys sisjusssip ey}

~IsBuipuly-pub suoyopusw

S5 =IoD8)'aspd S IolpnyY

89Uk ytim s9eiBD Ajolow

=SAOUIIDUN-UOU D YDIYM
“Ul'sespo uj-olignd-apoud

- g pinoys sBuipul puo
~suoipPUBLIWIoDSs 8SDD
S I0HPNY- U} Lo Jeguusiu
AQL A} B10A 5. pIDOY MBIA

-9y Uzt 921104 |3V g

-BU} DU JONISUL Of PBSIA

|- -91.8Q PINOYS [SPOW 8L

€l

“juswi
-ppdep ao1j0d
8y} jo souny
-SiSSD By} 4NO
“UHM siy} seop

VdIO § Qdd
0} 1ondwil oN

"QUIIIBA0 B|q
-i1ssod Buipn|o
-ut ‘yois Buy
-JSIX® Io} Wl
40 ainypuad
-X3 |DUOLIPPY

JUSpIoUl 84} 4O JUNOD

-0 O8PIA AUD MBIA O}
Ajlunpioddo sy jupuioid
-LUOD 8y} J80 pINoYs
VdIO ‘Buipuy psuipysns ©
ul Jjnsa. jou seop uolpbly
-SOAU| PBPNDUOD D USUM

XI4LVIAl NOILVENIWITdINI VdIO = FUNLINYLS LHDISYIAO ID110d LYVE FHL 40 MIIATY LNIANIdIAN!




a8egdlog

‘Bulsswi D oUSAUOD pUD muco_o_>®.

pup spjiodal mairsl Of Palinbal J| AjuDD]
-HUBIS POOPUOM S;ND B} -BsDaIDUl PINOD

HIOYUD 4049
oy awy Jo ainy

aloy pajusseid UoIbPUSLIWCISL 8y} SOA SisTeloR=TrilelN
TS UoOPUSWIUIOSS] :
Aouldiosip pup sBuipuy JO [0sIaAS) BU4
BuipioBas uoypULIoU/DIDP JO aspsjsl
By} pup ‘Buiodal yons 4o UoISN[DUI 8y} "MBIABI
UC uoiiqiyold jusund ou s| aiay} [opow [DUSLDW IO PO
8y} jo ebonbup] sy} o} oBUPYD D SHOM g3Dd4g

saA

uo joodwi ON

$SPNJOUl UCHOPUSWIWOD8S a4 YBNoyyy

'$192140 10} suoyosioid

ASDAUd BULDOIA jrioylim sBuipuy sisy).

10§ SUOSDSI U} L0y jos Alpyand pup Afiny
O} WD 8Uipup Jeiyd ey yioq Joy Bui
-Busiioys g Aou j[-Jaiyd ey Agsipsd
-do jo Jegquinu ey} uo juspusdep aq

PINOM WD U} PUD J8I4D BUj UO UipIp’

8yl Ing ‘aio1 A|02U0ISIY 81D JeIyD Ju}
Ag spoaddy “yd| oy} wodyindul AU Jno
UM WD 8U} Uim Buliesl 100p-pasolo
-~ D O} Jajjowr sy BUIBULIG AQ peeibo
g3DdE SUL YDIUM UM Y dI0 AQ Bul

-pul o jpaddo.Abw JBIyD By} ‘Aluasaly

'ddDdd 10 swl.
- Jorainypuad
X8 JOUIIUIW

Aay Jojod Suney Aynoyyig

'82]|0d 10 §2IUD
oy awiy Jo-ainy
“puadxa jpuol)

Hois Buy
-|sixe 1oy st}
10 ainypuad

pup ssylus JUBISISAC B}
wol JndurBuiaedal isy
-0 ‘PUD BuloaW D BUSA
-UoD [jim 1oBoupw jpis
~U89) By} ‘UoiisOdsIp aspD
© uo 98I6Ds|P seyUS
1UBIsIoA0 82104 14V a4l
usym oy} os pabuoyo

-IPPD SWOoS =XO [OWIUIW 89 PINOYs |spOW 8yt | "/}
‘Sjuswialinbal Ajolusply
-UOD MD| BIDJS UM LUBISIS
-Uod Pupesw paddo
"1oys Buy yons AUD JO s}Nsal sy}
-jsix® Joj swllp i podai Apliand o} Joyipny
‘adg 10 alnypuad ayl sinbal o} pebuoys

ol _bo&c(__ ON

X9 JOUIUIN

9Q pPINOYS |ISpOW 8yl i 9|

“82]j0d §O JaID
IO} 8l JO 8Iny
-ipuadxs jpuoy

-IPPD swWos

‘oys Buj
-Jsix® Joy-swly
10 ainypuad
S C=H o108 I[BIITN]

"Bulum Ut sdupul siu/isy
N0 §55.0} JeBouDy
jolsuasy sy} aanbai oy
pasiAsl Joyuny 8q pinoys
Jopow ey] ‘Buljesw
[oeddo 8y} {p JoIyD sy}
AQ Yoy 185 sjuswinbio
jouolippL Aup 0} puodsal
0} pup ‘Bultesw jpeddp
AUD J0 Jussald aq oy ‘Bul
~jUMm Ul puodsal o} Apuny
-1oddo sy} pInog Malasy
USZIID 821|0d- [ivd ou}
JO4IPYD 8y} pup J0lipny
sy} spiacid pun Buyum
uyjpaddo oy suswinb

-ID PUD SUOSDaL B} PIOM
-0} {nd Ajswiy of JoIyD
ayt-sinbal of pabupyd
8q PINOUS |SpOW sy}

XI4LVIAl NOILV.INIWITdINI VdIO — IUNLINYLS LHOISYINO ID110d L1HVE FHL 40 MIINTY LNIANIJIANI



s8ed|¢

R IS=THTHIE co.mc_toam_;Em.ammf;,.ﬁ:o;

o HppD JUOPUS D SUOS 8¢ PINOM BIeY] -

- ssoooud jo. ‘_0>o_ _oco_tvvo ou Sppp g

~co;9_3mcoo Ul §88W 0} 92Jj0d 10 JaIyD
~BUY PUD VIO 10} SJUSWILULLOD Sul}:
- [PUOHIPPD: SPPO UOIDPUSWUIODS SIY] |

sa)

I g¥Ddd
1. O 1ODdWILON |

*SISDI10 104 SUOIIDS]
-oid Aooaud Buysixs BUIID|OIA PIOAD O}
S ADM D 4ONS Ul SHNsal ey} Jodal o) 10g
-] PUD SW} JOJS JO JUNOWID JUDDYIUBIS
-Ul U sainbal i pup ‘paAisoal sipeddp
JO Jeguinu sy} uo spodal ApPal YdIO

"q30d4g

"HOIS VdIO 10§ JIOM JOUOHID
.-Uc Eco L_cm_m Ut 1insa1 o} jusisnipo siu}

lo} ‘a10j018y} ‘jpIUBIOd B S BIBY] "Pad |

_=do o} JyBu ISy} JO WY} POPUILS] OS|D

mmc__oc oy Eo*oot:omc: 4O Wayy ac_rEou_.

\. ~Ur1sie| ey}l jpaddp uo ebpo 0} pabo

~-=IN0DUS 8G PINOM Eoc_o_QEoo PBUSHDS -
- ~SIPD jou} subpuwil o) 9lgruospalun jou-
SSIHYAIO O _om_ooaao $950D U, 85810

© L SULUD UL {INSS1 PINOM UOHDOUIOU 4INS
t_m£mc>> US5:9q O} SUIDUIS 4I ‘fI0118 [owl]

~UIW Ylim Pasiael &g pinog sjubuipiduios.

O} | WOl 9oUspuodsalios sy yBnoyly

ON

ON

0} jondwi} oN

. 1592IN0881 JO.
_ainypusdixs oN

(s10N

"HOIS VIO

Joj poopiom |pliusiod.ay; o} PPP seop
1Ng ‘'VdIO AQ suolpBlseaul [psddo jouoyy
-IPPL JO Jogquunu JUDDYUBIS © Ul {Nsal
PINOM SIU} JDYL AlIUN S || “8I01 OSID 81D
JONPUOD AINP-JO JO SUOHDBISSAUI V| PUD

S9A

*MBIABI
[OLSJOW IO POO
“HOM gDd4g

‘a1l alo suoipblsaAUl Y| JO sjpaddy

uo topduwi oN

Ay 10f0D Suiiey Anouiq

Od UOI1IsOdsip oIt AUD BUiAj

JoeIuD/ade . -powojuoud iolipny oy

10} mE; 108N} ol “YHM {NSUOD Of 8DH04 4O

pusdxe [ouoly | 1o} sWwiy o ainy I jeyD syt aunbai o pasia

. FIPpp BWOoS | -pusdxa sWos | -85 99 PINOUS [SPOW 8L | 1T

spoad

"Jio4s Bu) -do asouy} JO sinsal sy

-JSIX® 10} DUl puD paAedal sipaddo

‘adg i jo ainppusadxs Jo 1egwinu 8y} uo Juod
0} Jopdw| oN JupoYIuBIsU) -a1 AUpinBaI pINOUS VIO | 0T

"vdIO o4 Buy

lUc 1 aU} _ooaao o] Em:

1ey/siy o lupuib|duiod

By} SWIOJUIOS|D SWIODINO

2502 Bupunbal upuipid

~=lOD 8y} 0}.J8)ia} uoiD

S L : -yloU panbai s, Jusuwipiod

L iS00IN0S8N i 1$90IN0S =8 82llod 2y} 1by} 8ins

_josinppusd | Y -eljo8Ing | Us OF Qd 18V UIM diom
X0 PWIUIW |~ -Ipusdxs ON| PINOUYS VdIO PUD 13V | 61

‘dd 13vd

AQ paIoNpUoD UoDBSaA

‘OUIIIBAC 3|g -U] SHDHO [DUIBUlI AUD JO

'‘adg ¢ -issod Buipno | sBuipuy 8y} VIO of jped

JOJ audl Jo aIn} | -Ul Jpis Buysixe -dp o} jybu sy} syupuo)d

-pusdxs jpuoy i 10} Wl Jo ain] -Wo2 apiaoid 0} pasia
-lopP BWoS | -ipusdxs swos -21 89 PINOUS |DPOW 84l i '8l

‘uolbu

“lwiglep Uoiisodsip p iep

~UB1 ‘921104 1O 18Iy 8ul

XI4LVIAl NOILV.ENIWITdINIL VdIO — FUNLINYLS LHOISHIAO ID110d L4V JHL 40 MIAIATY LNIANIJIANI




aded|s

Asy] 10j0) Suney Aynoug

“‘HOIS VdIO §0 poopiiom

SY} 8s03I0U} AJJODIDWDIR JOU PINOM INQ
‘JUDDKIUBISUL Jou S| uoyppuUsWIWODa) Bu

-floda. ey} ‘suolosiold asioidws Buys

-X3 JO |NOJO BujuUNI PIOAD O} 810D awai)
X3 a1INbaI P|NOM PUD SUOISSNDSID JO SBU

-85 PBPUBIXS PUD JUDDYUBIS D JOJ [PlUS)

SOA

'q40dg
0} jopdw| oN

-0d 8y} $8J08ID UOIDPUSWILLIODS] SIU|

S 'SWiIal o) swod
OL-3|gouUN.BIeM Ydi SU} PUD JBIUD o}
- Usym Ajuo siodioipind o uodn pajpo
G PINOM WD, 8] "SISDJ0 10} SUCILOS|

< 2

- s
Sy

-01d: AopAud-Buysixe mczo_o_>vb_o>c o}
SO ADM D UDNs Ul SUOLID{INSUOD 858y} §O.

82llod

40 §2IUD/Adg
Joj swy Jo ainy
-ipuadxe |puoly
-IPPO swWosg

Vdi
1o} awly Jo aIny
-jpusdxs sawos

podesi Aplignd oy Jojipny
sy} sinbai pinoys |spow
8yl "ANIGRIUNODDD jon
-PIAIPUI JO UOISOIS SNOLISS
D O} JUNOWID PINOM Jusiu
-9IHSs 8y} 1oy puy doyp
-Ny 8y} pinoys JabBoupy
[DJBUSSD) By} Of JS DY
8} S|18s 0} UojusIUl AUD
[Paddo o} Ajunpoddo
Y} Jojipny ayj eplaoid
PINOYS [9POW 8Yy] "uohny
-NSUOD U0y Apunyioddo up
Jolipny sy} spinoid pup
pasodw ussq soy sujd
-IOSI0 JSHD SSSDD Bjjies O}
$I8J0 AUD JO YdIO asuddp
O} 13vg annbal o) pasia

44

]

-1 89 pINOyYs |opow ay]

, ‘UOHDODUIPOW 8y}
Yum psalBo ay isyisym
PUD UoIIDYIPOW
Aoudosip Jo uoyisodsip
[PRIULUD JO uolpoyIpow
Aup uo podal Apyand oy
Jo4pPNY ey} sinbal pinoys
ISPOW ay] "AlIgDIUNOD

. =00 JO. UOISOIS SNOUSS

D Ul [N$SSI PINOM UOILDDL
-[pow Aup {pY}.8A8)eq 8y
pinoys ieBoupw jpieuss
a2y} o} sseooid jpsddp

up Jolipny sy} spiaoud
PINOYS |9POW 8| "suoy

-DUiLLIBIap AIDUdIoSIP o
Gt e - “v MC e

XIULYA NOLLVINIWITdNI YdIO — JUNLINYLS IHDISHINO ID110d 1¥Ve FHL 40 MIIATY LNIANIdIANI




a3ed|6

A8yl JojoD Buney Aynayng

QU IBYLIN “[9sUNOD: apISING AUD PUD™

e ‘pelnb

& telole) ..,EO.dn_mv£_>>,,co:9maooo..@56,.. . : L ool0d ~seAUl >_r_@30_o£.o_o

=91 O§|O PINOM SIU] *SWIDID. JO 9IN|DU PUD co_mmmm _ommo_o,, - HO. %o_cu\omm L , 1ONPUODSIU-JO suolibBs)

- Jsquinu.ayy jo mc__ocmam_u sl JupD: - Jodequinu 1. Joy swyjo ainy tot mc;m_xm 17 4D 8INSUS Of SINSMD| PUD

= L_c@_m SWNSUOD PINOD Buiiod o} paip). TR umc_*,mwo.o_o.., -ipusdxs [ouoy _ou, awljjo’sInt | SWiIoD MBI O} AlloyiNp
Y] mt:m\so_ _oco SWIDID 1O MBIASL NIBIDD CSSBA AU pINoD Sy 1 E 9 [ojo]o] mEom, -lpusdxs aWos papiroid Q:PINOYs VdIO 1. 'GZ

. ‘ ‘PajusWis|dill sism

SUOIDPUSWIWODS] PIROY

MIIASY USZIYID 81|04

Lvg 84} pup vd|O Ydiym

sploday AlYyluow 0} 9aiB3p oy} pup J|Nssi

VdIO Ul Uoisn|out o} pjop sy Bulios|jod 9502 8} JNOCD UOHOULIO]

fusds awl JOUOKIPPD JO JUNOWID UMOU -u1 Buiplaoid ‘UosnN|ouUoD

-UN 2Wos BUIPPD ‘YoIS V4IO 40 Poo| "1i0is Busixe 0} uoidasul woy uoly

-HIOM By} 9508.I0U| PINOM NG {UDDYIUBIS ‘g40dd ‘adg i 104 swi Jo ainy -pBYysaAUl Aload uo pod

JOU st Uoljppuswiwosal Bulpodal ay) ON 0} joodw| ON o} jopdw ON | -ipuadxe swos -1 Aplgnd pINoYs Ydio | ¥

N S T e o T T : : : 'SONSS| 9SOy} 81D

-_UmEQ O}-Qd Lavd UHm

- HUOM PUD LoD P oW

AUD 10} SISO BU} PIULIO}

oY) SONSSI: DILUBISAS

Aup Ajpuspi oy Joppny

8y} -aiinbal pinoys |opow

L= 8y} uoipoyipow Auo

104:5U0SDBIBY} BIONOAS

‘Of puUDB-sucsiosp Aouyd

- -I0SIP PUD UoISOdsIP (ol

: : >o_o_ tu mmsmm_ UL pUIDSSl SO Ajpow Joy

o_Em?G oc_>_6_oc3 >co Jo.yjdep sy} uo e . SUOIDUILLISISP LoD

Buipuadsp HPJ5 VIO 1O pooplom suy o Bulsixe =Iqu Aup UO Hoda1 0} 1o}

8508.10Ul A[D2YDWIDIP: PINOD PUD UDD" e mmon_m on_m lojawij jo ain; | -ipAY By} aunbal o) pesiA
=bis s| uoippuswiwodal buliodss sy s9)- oJ-jondWi-ON: oh BUQE_ ON | -lpuadxs suiog -9 8Q PINOYS [BPOW 8yl i €2

"BIHSs Of

UOISIDap ay} yim paslbo

. VdIO syjaym puo

obpys suydiosip-sod sy}

10 P8lies 59500 AUD UO

XIYLVIN NOILVLINIITdINI VdIO ~ JUNIINYLS LHOISHINO 30IM0d LuVd FHL 40 MIIATY LNIANIJ3ANI




38edlot

Aay Jojod Suney Aynoiiq

-8y staseyl ' Anlul sSnoes 10 Yoap Ul {jns

O} PUOdsal O VIO JUDM SIoLO8i BYL
41 719S Jo yjoep Ui s|Nsal BUiOOYSs AP
" =UO-UD USUM AJUO PaiIou 10 gy Ddg
By} PUD YdIO “[SPOowW {usund a8y} Jepun

-0l Joy} 82104 JO S9SN JOUJO JO BUSIS B}

m0>.

o Ellole)
D44 o} swy
jo‘ainjipusdxs

IPUOHIPPD (oW’

-UIW 9|qIssOd

OO S840 PUD spupUIDId
-Uod woyy woibold syj of urANg 8Ind
-85 0] sAom sI0|dxe 0} SBNUKUOD VIO

ON

‘440449
0} 1opdwi oN

'SI82YJ0 10} mco:um%oa, \.G.C\EQ Bui
-§5Ix& BULD|OIA. DIOAD O} SO ADM D 4oNs U
Hodai of Jogp| PUL aWl JD]S $O JUNOWID

jou s uoppUswWIWo8l Buliodal syl

QWos a1inbai pinom ing UDoWUBIS:

ON

'g40da.

0} }opdw| ON

"SISlioW 8504 JO AliXa|dWoD pup 18q
-WiNU 8YyJ Uo juspuadap JUNOuID ub Ul
sjuswibpnl/siuswaies Bumairsl palnb
-91 8¢ PINOM BW} JDUOHIPPY "VdIO AQ
usoHSPUN APDBIID MBIASI 8iNPa20.d
puo e21400ud ‘Adjod Jo adA} sy} JO UoKS
-UDdX9 JoWIUIW D O} JUNOWID PJNOM SIY]

ON

"gYDdg

0} $ondwj oN

rsPulisawl Ajuiuow

$41-4D UOISs8s PBso|d Ul soda) aAleD

~81 PUD S|DUSIOLL MBIASI Of gD Jdg Ul
10§ Bl [PUOHIPPD SO IOMSD. VIO WOy
Jogp] pup sl Juodubis alnbel os|o
pinom suoipBbijseAul asayL Usyy ‘MsiA
-ind papundxs Aup o} juonsind suoi}
-pBYsaAUl 850y} Bupoyspun Ag uoiDB

-$9AUL YBNOIOY} 81NSUS. PINOUS VIO 1OU} -

"MBIABI [DUSIDW
pup swi daid
asp8IDUl AjJUDD
-Jubis p|noo

. pun gd2dg
Aq pipsy suoly
-bjusseid pod

AINp uo) sBUILOOUS PSAICA
-U-ieoyyo o Buipnio

‘adg -Ul juspioul jodlud Aup

10} aully Jo-ain} "Hojs Buysixe 10 payou Alswi st vdIO

-ipuadxs |puUoy | Ioj auwll} JO 8Ny oy} 8INsUs of pasuny
-IPPO BUWOS | -IpUadxe BUIOS {  -UdS oQ PINOYS [OPOW U | "4Z

'ss8201d uolnjosal aind

=SIO SADUIBED DAlJOBYS

ub sapiroid pup o010

"‘Adg 104 suiy pub spupUIDIdWOD O] BAlL

Jo ainypusd "HOys Bulisixe | -ODIYD S| JPY} $58201d UOI.

X9 [OUOHID | I0) 8wy JO in} | -DIPSW D 84D8ID O} SLOYS
-po aunbal jipm | -pusdxs swos sl 8|gNopPsI PINOYS VIO | 8T

“Jo)s Bulsixa i

; ‘Ad9 ¢ 10} OWIL IO BINf | ~MBIASI UJ JOM S} UO AD]|
o jopdul] ON-i spuadxs suIos -and podai pinous vdio | /2

*SONSS] DILLID)

-SAs Aup sip|pswISl 0}

papuUSiUl SUCILDD SAIDS.

-102 dojeAsp o4 ad 13vd

"92110d UM SIom pun aounul

10 §81UD/Qdg -lopad Od 1yvg Buiaoaul

Joy awilf Jo diny ‘Jois Buysixa spuswiBpNn[ asioApL pup

-ipuadxs [puoy | o} swily Jo 81Ny SJUSWISIHBS JUDDIHUBIS
-lpp swWoOS | -Ipuadxa sWos AUD MBIABI PINOUS VIO | 9T

XI4LVIA NOILVINIINITdINI VdIO — FUNLINYLS LHOISYIAO IDIN0d LHVE FHL 40 MIIATY LNIANIJIANI




3d3ed|tI

Ay 010D Bunrey Aynoiq

X -8 10§ QOD Ucoco:oELouE_ u_o co:om_ -
-02 auj mc__ohomo_ ‘ddg Eot uoypiedo:
202 8W0s alinbal Aj9ji pInom pup ‘sualy:
i1¥io%e) L_cm_m salnbai mco;omﬁm>c_ xsid i
~WoD U0 Buiiode [OUOIHPPD SAISUSIXT -

ON

. guDdg
- o} jooduwi oN

‘S|OAD|
Buipys Bulsixe Yim ysiduioson oy (Nl
-JiP AjoWaiixs aq ADW PUD ‘MaJAS] LODS
JO 8WODINO 8y} Uo Hodal o) Bujwins
-U0D awWl} AjpWalixa {l e3Pl PINOM adg

soA

'94Odd

AQ POMBIABI SJODIUOD 4O JSquINU SL|

..‘m_®>m_ mc_tongmc.;m_xu £._>> .owoo Um.t.OQ v

=01 D03 JO MBIASI By} U o_bo__o_toa
o,, HNOIIP AjoLusxe ji 830w PINOM a4

AQ PBMSIASI S|ODIUOD JO JaquINU BY)

sop

0} jopdw oN

guDde
Oy jondul ON:

. )
-A3| Buliols Bulsixe Yim UoILDpUSUWILIO
-081 8U} Ul MBIASI JO [BA3| 84} U208 O}
ajqissodll IO {NDYIP 8 ADWI }| "MBIAS)
%001 Y2081 JOU 580D INQ ‘SMO|I0 DU} SO
82USPIAS PaJDIDOSSD PUD spodal 82104
40 851 AUDW SO SMBIABI AlJUSIIND VO

‘ddDdd

o Tawl JO seinlipusdxe pyuslod
=le=Tell]|

84} ULIIDUD 3048 SUt AIOU M VIO
CAIUSLIND *IDIS VIO JO) Sl JO 8IN}
IPUSAXS |DUOIIPPD:SOS JOL plUsIod

OIS PINOM SHuspiOUL Al
~30 @AJ0AUL O} UoIsUDdX] “sjuswalinbay
uoiooyiou sy-0sePUpYyS Ag.pajond.
“Eleg >=o_,EQoa _o 02 IIbYD. syt os”

0} Jopdw| oN

2 UMOLE ‘92104
ceunpoodwir o uo 55N SNOLISS IO ‘SYIDSp
1028 paunb | SLprsBul " Apolsno-ul ‘sBulooys
L -BIBg M | -iSiXe Joj sl PaA|CAUIFIS DO AUD JO
$s80iN0sa1 puB L o sinjipuad. i maiAsl [oulaulr eyl Uo Al
> | Ui [ouoyIppyY | X8 Jupoyubls | - -qnd podsi pinoys VdiO | "eg
*JJ01S JoUOIs )
-sojoud jpuoy SPIDOQ
-ippp alnbai MBIABI 8210} JO 85N
ADW/Hols Bul | 5,Qd [¥Vg JO SWODIN0 8y}
-ISIXS 104 auly Bujpnioul wipiBoid maia
‘adg Jo ainypusd | -218210) JO SN S| UO A[DY|
o} jopdwj oN | -X8 JupouIUbIS -gnd podal pinoys vdio | "Ze
L Sb T TDIS IDUOLS ,
i Sl -sejoid jpuoy
umowjun jopd. | -Ippp alinbsal
Wi ROsl "Qdg | - ADW/HDls Bul
: oy Sl joeiny | =[SIXS 101 Sty 'SPIDOQ MBIASI 910} JO
" -lpusdxs jouoly | . jo ainjpusd asn s,gd 1ava Ul ajodiol.
-PPD BWOS T X Jup2YIUBIS | -10d AUoinBei PINoUs YdiO e
“Juip|dwod p jo
“HOJS [pUOIS $03[ans o 51 jUBPPOUI BU}
-sajo.d [puoy | Jayieym Jo ssejpiobal ‘ad
‘umounun popd -IPpD alinbal Vg AQ stUspIDUl 92104
-Wii [PosIH "Qdg ADW/HDIS Bul 10 asn Bumalasai JO ALllig
Joj awy Jo 3N} -JSIXS 10} dwil} | -Isuodsal pup I0j AILIOYLND
-pusdxs jpuol} Jo ainjipuad | sy} vdIO apircid Of PasIA
-IPPP SWOS | -Xd {UDDYIUDIS -1 8 PINOys [BPOW 8yl | "O¢
e CUYDBP APOSND
-Ul'AUD pUB “Ainful Jupd
- ~JUBIs Ut Buginsal 8210}
*40 9snN-AUD 'YInap- 1o Ainful
U1 paINses 92104 Alppap
joasn syl layloum
10 mmm__ohommz {Ainp 140 40

XIH1VIN NOLLVININTTdINI VdIO — 3YNLONYLS LHOISHIAO ID110d 1¥vd FHL 40 MIIAIY LNIANIJIANI




s8edlzx

Asy Jojo3 Suney Aynoyug

SioAS] Buwjpis vdIO Bulsixe yum
usiidwooop o} Buibus|pyd ag Abw Buj
-poda1 pup. mslAsl yidap-UlsHpnn a50u)
Uo podeal pup ‘MaIAS IOHUC O} &}

jo ainjipuadixs jouoIPPL BY} of pajojer

99 PINOM VIO 0} 4ODdWI 8U} 'SHPND [ou

‘q40dg-
o} 1opdwioN

~I9JUI' UMO sji:swiopiad ddg Juaixe ayj o

*S{IPND H4ONS 10} UoKDW

-IoJuiI/DJOP JO uoloNPOId BY} UM palo
~18do0o2 juswippdep ay} so UDIs Adg

0O} Jondul BUI0S 59 OS|D PINOM 8184}
"S|oAS] BUIDIS VIO BUlSIXS Uiim wlioy
-lad o} BuiBusyoyo ad pinom (o}e ‘bibp
doys ‘Buuiol ‘Buyiniosl 68} suooun

LYY

saj

0} jopduwi| oN

‘440d4g

92}j0d DA JO SHPND [DULIO) DIUSISAS

CLo T rade
>nmoEc®_o,6Uu_o>oo_:ooomEEEcou

0} Qdg PUR YdIO UsBmiaqg uoypounul
-WOD [DUOHIPPD PUD JUSWHWUIOD: auUlly:
swios ainbai pinom Buipoda. jpuohippy

ON

‘44044
o} jonduwi oN

'sassa00.d

uoijusAleiul Ul seyodpiund Jo sisebbns
VYdIO Udium Ag ssedoud [puliog ou st asay)
‘JoraMoH ‘swisiiod BupipBal gdg yim
UCHODIUNWIWOD YdIO O} Jallng Buyst

X8 OU S| 8I8U} PUDB ‘DIOP SiT SMBIASI AlD|
-nBaJ pup O} §59000 DY APDBIL VIO

SDA

‘94049
o} Jopduwl| oN

. 8pls Lmbc:;&mth«_.mccoaono Allo
-juspyuo sy Buupjuipw siym Buipod

MDD

"SHPND 850U} 10 S|NSSi

. By} Ajoyand podes pup

sanss| Jojiuiis Buipinbsai

: ad 1¥ve Ag pajonpuod

ryoysBuy SHPNO AUD JOHUOW Of Afl

‘adgJoyawl - ~jsixe 10} sy | -jiqisuodsal pun Ajuoyino

$0 aInjipuad J0 ainjipusd | 8y} VdiO opiaoid 0} pasiA
XS [DUCHIPPY ¢ - -X8 JOUOIPPY -84 9 PINoyYs 8Pow auf | /g

o "oliand sii o} pepiA

-0id ©21MBS By} PUD JusW

-ppdag ayy jo Anb sy

“Jois jouoss | jopdw joy) suolount qd

‘UMmoudun -saj0ud [pUOY 13V JO SHPND DILBSAS

jopdw (o5 -ppP ainbai 1oNPUOD 04 Appgisuodsal

*ddg 10} swiy AOW/4ois Bul | pup ‘Bulipis ‘splodsl pup

Jo ainypusd -}SIXS 10} sWi} | DIOP O} $S92D ‘AjIOYIND

X3 JupDYIU jo ainypuad | 8y} vdIO apiroid o) pasia
-BIs Ajjoyjusiod | xe juooyubis ~218Q pINOYs |SPOW 8y : "9¢

& : "SJINS

‘dd4g v =] PUD LUSISAS UOHODI

Jo4- 8wl jo ainy "HoIs BuysIxs | -Uspl AlDs § juswippdseg

~pusdxa [oUOY | Ioj Ul JOBINE S} JO SNYDLS Y} UO AlD|
-IPPO BWOS | ~puadxe swlos | -nBal Jodal PiNoys vdio | 'Se

'$$9204d uoy}

-DOyluSpl A0S 5,ad 1¥ve

‘Gdg “HoIs Bul | Ul syodpipod AuojinBai o)

104 swiy jo 8Ny -ISIX® I0j SWl} | VdIO 104 Ajljigisuodsas pup

-pusdxs jpuoy | jo ainppusdxs | Ajuoyinb apiroid o} pasia
-IPPD sWog JUDDHIUBISU| -919Q PINOYS [SPOW U] = yg

XIdLVIAl NOILVININIHINI VIO — FUNLINYLS LHDISYIAO 321104 1¥VE JHL 40 MIIATYH LNIGNIJIANI




a8edl|er

sasod

-Ind Buipodal 10 youoasal [puollippL
BAISUBIX® 1O JUDDIUBIS ainbal )i seop
lou ‘eBpnBup| jepow sut o} abubys

Aup alinbai jou ssop pup paysid

ON

‘4a0dd

Ao 10107 Buriey Aynoyjq

-WIODDD AlISDS §i UOIDPUBSWLLODS! SIYL

Dn_m 2 co_mm_Enzm *om:__u.

o_ou_wn EmEEou PUD MaIAB] 10§ 84D

syl oy mco:OUr_mEEoo@ r_o:m puigns::
oL vdIO 104 m_,o:aoaao pup Em_o Hins:
.,,como_ SO |1 ‘94op.0} moocomc_ IO U YO

AQpepIomIOS mco;ovcmEEoo@ A210d

Aup BumaiAsl mE; puadxs o} {qog euj
-Jo/pup} W9 auj- 10} jplusiod syj sl a1suy

s

0} Jopdwi| ON

L rawDda
_oLjopduljoN

‘add

"1DIs Buysixa
1O} BWll JO ain}

"ad 1¥vd Aq pejdedon
PUD PIDOY MBIADY BUL

AQ pasiopus aiom sUoH
-DPUSWILLODSI B} YDIUM
0} 9a1B8p U}l PUD SUOH
-DpuswIIODal Buipup)s
-{nNo snojasld AuD UO
a|ppPdN UP apNDUl PINOYS
<n__O ‘Hodal jpnuub sy uj

‘IoIBA0

ABJoue pup swll 8AISSUOD ADW NG ‘Qdg
UM 188w 0} YdIO Joj saljiunpoddo aunb
-91 PINOM JUSUISAJOAU] JBIIDT *UOISIAB] 10]
SUOHDPUSWILIODSI JO ULIO) 8Y} Ul fusW
-WOD pUD meiass uoypluswaidwi-jsod
USAS IO JJDIp-is0od JO P8ISISUOD A|[DDLIO)
-S1U SOU PUD [DULIOY SS8| U8aq spy Jusu
-dojeasp Aogod jo adAL siyl Yiim Juswi
-OAJOAUL S,V dIO INQ ‘seloljod paoiiu-add
MBIABI O} palinbal Appalp st g3D4g @ul

0} }opdw| ON”

_adg.
s opfopdw oN:

-pusdxs swios

“Jois Bl

. ..-_,m_xm oy auli}

10 m_E_Ucmaxm
UDDLIUBISY|

‘Alljus buy

-Em>om S, 13Vg O}-UoiipIs |

-PISUOD JBYLINg 10) SUCHDP
-USWIWIOD8] S}1 PIOMIOS O}
IByjsym JapIsuco pinoys
vdIO ‘ad L1dve Aq.pejded
- =00 JOU 8.0 SUoloP
-UBWIWIODSI S,V dIO Udium
Ul SUoOHBNYIS Ul "s10l08liqg.
10 pIDOYg 10/pUD JoBBuUBYy:
“ jodetiany sy O} suolop

" suswiwossl Adlod piom -

=0} O} AIUOYIND ssaldxs

8y} VdIO epiaoid of pasia

~81:99 PINOYs [9POW By

SOAlDI

-lui Buuipg pun
Aoyod Buyjusuwi
-g|duw] Ul SAD)
-9p JUOOHIUBIS
‘Ad4g 104 sluy
Jo ainyipuad
X8 [QUOHIDPY

"3304s BulsIxa
Joj swl Jo ainy
-Ipusdxs swog

*SULIOJa.) AuD UO Ajolgnd
Hodal o) pup Qd 13vd

AQ padojsrsp Buiag soAll
-pijul Buuoly 10 Adjod
AUD Ul pBAJOAUL 89 O} Al
-llqisuodsal pup Ajlloyino
8U} VdIO epiroid 0} pasiA
-8l 9Q PINOUS [8POW S|

XIHLVIAI NOILVININTTdINI VdIO — INLINYLS LHOISHIAO 3D1M0d LUV FHL 30 M3IIAIY LNIANIIANI




a8ed]|t

JUDDHIUBLIS SWNSUOD SO} 1aYj0 USUM
soWl} 810 aloy) ‘JoASMOH "sBullsall
Alyjuow s,Apoq JoU} Ylim UoIO8ULoD

Ul sypad pup ‘[PISAD I g¥DdE 8yl 10}
Hoddng asodind sy} 10J VdIO Uby) Jayjo
juswitodsp o ul uolisod mau D ajp

-812 Of {NJYIP 89 ADW i PUD “fOUIsIQ 8u}
40 aInjonuis Juswabouow ay} apidwsy
-UOD |OU 80P UoiDPpUSWW0D3l ] *Bul
-jipis [puoyipPpPD aunbai pjnom pup ‘uoy
-oziunBio Bulysixe sy} o} 8BUDYD dypW

‘§4Dd¢g o} yond

Ao 10j0D Buney Aynoyjig

"1opdw jpuoy

“Jois Bul
-SIX® 1O} oWy}
Jo ainppuad

VdiO of paubis

-SD MOU SHSD} SALLDISIUILL
-PO UM JSISSD O} pInog
MOIASY UBZIID) 9D1|0d
1dvg ey} 1oy uoysod juoy
-SISSY BAIIND9X3 UL Buyp

XLVl NOLLVININT 1IN VdIO — JYNLINYLS LHOISYIAO 3DIM0d Lyve IHL 40 M3IIAIY LNIANIJIANI

-DIP O sjussaidal UoHDPUBUWIIODS] Si], S3A -Ult JUDDYIUBIS -IPP0 SWOS | X8 JUDDUIUBIS | -210 JOPISUOD PINOYS 13VE © ¥
e o k . ‘VdIO PUD pIDog MBIASY
~ UsziID 8210 [3VY U}
PR R o ; 10:s9j01 Apustusidwod
L USSIIIUS BU} J0. AUD Ag el “JoIs Buysixs 194 juspusdepu 8y
0 ainyipusdxs Aup ainbal jou pinom S ‘qyDdg ‘Adg | 1oy oWl Jo.ain] AJUD|o Ajssaidxa 0} pasia
' ebBonbup| BUIAJLDIS JO UOKIPPD 8yl S9A ~0}-JondU|-ON o} jopduw oN -Ipusdxs ON -8] 90 PINOUS [SPOW a4l i "€F
. ‘P3N0
"4y Ddd 8yi pup sBuljeaw Yyons Jsyiaym
-V dIO 40} sl [oUOHPPD [DWIUIL SUUOS uo podail Ajpnuun
ainbas pjnom uolbpuSIWoDa) Bu) PINOYs saljijus JyBIsisA0
-podal ay] “IpYD 8U} J0/PUD sisquisw 8Y] "SUOIDIDOSSY 82104
43249 10} sinjipusdxe Wil joUoHIPPD . 1¥va oM} sy} yiim Alonu
ul Jjnsal ADW 82UsIsYpPD YoNs *vdIO 104 PaINPaYDS D - “Hojs Bul | -Up |sps| o Buyesw o a|N
SWil [PUOHIPPL AUD 1O sebupyd ebpnb ‘qADdg Buyssw usym -JSIXS 04 Wl | -payds of jdwsip pinoys
-Up| AuUD aunbaJ },Useop [spow Buysixe 104 swiy Jo aIny uo Juspuadsp 10 ainypuad pIoog MaIASY UdZID
Sy} Jo sjuswalinbel sy} o} eouslaypy ON | -lpusdxe sulog jopduw PuUIUN -XO [DWIUIW | ©210d [3V] SU}L PUD YdIO | T
S -.'add Aq uoyp} , "AjHOYIND 1oy}
-Uswejdwi of Joud sbonbup pasodoid JO UOHNDSXS 8y} U] 8iD
"8y} MBIASL 01 gy dd 3y annbsipjnom  -18d003 0} sIeqUIsLU ile}
Adljod qdg o) ebupyd ¥ “juswainb AINp -8yl pup sayius Jybis
-al|yy .mm_b_oahooc:o:h [Pnupw Aoiod -IBAO S} JO AjoUiND ay)
Add 8y} urabonbup| 'ou si 8Iayy 18pow *adg "140is Buy 8]1odIodu] SIspIQ RIS .
Buysixs sy up sBonbup] o} Jupnsind gaDdg i0) sl Jo siny -iSiX@ 1of 8wl T -Us9 5,dd 13¥v4d {oul 2ins
sseooud yBisieao a4y ur aodpiund oy o} sy Jo 8in -puadxs jpuoy | 4o aunypusdxe | -Us 0} ad. 13V UHM Jlom
painbal Ajusind 81D SIS0 gdg SIUM -jpuadxs awos -Ippo sWos Jupoyiubisy PINOYS VdIO pUb 13vd | "1y




a3ed]st

equiswl gDdg IPNPIAIPUL UD
10 eoupwoped sy Buipiobai suoissaid
-WJ }29]|00 0} JyBNos 10}o8li AUD USYM
PUD JI AIUO Vdj @y} woy indul jusijiuus)

Asy 40100 Buitey Aynouig

‘44044

-UJ PUD [DWIUIW S8WOS aJinbal pinom siuy

ﬂonEoE mmumm Eot 5590 :

0y sy UBUE IS0 _mUOE 05 9 m,mc_ocu ,
IR0 JINSaL PINOM{OUY SOUIUS aUY: |
© 40 Aup:oy 1opduw {oze]ltalolle HolVA =T\ =TV] |

‘add

"J04S Bulsixa
10} swi} Jo ainy

“usuuuioddoal 388 1aq

-WBW pInOg MBIASY Uz
-HD 8210d Lvg P usym
indut Joy Ayunpoddo

SU} VdIO 8plroid o) pasia
-91.8q PINOYS [SPOW 8y}

0} Jopdult ON

‘oy ,GOQE_ Buwog,

"SSIIAILOD Sl PUD 9¥Ddg sul bul
-poddns of pajooIpep YdIO Of Jaquisw
H0}S [DUOIHPPD UD PPL 0} 8jqIspay aloul

8q AoWw §f 's10}08lIQ du} Ag paiuswald

-WI 810 SUCHDPUSWWIODS! IO 8yl JO Jeq
-WNU JUDDYIUBIS D USAS JI JDIS VdIO pPuUD

43DdE SU} U0q Joj suoyouny poddns jjy
-n} 0} JoIs BUlSIXS 10} AHNDIIP BWIOS g
Apw asayy ‘AyUDLIOAW] *JDIS VIO O} 3l
-DIIDAD AJJUSLND JOU SW} JO UCHDIIPSP
8y} Uim Joedso poddns py) pupbdxs
puB 8A0IdWl PINOD Y3 PBDDIPSR D PUD
‘BuiuNsuo-swl AJBUISDS.IOUI 8LWOD8
SOY 93049 8yt 104 Bujuioly Jo uoisiaoid

U] "gyDdg U4 o} sesjuioddn mau Jo Bul
-PIooquUo 8y} pupb $8ss9001d JuBLIBSING
-wiaJ esuadxs o} pipbas yum Ajoioad

=58 “}DIS VIO WO UOHUSHD puD sl

0} jopdwj oN

v dad
o} joodul] ON:-

-pusdxs sWwos

totu mm_hm_xo.
10} 9} o 21N}

“~IpUsdxs.oN

VIO 40

| “edupwiopsd sy uo jnd

-u1 Bujees si s104081i(] 4O
L pIoOg 8y} USym LoLOW
~i0jul| JO @21n0s [pyusiod
‘BUO S PIDOY MOIASY USZ

~HD 201l0d 13Va dy} oy

aBpa|MOUNOD O} PasIA
-81 8 PINOYS [9POW 8U |

XI4LVIA NOLLVININITdINI VdIO — 3UNLIINYLS LHOISHIAO ID110d LHVE FHL 40 MIIATY LNIANIHIANI




a8ed]|ot

‘suoj1do a|go[IDAD sIojdXs 18yl

-81 8Q PINOM L0 awos pup:‘sBuijeaul
oy} Joy senuea syoudoiddn jo-Alg
-DIIDAD By} Buipinbal Aluibiaoun suos
.. 0sjp 51 818y "SLUODISAO 9g; PIN0D PUD
pInom sebusiipyd assyl aaibap Ibym
oL UMOLUN suIbWal }i ng-‘sBuljeawy
-ayisyo Joinbel Buip|oy Ag paioajidwos

puUD ‘spole oW JO.AISAIIBP /SfUBIYSS

8] JO UOISIACI ‘sjus IS iNbSL IBNSIA/ Ol
-No - BuBoubw sBuestl ' gyDJg pusyp
ApojnBal sdal uojun pPUD LUDIS PUDWIOD

. SWOS pUD 821|0d JO JBIYD ayl ‘a0 'H§ois
{dg pUR YdiO J0} pUD sisquisw gyDdg
iog BuiBuaioyo AjooisIBol 8 pinom
sUoNLOO] Bulisaul gD 4g Buibuoyn

=N} O} VIO PUD g3Ddg Yiog Aq paiinb

94 p|nom spusisiinbas aolou/Bulysod.

"g40dd 0} Jond

-WJ JUDOYIUBIS

A3y 10103 Buney Aynoyyia

‘PopIACId st BUUIDI]

{PYE MOY JO ssejpioBal sisquuis gy dd
JSBJUNJOA JOJ JUSWIHIWIWIOD Bulil} 8y
{oodwit Ajupsd pinom winiBoid Bujuog
peoupyus Auy alauymasie paysabtins
VY3 8y} O} paubisso a1em SIS0 SU} I WO
U} WO 82UD{sISSD Bulypis JuoDYIUBIS
pup Jois Bulisixe woly aouppInb Jo [oAg)
JeMO| aulos alinbai pjnom ‘AjgAlipulslD
10 “4DIS WS UO Jondw] OU 9ADY PINOM
pup yois Bulsixs oy awl Jo ainypuad
-X8 8y} aspaloul pInom § “Apiqisuods

~S1 9D} PINOM JDIs ¥ dIO [puoyippD 1o
HOIS vdIO Buiisixe Jayloum uo juspusd

ON

‘44044 o}
jopdwl awog

' Qdg o1

uojs Bul
-ISIXS JOJ Sl

.,.E<m AQ POAISS S9IDD0] JO
AR JopIm D 0} sBuljes
sji Buyiblol leplsuoDd

-9p 8q PINOM AYNDYIP uoibiusws|dw;

S ‘ulelsy
PoISPISUOD SaIUS B4 JO AUD U0 10'Ss1aq
-Waw Buiisixe uo jondull Ou'sADY PINOM

pup sjuswsasnbel ssquisw gyDdg Bul
-pioBal seini sy} of eBupyD B AUO S} SiLf

jo ainjpusd _PINOYS pIDOg MBIASY
_ jopdwitswos | - JupdyubS uazlis 8oljod [dvg oyl | ‘6¥
sloquuIBW
pIDOg MBIASY JUSLND
DS [OUOIS O} AfloNuuy-1wss Jspa
-s9j01d joUOl | 1D PBPIACI 89 PINoys Bul
-PPo aunb | -ulbi] ©2IASS-Ul PUD ‘sieq
-2 ADW/UDIS -WSW pIDOg MBIASY usz
Buisixe | -1D 821104 [3ve Buiwiod
‘add | Jojawljoeini | -U| I0) pasiAe(Q og plnoys
0} jopduwl ON | -lpusdxe swog wninownD Buiumway v i gy

"Qd¢
0} Jooduwij ON.

"J0Is Buysixe
loyaul Jo-ainy
-pusdxe oN

‘PI0OG MBIASY USZIID
921|104 13Vd SU} Uo aales
0} sjaibjjaul a1 |pUUOS
-lad Qd [3V4 Jeuwuoy yoyy
AJUDID PINOUS [9POW 8|

XI4LVIAl NOILVINIWITdINI VdIO — JYNLINYLS LHOISYIAO 321104 L4vE IHL 40 MIIATY LNIANIJIANI




98edlsT

cm:oc:c N ele| EQOQEQ [eRUTeTIt-Yo [VNL-TVI
“p Bulob|dal Jo} sses0oid >£@c®_ ayjjo
mm:oomo_ _OU_BQQE_ si-aBpNBUD| w8ouss.
-go-JO 8ADSY,, BUliSIXe BU| "seDUSSID
DOXS40y 3049 mc_oc_am_ 10 mmmooa
COAIsUBLI-aLL pub Jogp) oyl sIpUIWIS O}
_o:cm_,oo_ ayisoy Inq: &o_bm_ U sisg -
SWeW g¥Dde [PNpIAPUL ‘YdiO'usamiaq

~2lNbai PINOM UOHDPUBSWUIODS] S|

© ’SISOLUNIOA GNDdE"

~pup eo,,omgo oy co__ho :mocomno

-~ JO'9ADY),, AU} m,:oc !
psau sbonbup): bmvcmEEooQ MBU SIUY-

UoHLILUNUIWOD JO° ®.5m0®rc =Occ_w SUI0S

: . mmun_m :
1o UOQE_ swos

Asy JojoD) Suney Aynoyug

SISO [PNUUD UD Uo pod

-81 2lland D JsAldp pup aindsaid o) sAby
PINOM JaguIBaWl YoDns pup 'ajnpayds
Bulesw Ajutuow ay} 4O SPISINO INDD0 O}
pasU PINOM AHAIDD UDDSIINO [SOW "188}
“UNIOA 93 5dd YD0S WO} Ll jouoiIppo
JupDYIUBIS ainNbal pINOM PapUBSLILIODS.
so Buodal [pnuUUD puUL Yonauno of
JUBWIHWWOD pedubyus Up jng ‘|opow
sy} jo abpnBup| syt o} sbBupyd B alNb
-1 JOU PiNom Yopalino gaDdg Buipinbe.
seo(opId pup sainpaooid o] aBupyd v

"g4Ddg o} jood
-Wl JUDDLIUBIS

/ ..tcﬁ..mq_.
=151 0] ‘Bl
. Josinjipusd:

| -XO DU

suolD WL 82USS

~Qp -8y} JsuIpbBo JUNod

./ JOUPINOM {DY} 8N
PoOB 10} $82U8SAD PasSND
- =X 9ZUOYIND O} PBSIA
-81 90 PINOYS |9pOW ay|

g

(V3 mau

1O Hpis Buysixs
Jayieym) Hois
VdIO 10} swil
10 ainjipusadxs
[IDUIIUIL BUIOS

10§ [DUBIOY

‘ULIB) JDUCHIPPL UL O} 189G
-WBW pIDOog MBIASY BU}
Buyuioddpal o} Joud psais
-PISUOD 8q ||IM YD03UNO
olgnd s jaguisil Yoo Jo
salbap sy} ‘Ajpuld IDsA
snolaald-ayl usipuspun
SOy 8ys/ay yonauno sy}
uo Appygnd podal pinoys
_Jequusu pInog MBIA

-9y UoD® ‘SIspq |[pNuuo
up uQ “Ajuoyino Buyuiod
-dp Jay/siIy AQ suoypioad
-X8 U208lN0 O} paus|o
89 plnoys Jsquisul But
-LWIODU| YoODa ‘puUsS oY) Of
"PBASIYDD S| YD08IN0 O}
JUSWILIWWIOD §,[8POW BU}
{PU} 8INSUS O} papuUsLUl
pInog Maiasy UsziilD 89|
-0d 13V 8ui AQ pajdopp
a0 PINOYS $alNpsed0ld

XI41VIAl NOILVININI1dINI VdIO — IUNLINYLS LTHOISYIAO I0110d L¥vE IHL 40 MIIATY LNIANIJIANI




28egq|8r

"82IAISS JO sUia]

Buipipbal suoypioadxs 1891UN|OA a30dg
{0940 PINOM PUD JUSWIINIOSI 84D}

-1ioB4 PINOM VIO USHO MOy Uo [o8ys
SIS ALY AJUDSSSD8U pinom paidopn
ssod0ud 8y} ybnouy} ‘(seAleswayy ‘siojos]
-0 8y} woy spiso) seius sy} Uo (o8 e

SOA

44049 |

0} Jopdw| swiog &

OU O} 8l1] 8ADY PINOYS UOHOIYUDID iU
T "SMBIA

-8l .Eo:_ommp:m 1ONPUOD O} PRJODIUOD

| Sldeaswoym BuiboBus o) awil jupouiu
-BIs HWUWOD 04 Padiso 8 [im SORIUS aU}
40 YODs oyt Alex si Ji‘edusisyei jo jujod

44048 o} jond

D SO 55820.1d MdIABI (dNOID HIO) SIUF UM SaA - JupoRudIS
JI0YD vy} AQ siusl
-3Jbjs olignd Aup Buinss| pub Buiroiddp
0} sse00.d D ysiigoyse Asyl SO gyDdg 5
B} 1O} oM [DUOIIPPD Ut §jNSel ADU
8abUDYD B} ING ‘SalIUS SU} WO SOM i
Aup alinbai ‘jesyi Jo puD U| ‘Jou se0p uoy “IIPYD
-DZLoY}ND ssaidxe spnjout 0f |opow sy} pPUDL g30dg
10 aBonbup| sy} of abupyo siew ay] $9) | 0O} Jopdwl swiog
,{@ o e = %ﬂ w % j mv ¢
,ﬁ - ey ~LtD" IR T
. . DL 58 . K . m@

A9 J0j0) Buney Aynoyg

HoJs Buysixe

*0s BUop 10} il

awiy Aup Apoads pup asy
-uloddp gyDdg $,405580
-opaid 18y IO siy sAow
-9l Aljiaofun Abw 10}
-08lid 1YV g Poipos-Amau

‘add | Jojeuwjo eini | D JaylsuM AJLDID Of PaSIA
0} joodw) oN -lpusdxs ON -81 8Q PINOYS |OPOW 8Y] | '#G
. SIPA
-I8JUl JOBA-INO} JO WINW
“JoIs Bul -lUiW B 1o-salpue Jybis
~ -}SIXS 1O B} ~JOAO S, |8V F JO SMBIASI
‘add oy | - jo ainypusd | - -opoued JoJ [ o} PosIA

1oodwy swios

X9 JUDDUIUBIS

-8J 39 PINOYs |ISpOw sy = g5

‘add
o} Jopduwi| oN

“HOIS Bulisixs
1o} sy Jo ainy

-lpuadxs ON

“Jom Lydis

~I9A0 Jidy} }nOgD sjuswi
-8}p|s oljand a3pw of
PIDOg MBIASY USZIID 99|
-Od L3V Sy} pup vdIO ozi
-IOYiND Ajssaidxe o} pesia
-91 89 pPNOYs [spow ay]

. a

XIULYIN NOILVLNIWIF1dINI VdIO — FHNLINYLS LHOISHINAO 31104 14vd 3HL 30 M3IATY LNIANIJIANI




Date: November 13th, 2017

To: BART Board of Directors
300 Lakeside Drive, P. O. Box 12688,
Oakland, CA 94604-2688

From: BART Police Citizen Review Board
George Perezvelez, Chairperson 2017-2018

Subject: BART Police Citizen Review Board (BPCRB) review and chart on the OIR Group
Report

The OIR Group’s Report (Report) makes recommendations regarding BART’s Police Citizen
Review Board (BPCRB) and includes an opinion on the proposed changes to the structure and
the process by which the Office of the Independent Police Auditor (OIPA) and the BPCRB
operate. The BPCRB believes that the Report provides the BART Board of Directors (BART
Board) with a contrasting opinion on possible changes to the existing police oversight model.

The BPCRB discussed the Report during two regular meetings, on September 18, 2017 and
October 16, 2017, as well as during an additional special meeting held on October 23, 2017, for
a total of 8 hours of deliberation.

The BPCRB as a group decided to engage in a deliberative process comprised of a thorough
discussion of each individual recommendation followed by an up or down vote. Some of the
votes were close and the opinions expressed by BPCRD members were at times strikingly
divergent. Hence the Chair recommends that individual Directors engage with their BPCRB
“appointee to better appreciate the point(s) raised during those discussions and the appointee’s
reasoning during those close votes. -

The BPCRB appreciates that the BART Board must take into account budgetary concerns as
well as digest stakeholder input regarding how police oversight should be conducted. We trust
that the BART Board agrees with the BPCRD's view that effective police oversight is dependent
on the continued implementation of progressive policing measures. Measures that ultimately
guarantee the safety of the public, our law enforcement personnel and the BART community at

large.
Although the BPCRB understands that ultimately it is up to the BART Board to approve changes

to the current police oversight model, we respectfully request our continued participation during
the final deliberative and implementation process.

Respectfully submitted,

George D. Perezvelez



Ajjeulauy
pajuswa)dw eq pinod sy} ey} saAsiaq pieog oy

ajebisaau; 0} paydo

Joypny sy jey suopebajje Bugebyseau) jejep pinom ad 1yvg pue
30O ayy Aq Ajfeniur paaieoal suonebaije jurejdwoo Aue ajebisaau
0} Jayjaym aujuielep pinom yd|O Aqateym wbipeled aajebisau)
ue dojeAsp p|noys Qd 1¥VE PUE Yd|O USASS UOIepUaWILIOdaYy

JUBSU0JD snowueun

uolepuSaWIWIODal SIU) Yim saaibe A|ny P_.mom ayy

dd 1yvd jo sajoljod auy) sejeolidul
Jey} 1onpuoosiw jo uonebaje Aue ajebisanul 0} Ajjige ay) VdIO
apiroid 0} pasiAal 8q pjnoys [9POJN BY | XIS UOKRPUSLLWIOIaY

ssa00.d
aapiuwWoaqns ay) 0}
lejop 0} Juswaaibe

"WasAs oy} UIyNIM sasnge sjealo
PINOS JeY) SeoueISWINDIID Spnoul 0} papuedxs aq o] spaau
uonepuswiwodal sy} jo abenbue| sy} -jussaid siopjoyaxels

eako|dwa Od 14vg Aue jsulebe pieog mainsy usziyd) 890 | Hvg
8y} 10/pue YdjO uym Jureidwons e ajy o] Aypige sy} suosiad Aue
apiAoid 0} pasiaes 8q piNoYs [9POJ Y :9Al4 UORPUSWILLIOIDY

Jayuny 1o} j9sunod

[ebaj 14vg 03 Jajop
0} 9JOA snowjueupn)

snouwiueun lie Uim [9AS] 88)ILUILIOD]NS B JE PasSNOsIp pue pajjoA
Alin} 8q 0} spesu uojEpUBLIWODAI SIY} SEA3Ijeq pJeog By
uolssnasip *Aoljod JoLS1g paysijgelse Se [jom se

sjuswiaiinbay Joy uojeWIOU JO.WOPaBIH BY) YIMm Bul| U] 8]
PINOYS UOHEULIOMI JO UOHBUIWIASSSIP ||B Jey} PUB PaAISSqo
ale sybry Jo [i1g s490WO 8010d By} JO Sjoadse |[e ainsud

0} papaau S| UOISSNOSIP JaYUN} Jey} SAAaISq pleog sy

. ‘ognd

ay} pue ‘pieog majaey UszZiID 991jod 1 Hvd ay) ‘Jebeue [eteuss
3y} ‘si0joau1( JO pseOg 8y} JO uojuaNE Sy} 0} uoiebisaAul jeuolippe
1onpuos 0} dd Lyvd Aq eoue)sisal Aue podal 0} Ajuoyine ssaidxe
3} VdIO apirold 0} payipow 8q pinoys [9PCjy 8y 1 “UojeuuLIs}ep
Areuydiosip pue uopjsodsip yoeas jo sseusjeudoidde au

pue uonebysaaul yoes Jo Ajenb ay; Jo Juswssesse sy jno Bupes
‘fejep uf suogouny Bunipne pue juswaAjoAu; s} podas Ajongnd
pInoys pue Jaeafo auljdiosip pspuswiwodal pue suojebisaaul

uo ejep papodal sj} ayew pjNoyYs YdiO 1IN0 UOHEPUAWILLIOaY

UOISSNOS|p Jayuny
pue [asunoo [ebsg)

‘uoluido payeA Afn} e Joy
Jasunoo [ebs| 13yg o} ob 0} spasu siu) seAsljeq pieog ay |

uonebnsaaul ue jo Buidoos ajeudoidde ay) pue ‘mainal
[eUIWILIO J0} ABLLIONY 101ISIQ Y} 0) PapIeMIO) 8qQ PINOYs Joyjjew

pue [ebaj 0} Jojep 0}
JUasU0D snowiueu(

uopeBiseAul [euiwlo e SIA B SiA Jajjew Ateudiosip
B JO SOSBO U)iM ISIXa Su1sauo) “uojuido panaa Ajjny e 1oy
[asunoo [eBs| 1 4vg 0} 0b 0} spaau siy) seAslaq pieog ay |

1¥vg 03 18jep 0} e Jayjaym BuipseBal suoisioap ul paajoAul 8q pjnoys )i ‘Buiiojuow
JUSSUO0D SnoLuueUN awljj-|eal 0} BAOW Yd|O PINOYS :938JY | UOIIBpUBWILLOISY
UOISSNos|p Jayuny "901jJ0 s,Asulone 1oulsIp e Aq pajonpuod 'ss@o0.d ay) Bupe|dwos

Qad 1yv4g 0} Joud suogisodsip jo ssausjeudoidde pue suonebyssau
jo yybuays ay) uo suoyepuswiwodas Buueyo ‘Bulojuow Bwy-esl,
0} suofjebiseAu; sireye [eulsjul Od 14V 4o uonouny Buuoyuow

sy Buifypow Jep|suoo piNoys Vd|O :0M | UOI}epUSWLLIODaY

uoISSNIs|p JaYuNy
pue jeba| 0} 1ojep 0)
Juesuoo snowjueun

SpelW aq Ued UoepuaLuWoal [euly
e aiojeq pamainal Ajybnoloy) aq o} paau sjoeluo Joge
pue suopeoyiel |ebs} a|qissod |le saAaljsq pieog sy

"AiNp Yo Jo uo Jayeym
sis01jo uloms Bujajoaut 1onpuoosiw [enusiod jje o} pue ad Lyvg Jo
seakojdwa uioms-uou o} spusixa AjLoyine s,yd|o 1o edoos au) jey)

Jes|d 8xew 0} pasiAal 8q pINCYS [POJAl 8| :8UQ UOIJBPUBWILLIOIBY

9JOA

uolssnasiq

SUOIJEPUSIWIOIBY

HeyD pue malAsy pajejouuy Joday HIO gu0dg

Hey) pue meiAsy pajeuouuy Hodey HIO gY¥0dE




8JOA ‘[1om se majaal 0} uado aq isnw auydiosip ajeoipnipe -Bupum ul sBuipuy siy/Jsy 0o 19s o)

fuolew Aq pessed| 0} uexe) sdays ayj ‘ssedoud Jo Aousiedsued ||ny aq o) asayy’ Jabeueyy [ereuas) sy} ainbal 0} pesiAal Jeyuny aq PINOYS [SPOIN SUL
Joj} Jopio U "uojlepuawwioal siy} Yim saalbe pieog sy Bupesw jeadde ay; e a1y auy Aq ypuoj }8s sjuswinbie jeuonippe
Aue 0} puodsai 0} pue ‘Bugiesw |eadde Aue je juasaid aq o} ‘Buum

u puodsai 0} Ajunpoddo sy pJeog mainay UaziID 801104 Luvg

ayj jJo siey) sy} pue Jopny ay) spiacid pue Bunum u; jeadde Joy
sjuswinbie pue suoseas ay} psemio} nd Ajpwiy o} JeiyD sy aainbal

0} pabueyo aq pinoys [OPOo a1 :Ud3d}i4 UOHJEPUSWILIODDY

9J0A -sBuipuy Jiayy puiysq bBuiuosesl “yoeqpas} pue nduj aAle0al

Ajuolew Aq passed 8y} Juasaid 0} pamojje si i §I Ajuo pue uopeoipnipe. 0} 19pIO Ul pIeOg MBIASY USZI)D 821104 1 HVg oy} 0} suonebisaaul
ur Aes e aABY ||IM §HDdE SUl Jl I aAey AJuo ueo {ewlalul dd 14 ussald 0} uolaLosip ayj Joypny ay; apiaoid

ssaooud siy] "uonepuswuiodal siy) yum seaibe pieog sy 0} POsIABI @4 PINOYS [OPO 84 :Ud31IN0- UOJEPUSWIUIOIDY

9j0A 'ssa00.d jeadde ue jo yed se pesn ‘uojjeujwialep s AQiuofew

Auofew Aq passed| aq ueo Aayy § Ajuo ng ssao0.id sy 0} JueAajal aJe suojuido ay) wouy buibroAlp 10} sjeuonel Jjay} N0 }8S PINOYS Siajuassip
Bunuessiq "uonepuswwoosal sy} yim seaibe pieog ay] . 8y} ‘sbulpull pue suojepuSWILIODa) 8SBD S JONPNY BY) YIM saaibe
: . Auofew snowueUN-UOU B YOIYM Uf SBseD U} olignd apewl aq pjnoys :

sBujpuy pue suoEpUSWIWIOIal 9SED S J0JIPNY aU] UO Jaquisw

Aq Ajfey ajoA s,pieog MIIASY UBZIID 8010d 1MVE dU) ey} Jonusul

0} PasIASL 94 PINOUS [9PO Sy L :UdajIyl UOBPUSWILLODdY

UOISSNOSIp Jayuny ‘1SIXa “JuspIoul 8y} Jo Junoooe 0apiA Aue mala o} Ajunyoddo ay
Jo} jasunod [ebsj| sjuswalinbal joy uopeuLIOUl JO WOPaaly ay) 0} aduaseype| jueuieldwod ay} 8o PINOYS YdIO ‘Buipuy psureisns e uj ynsai jou
1¥vg 0} Jajep 0} UM SUISOU0D BUWIOS "MalAel Jayuny Joj [asunod [efio]|  ssop uopebiiseAul papnpuoo e USUAA :9AJaM | UOIIEPUSLILLIOIDY

JULsSuU0d snouwliueun

1yvg 0] pailajal aq pjnoys siy} jey} seasijaq pseod ey

Juasuod snowiueun

'ssao0.d Bujpodas

3Y} SUIWEaL}S PUB UOISNIUOD SZIWIUIW 0} paja|dwod

s1 ssa00.d |eadde ay) Jaye Jno Juas aq Ajuo pinoys
sBuipul yym Japs| sy} Jey) SPUSWILIODa) JayNy pJeoq

8l "UONEPUSWIWOa] SIY} Yyim juswaaibe ul si pleog ay ]

‘UOISN|OUOD |

s}l yoeal 0} usye} sde)s aApebisaAul 8U} INoge uonewIoul
[euonippe jueuiejdwod ayj apiroid pue ases [enpIAlpul yoes

0} siap8| Buiso[o S} J0ojIe]} PINOYS YdIO :USAa]3 UOREPUSWILIOIY

JUasu0d snouliueun

"UOJ}EPUBLLILIOIAI SIU} UM Juswaaibe u| sj pleog ay L

‘papunojun

10 ‘pajelouoxs ‘paule)sns jou ‘pauieisns jo Buipul e puswiwosal
pinoys vdio ‘uonebisaul ydiO Ue Jo uoisnjouod ay) uodn

Jey} 108}jad 0) psyiIe|d aq pinoys [pon] a8y ual :o_un_u:oEEoomm

JUaSUOD snowliueu

o|qnd apew aq sse20.d 8L JeY) SPUSWILLIOda)
pue uojjepudWILIODAI SIU} Ylm Juswaaibe u) si preog sy

-sasen

10 uonnjosai juaiola pue jdwoid 0} JUsWHWWOD B j088l osje Jnq
sjuswaiinbai Aiojnie)s auyy Josw Ajuo jou Jey} s[020)oid [euisiul sy uj
saujewl} sAnebisaAul JNo 18S PINOYS YdIO :UIN UO)JePULILLIOddY

JUasu090 snouuiueun

olignd apew aq ss8204d SU} jBY) SPUSWLILIOS)
pue uolepuswwosal siy) yum juswaaibe u; si pieog sy

‘suojjebisaauj fewssiul sy 1o} suopeloadxs
pue aouepinb apiroid
0] Jyjoogpuey e dojpasp pinoys vdio Jybi3 uoepuswiwoday

HeyD pue malAsy psjeuouuy Hodey HIO 8H0dE



8J0A
Aofew Aq passed

uonepusuiwodal sil} Ypm sasibe pieog ay |

‘B|jjes 01

uoisioap sy} yum paaibe ydlo Jayioum pue abels aujidiosip-jsod au
Je papyas saseo Aue uo podas Ajpiignd 0} Jojipny 8y} ainbai pjnoys
1opPoN 8UL "AljigelunodoE [BNPIAIPUI JO UOISOI@ SNOLISS B 0] Junowe
PInom juswiajes ey ey} pul Jo)pnY ayj pinoys Jabeuepy [eisusg)
8y} 0} Jejew ayj syes o} uonuajuy Aue jeadde 0y Aunuoddo

8y} Joypny 8y} spiaoid pINoYs |9pojy 8y ‘UOHE}NSUOD 10}
Ajunuoddo ue Joypny ay) apiaosd pue pesoduwy usaq sey suydiosip
Jaye saseo g|1I8s 0] siayo Aue Jo yYd|O asudde 0} | yyg aunbal

0} pesiAal aq PInoys [apojy aY | :0m |-AJuam | UOEPUBLIWIODIDY

ajon Ajuolew e Aq
papuawiwio2al JON

‘paaibesip

Auofew ay) ‘Aoualedsues) Joy AleSS809U LOEPUSWILLIODA]

Siy} epew saseo 1sed }|a} siequisw Jewos ybnoyyy

"uoneoyipow |

|y} yum pasibe

ay Jayisym pue uoneoyipow Ateuydiosip Jo uoisodsip [eiv ue Jo
uopjeoiipow Aue uo podal Ajongnd o} Joypny

8y} aunbaui pjnoys [epo ay L *A}jiGeIunoooe JO UoISOIe SNolIas

B U] }jnsal pinom uoljeoyipotu Aue jeuyy aasiaq ay pjnoys Jebeuepy
[e1auag) sy} 0} sseooid |eadde ue 1oy)pny ay) apiacid pinoys [epon
8yl “suoneujwiaiep Aeuydosip Jo uonisodsip [eniut Aue Bufjipow |
0} Joud JoJpNY 8y} yjm }NSU0D 0} K0 4O JaIyD sy} alinbau

0} pasiAal aq pjnoys [SPO 8y | :auQ-Ajuam] UoljepUBSULLOIDY

JUSsSU0D showiueun

uonepuawWoal iy} yim ssalbe pieog ey

‘sjeadde asoy} Jo s}nsal ay} pue paaiadal sjeadde jo Jaquinu
au} uo podai AuenBai pinoys vd|O :Aluem] LOEPUBILLIOSDY

JUSSUOD snowliueu

"uojiepuSWIWOoal 8Y) Yim saaibe pieog ay)

vdio

0} Buipuy ey |eadde o} Jybu Jay/siy Jo Jueure|dwos sy} SULIOUI
osfe awoono aseo Bujpsebal yueure|dwos ayj 0} 18138 UCKEDLNOU
padinbai s juswedaq 221j04 Y} 1Y) aInsus 0} d 1MV

UM JHOM PINOYS VIO PUe 1Hyg :Us8ajauiN UOHBPUSLLLLOISY

9]OA
Auofew Aq passey

: "VdIO 8y} jo uopoipsun|

8y} awooaq AjpAljoays vdiO 9y3 0} saseo psjeadde

lle Jey} uone|ndys pue uoRIPPE 8y} SPUSWILLIOIS) OS[e

J1 UOHIPPE U] "UCHEPUSWILIOTaI SiU} Yim saaibe pieog oy

‘ad Lyvd Aq psjonpuos uolebisanul sieye |eulsiul
Aue o sBuipuy ay) vdiO 0} jeadde o} ybu ay) sjueure|dwos spiroid
0) pasiAal 8q pInoys |Spoj ay | :uas)ybig uoepuaIWIoddY

JUSsuU0d snowtueun

‘lIam se malaal o} uado aq jsnw auijdiosip ajeo|pnipe
0} uaye} sdajs sy} ‘ssaooud jo Aoussedsuey) |jny aq 0} sisy)
Joj Japio uj "uopepuBLILLODaL SIY} Y)m seaibe pieog ey

"uoheUILLIB)SP UoRIsodsIp e Japual

‘801j0d J0 JaIyD au3 pue safjius Jybisieao sy woy Indu Bulaeoal
Jaye ‘pue Buyesw e susauod |Im JoBeuepy [esauas) sy} ‘uonisodsip
8seo B uo saibes|p sanijua Jybisiano a0ljod 1 Mg SY) usym jeu
os pabueyo aq pjnoys [apoy 8y | :UIJUBASS UOHEPUSWIWOIY

JUSSUOD snoulueup

llam se majaal 0} uado aq jsnw suldiosip ajesipnipe
0} e} sdajs sy} ‘ssao0id Jo Aouaiedsuely |y 8q o) aiay)
J0} J8pl0 U] "UOKEPUSWWOS] SIY} UM saaibe pieog ay |

sjuswadinbal Ajllenuapyuoco me| aJe)s UM jus)sisuo Buasui
|eadde yons Aue jo synsa1 ay} podai Kjolgnd o} Jolipny ay) aanbe
0} pabueyo aq pjnoys |9poyy sy (USIXIS UOHEPUILUWOIDY

HeyD pue MaiAsY pajeucuuy Hodey HIO §HOdE




8JoA Auofew e Aq
papusWIWodal JON

" JUSsUOD SnowueU(

*9]0A Ajuofew e Aq pajosial sem LofEpUSWLLLIODal

ay ‘Aouasedsuer pue ssaooud jybisiano ay) 0} ppe pjnom
sdejs mainal 9210} JO asn |je U] Jojpny Juspuadapuj ayy
o :o:ma_o_tma ay) 1By} paAdljeq siaquiswl swos r_m:oﬁ_<

“UOIEPUSLLLLIOD3] I} Yim sealbe pieog oy |

"SPJBOQ MBIARI 3010} JO 3SN S, 1MV

ut sjediored Apejnbal pjnoys vdio :3uQ-AMIY L UOIEPUBWILIODaY

€ S| Juapioul 8y} Jayaym jo ssejpiebal ‘ad 1 Mg Aq syuspioui

8210} o asn Buimsiaai jo Ayjiqisuodsal pue 1o} Aoyine ay) vdio |
apinoid 0} pasiAal 8q pinoys jepoly 8y :AMIYL uoiepUSWILOITY |

JUSSUOD SnoLjueL

"SjuaAa yons Buunp payiou aq o} pasu

jey) ssweu Jo 3s| 8L} 0} pappe aq p[noys Jieyd gyodd 8yl
‘uoliPpe U} ‘UOHEPUSWILLODAI SiY) YIm saaibe pieog oy

‘yyeap Apojsno-ut Aue pue ‘Ainfu; Jueoyiubis ul Buninses 8010} Jo

asn Aue ‘yjesp Jo Ainful uj paynsal 9010} A|peap JO &SN BU} JayIayM
jo ssajpsebai (Ainp yo Jo Anp uo) sBuooys POAJOAUI-ISLYO e
Buipnjous Juspiou; |esnuo Aue jo paygou Ajawi si V4|0 1BY) 9Insua
0} padueyua aq pinoys |9po 8y m:_z.bzci L Uojjepuaiwodsy

Juasuod snowiueun

uonepuswWwwWOoal siy} Uum saaibe preog oy

‘ssaooid
uoinjosal sjndsip aAljeuls)je aAloaYse ue sapiaoid pue sieoylo

pue sjueutejdwod o} aAjoeIe S| Jey} $$800.d UOHEBIPSLU B S]BaId 0}
SHoye s}l 9|qnopal pnoys vdio Em_m.b:mzs L UOJJEpUSLUWoY

UOISSNOSIP Joyuny
40} [asunod [efigj

Jesunoo [ebBaj 1 yyg Aq papeA aq o) papasu ..m:m>
ybnouyje ‘uoepuswwiodsal siy} Jey} pesibe siequisw pieog

coamma__ [IAID mc;>m.>m._ ui oM sy
uo Ajlignd podal pinoys vdio UBADG-AJUOM | UOIJEPUDIWIOIDY

14vd 01 J8jep 0}
JUSSUOD snowiueun

9J0A 'sanijiqisuodsal 'sanss| ojwajsAs Aue ajeipawial 0} papusiul

Auofew Ag pessed jo uojsuedxe ue yons Aeyep o) pspasu Bujpuny  suopoe 8Al8.I09 dojeAsp 0} Od 1¥vg Uiim xiom pue souewilopad
Aressao8u 8y} SE ||om SE ||oM SB ,9SISADE,PIOM U} JO asn ad L4dvg Bunjoaut sjuswbpnf asisApe pue sjuswiepies

8y} ul yusiul dYIoads Byj Jnoge paulewal SuIouo) aalby: jueoyiubis Aue maiAal piNoYs YdIO XIS-AJuUoM | UOPEPUBWILLIOIDY

3j0A LolJepusWIWIODal SIU} Yym saaibe pieog ay | ‘pajebnsanul Ajybnoioyy aze

Auofew Aq pessed . jonpuoosiw jo suonefa||e ainsus 0} SHNSME| pUB SWIe|D MalA_l 0}

Auoyine papiaoid aq pjnoys ydio :aAl4- 3:95 L UojepusILIodSY

JUasU0D snowjueun

uopepuswiLodal SiY) Uum sasibe pieog ay |

umH:mEo_aE_

9I9M SUOIEPUSWILIOD3) PIEOE MIINSY USZIID 29%ilod 1¥vd oy

pue ydiO yoigm o} saibap oy pue Jjnsas aseo ay} JNoge uogeusiopu]
Buipincud ‘uoisnjouoo 0} uopdaouy wioyy uonebisanu; Aiane

uo podai Ajoiqnd pjnoys vd|O :dno4-Ajuam | uoHepUsSWILIOIdY

" quieidwiod e jo 108igns

1

(q) pue (&) yioq uo
JUBSUOD showijueun

"uopjeoyLe|o pue uojssnosip Jo asodind ayj Joj sped omy
OJul uolepUBWIWIODal S|y} pajesedas siequisi pieog oy |

‘(gq)sanssi asoy}

sje|pawsal 0} 0d 1¥VE YlIM diom pue uofesyipow Aue o} siseq
8} pawuio} Jey)) sanss| oiwaisAs Aue Apuapi 0} Jo)pny ay) alinbal
pInoys japoy ay| *(e) uoneouipow Aue 1o} suoseal aij) sjenjeAs

0} pue suojsioap Aseujdiosip pue uojisodsip [eniu puiasal 1o Ajpou

Jey) suojjeuiwajop uoneniqie Aue uo Lodai 0} Joypny ay) asnbal
0] pas|Aal 8q pjnous [SPOoj Y| :881y]-AJusMm] UOIJEPUSLUWO3Y

HBYD pUB MOIASY pajeuouUy Hoday HIO gY0dE




JUasuod snowueun

"uolepUSLILIODS! SIY) UM seaibe preog syl

*AjHoYINe ey} JO UONNOSXa 8y} ul sjesadoos

0} sJaquuaw jo Anp ay) pue sanpua Jybisiano sj jo Auoyne

ay} ajesodioou] S19pIQ [elauss) S,(d | HVd 18U} ainsus 0} d 1Hve
UNM HLOM PNoys YdIO Pue | My :auQ-AH04 uojepuaLIL0oay

JU8sUO0O snowiueun

"uoljepuswiLLiodal siy) yim saalbe pieog sy

‘Ad 1Hvd Aq pajdaooe pue pieog meinay
8y} Aq pasiopus a1am SUONEPUSLLOIAL 8U} Yoiym 0} saibap !

8y} pue suonepuswwodal Bujpuejsino snojreid Aue uo ayepdn ue
apnjoul pinoys Yd|O ‘Hodal jenuue sy U :AHO04 UOKBPUSWILLIOIY

ajon Aofew e Aq
papuawwosal 10N

*9)0A Ajuofew e Aq pasoidde jou sem
uojepuslwIodal ay) ‘ssaooid SaouB|eq pUe osyo ay) 0}
PPE [|IM SIU} 18y} paasijaq Ajbuoss siaquisw swos ybnouyy

‘Apus

Buiusanob s, | Hyd 0} UoEISPISUCD JBULNY JO} SUOEPUSWWOIS]

S} pJemlIO} O} J8yjeym Japisuod pinoys VdiO ‘Ad 1Hvd Aq peideooe
Jou ale SUOIJBPUSLUWIO’al S,V 4|0 YdIUM U] SUcHEeNyS Uj "Siojoalld
10 pieog Jo/pue sobeuey jelauss) ay} 0} SUOREpUSWILWLODa.

Aoyjod piemioy o} Auoyine ssaudxs ayy yYdIO epiroid

0} pasinal 8q p|Noys [8pojA Sy L :BUIN-AHIYL UOIIEPUSIULLOIDY

ajoA Alofew e Ag
pepuswwodal JoN

‘aj0A Ajuofew e Aq pasoidde jou sem

uoflepuswiwiooal ay} ‘weiboid Buluesy sjuswpedap ay)
10 majaal Jualedsuel) pue SAISNIOUl UB U] YNsal pue [njasn
anoud pjnom siu} paasijaq siaquiswi pieoq awos ybnoyy

'sunojal Aue uo Algnd uodal

0} pue 0d 1¥vg Aq padojansp Butaq seaneniul Buiuiesy o £ojjod
Aue u1 panjoAu] aq 0} Ayjigisuodsal pue Ajloyine 8y} yYd|O epinoid
0} pasiaal aq pjnoys [po sy yBig-A31y | uonepuaIWIOIdY

a)oA fofew e Aq
pSpuswiwodal JON

‘s|pne asoy} Jo s}nsal au}

Ajpignd podau pue sanssi Jejus Buipsebal qd 14vg Aq pajonpuos
supne Aue Jojuow o} Ajijiqisuodsal pue Ajloyine ay) Ydio opiroid
0} PasiAal 8q PINOYS [8POK SU ] :UdA3G-ALIY | UOIEPUIWILIOIDY

9)0A Ajofew e Aq
popuswiwooal JoN

"ajoA Ajofew e Ag paaoidde

JOU sem uojjepuswuwoosal ay) ‘sdals Ajjiqejuncooe

Aue jo ped pue sssooud Bupipne auj jo JuswdoeAsp jeinjeu
8y} aq p|nom siy} paAsljeq slaquia pleoq awos ybnoylpy

"oljgnd sy

0} papiroid 8ojAIas 8y pue Juswiedaq sy jo Ajenb ay) joedw 1eyy
suofoun} 0d 14v4g Jo sipne onews)sAs jonpuoa o} Ajjiqisuodsal
pue ‘Buyje)s ‘spiooal pue Ejep o} ssaooe ‘Ajoyine eyl yd|o apinoad
0}-pssiaal 8q pInoys [opoy 8y Xis-AHiYy] uoepuaWLIOddY

9)0A
Auolew Aq passed

‘uofnjiisgns e se apew aq ,Bujuiem Aues,
jo Buipiom sopoeud ysaq ayj Jey) spuswiwodss gYI4g auYi
‘uonippe uj "uonepuSWIWOda! SIL) Ulm saalbe pieog oy

“'s)jnsau pue wiajsAs uoneoyuap: Aes suswpeda(] ay) Jo snjeis
8y} uo Auenbai podal pinoys YdiO :8AI4-AMIY ] UolepuUaWIWOdaY

JUBSU0D snowiueul

"uoNISqns e se apew aq bujuiem Aues,
J0 Buipsom sopoeud is8q By} Jey) SpusWILLIOIa) GYO g ou)
‘uoiippe U| "UolEpUSIWOIA] SIU} UM saaibe pieog sy

ssoo0.d uonesynuspl Ages s,ad 1yvg ul
ajedioied AueinBal 0} ydiO Joj Ayjiqisuodsal pue Ayloyine apiaosd
0} pasiAal aq pInoys |spojA 8y | LINo4-AHIY] UORPUSLULLIOIdY

9JoA Aolew e Ag
pspuawiwodal 10N

*810A Ajofew
e Aq panoidde jou sem uonepuswiodal ay) ‘Aouasedsuel
PPE pInom S|y} paAsljeq sisquiaw awos ybnoyyy

8010} JO S3SN SNOL3S IO
‘syjesp Apoisno-ul ‘sBuijooys paAjoAUl-1aolo Aue JO MBIASI [euls)ul
8y} uo Applqnd podal pinoys ydio 994y 1-Aliy ] uoepuawwossy

8j0A Ajolew e Aq
pspuawiwoal JoN

'8)0A Ajuolew
e Aq panoidde jou sem uonepuawiwosal sy} ‘Aouasedsuel)
ppe pinom siy} paAaijaq siaquisul awos ybnoyyy

"SpPJBOQ MBIASJ 3010} JO OSN |
S,0d 1MV 0 swoono ayy Buipniour weiboid Mmairss 8104 o asn

syt uo Apiignd podai pinoys V4|0 (oM L-AJIY ] UoEpUaWIWOdaYy

ey PUE MAIASY Pajeuouly Lodey HI0 8404



8J0A
Auofew Aq passed

JUSSUOD SNOWIUBUN

Jsayue; ay} je suopeso;} ay) ui sbuesw yons Buipjoy
ul juasayur asiBol 8yl uo UIBSUOD passaldxe siequisu
Emom_ _Em>ww .b:o—mE mE >n _._oa: umo_mm ybnouyy

89 PINOYS YdIO Jo siequiawl jje jo Buluiel; ay) jo UoisIAGY
€ ‘UonIppe Uj "UOoHEPUSLULIODaI SIY} UM seaibe pieog oy

- *sauj| ojuas oy o Jsjawnad |

“*lloMm Se pajonpuod

‘slequiajy pieog meinsy uszil) a91jod [ ¥vg Buiwoouy 104 pasiasg

S v A penies seieon,
jo Aeuie Jspim e 0} sBuyjesw s} Hunejol Japisuoo pnoys pieog
- MBIABY USZNID 99][0d ¥y SU] :BUIN-AHOH UOKEPUBUILLIOIIY

“slaquiaj\ pIEOg MBIASY jusung o}
Ajjenuuy-iwes jsee Je papinoid og pinoyg Bujuiel eoinieg-uf pue!

ad pInoys wn|nowng Buurel] v :ybig-Auo4 uopepusWILIOBY

| JUasUOD snowlueun

"uoljepuaLuLIoDal siy} Yum seaibe pieog oy

‘plreog meiney uaziji 9910
14vd sy uo anias 0 9jqibljauy aue jpuuocsiad Ad 1YY Jowio)
1By} e:m_o pINoys [9pojy 3y :udAag-AMO4 uojepusWWIod3y

JUSSUOD
snowlueun Agq
PapuUBWILLIDal JON

"8J8Y UoIoUN) OU BABY PINOYS YdIO "eaibesig

Juswyuloddeas syees Jequisli pIeog MaIASY
uazio a9ljod 1 ¥vg e usym ndut o} Ajunpoddo ay) yd|O epinoid
0} POsIABI 99 PINOYS |SPOA 84 L x_w.>ton_ uojepuBIILIodaY

juasuod snowtueun

:oamv:mEEouE sIy} yyum saalbe pieog ay

"VdIO 10 souewwiopad sy uo jndus Bupjess

S s10}08.1( JO pJeog 8y} Usym UONBULIOMU| JO 80IN0S [enuajod
3UO S| pJeog MalASy UaZHID 991104 1¥vd 8u} jeu} ebpamousor
0} pasiAal 8q pINoYS [SpojN 8y :9Al4-A}104 uolepuUSULIOddY

8J0A ON "Jajjew sy} uo uolyisod ou sexe} pJeog ay | "VdIO 0} paubisse mou S)SE) SAJeI)SIUJLIPE UM JSISSE 0] pJeog
: MaIney uazpID 89110d 1 ¥My'd SU} 40} uopisod jJuelsissy SANNOaxXg

ue Bupeaso JepIsuod pinoys | ¥vg 1no- -AH04 uopjepuswWosay |
Juasuod "Juswpedap 8y} Jo VdIO Pue pieog mainay uszii) 8oljod 1uvd

snowiueun Aq
papuswiiooal JON

1yBisiano sey Ajajewnin oym g4 aUl S1 3l ey} seAaljaq
pieoq ay} ‘ssao0id 8y} JO ULE aAleB)saAul 8y} Si Jojipny
wepuadapuj sy Jo 9910 ay} ybnoyy ‘umop Buiisiem
[enbs jou pjnoys uoeauyaq "ssasoid Jybisiano pue
wieidwos ay) jo Ajjiqisuodsal paleys e pue uopesadooo
80104uUl8] pUE SUOREOIUNWWIOD SUljUIeal}S 0} SNUUOD 0}
Japio uj pabueys aq jou jsnw sajousbe yjoq jo AjAoeuuco
aAjjelis|uilupe pue Ajnupuod ay] "pajesedss aq jou

ISnW gyddgd ay) pue VdiO 8y} usamyaq diysuope|al ey

8y} jo sajos Aurjusweidwod JaA uapuadapul sy; Ajueo Ajssaidxs
0} pasiAal 8q pinoys [SpOjA 8Y | :3alyi-AM04 uoljepusaLuwosay

Juasuoo snouwiueuf

"uoljepUSWIWOdaL SIY} Y)m seaibe pieog ay |

"PenIN000 sBupasu yons Jayieym uo Hodal Ajjenuue pinoys sanius
WBISIaA0 By | 'SUONBIDOSSY 30110d 1 HVE OM] 8yl uim Ajjenuue
1ses| je Huyesw e a|npayos 0} Jdwslie pinoys pJeog MaIASY |
uazii) 80llod LMV 9U} PUB YdIO :0M[-AHO4 UOBEPUBLILIODSY

HBYD pue maiAsy pajeuouuy Hodey HIO g40dd



LIO PSJOA JON

‘uonebaje

UE UO apeLl S| Uo|SIoap B a10jag ased Jiay) juasaud

0} Ajunuoddo sy} s1eo1y0 J0algns Bulisyo Se jjom se
suopebsjie Hupjew sjenpiaipul Aq sjureiduion jo ssaipai se
[lem se Aousiedsuel; ‘uonejuaseidal [|ny Jo} MOJIE [IIM SIY |

‘uopeoipnipe aiojaq g40dg 8y} 0} aseo Jjey) Juasald
0} 9|qe aJe Slieyy [eula)u] pue saAjejuasaidal Jiay) ‘s1aoiyo 1osfgns
‘sjueureidwod yoiym uj paystigelss aq jsnw ssaooud Buuesy vy

UOIJEPUAWILLIOIDY JIey)

JUasuU0d snowijueun

$3101j0d UMO J18Y)) MBIABI PINOYS SI0}08.I JO pJeog

wnpuoappy Jad se [eAOWS] W0} SS8201d

2)oA
Auofew Ag passed

"SUOIS|AS] UBaM]aq Uj
awi) ajdwe ue aq pjnNoys siesA oM} Jey) SaAsljaq pieog sy

‘S|eAla)ul Jeak-Inoy
JO WNWujW € je sepyus 1YBISIan0 S, Mg 10 SMajASI oipowad 1o}
[leo 0} pasiASL 8q pINOYS [SPOJ a1 ;9314 | -A}i4 UOKEPUSWLWIODaY

9J0A
Auofew Aq passeyq

pes| se yd|0 pue lieysn pue Japew
109[gns uo suoioLISal JO JeaABD aUf) Yym sealbe pieog 8y

“}IOM JYBISIaA0 Jjay} Jnoqe sjuawsle)s olgnd axel o} pieog
MBIABY UBZID 891104 1 HV/F dU} PUB VdIO Szuoyine Asseidxe
0} PasiAaL 89 pNoys [9po 8y :om1-Alji4 UOHEPUBWILIOISY

JU9SUO9D snowitueUn

S80Uasqe PSnNURUOD ,0M)
uety) aiouwl, jo uopeindis s uj oyoads ag pjNOYS [apow ay)
1eU) uonepUBWIWOIaI SY) 0} UOKOSLI00 8y} yim paroddy

90UBSQE JO SIABS| PUB SS0USSQY :dUQ-ALH4 UOHEPUBWIWOI3Y

UoHEpUBLLLI0D3) 1s9) (q)wie) [eUOHIPPE UE 0) JAGWISW PIEOT MBIASY Y}
ay} jo (q) snwji e jo Jed se jas aq J Jey} uojepuswWodal sy} uo | Buguioddes. o} Joud pasepisuod aq jjim yoeanno ojqnd ¢ s Jaquistu

Jujod jo suoneasesal| saibe Jou pip Asy) ‘Lioys junoweled e aq pjnoys yoeanno Yoes jo saibap ay) ‘Ajleul (e)-1eak snoiasid ay) uexeuspun
YHM SNSUasuoo ey} aAs||aq siaquiau pseog au ||le ybnoyyy ‘eaiby sey ays/ay yoeauno ayy uo Apyand podal pinoys Jequisws preog

e Ag saiby Malnay yoea ‘siseq [enuue ue uQ "Aluoyine Bupuiodde Jaysiy

Aq suopejoadxa yoeanno o} papsie aq pjnoys Jaquisw Bujwoou
oea ‘pus Jey} 0 ‘PaAsIyoe S| YOBaNO 0} JUSLLILLILLIOD S [OPOJ
8l JeU} 8inNsua 0} POPUBJUI PIBOE MBIASY UZIND 80110d 1 HvVE
au Aq paydope aq pinoys sainpasold :Ali4 uoiepuswILIodsy

HeyQ pue maiasy pajeuouuy Hoday HIO 940dg




MEMORANDUM
TO: BART Board of Directors
FROM: BPCRB ‘Members David Rizk, Aman Sebahtu, Cydia Garrett
RE: OIR Review of Citizen Oversight Model

DATE: February 15, 2018

We write this memo to the Board to express our concern regarding the memo the majority of the
BPCRB voted to send to you concerning the OIR report on BART’s Citizen Oversight Model. We
believe the OIR group did a thoughtful and thorough review of the Model, and we appreciate all of the
reasoning and considerations that underlie the recommendations that OIR articulated in the report. As
members with many years of collective experience on BPCRB, we can say with conﬁdence that the OIR
report recommendations reflect a good practical understanding of how BPD, 6[PA, and BPCRB actually
work together. The proposed changes are also backed by extensive research, best-practices, and current
’thinking in the field of civilian oversight, and are designed to promote better oversight so that BPD
operates more efficiently and more safely and continues to improve its connections to the Bay Area
communities it serves. The Citizen Oversight Model strongly supports BPD’s primary mission to fight
crime and protect BART riders, and we are certain that OIR’s recommendations will make BART’s riders
much safer.

Unfortunately, the BPCRB’s review of the OIR report does it a severe disservice. First, the
BPCRB memo does notacknoWledge that the “special” meetings to discuss the report were not well
attended, and as a result, many of the votes to disapprove particular recommendations do not in fact
reveal the views of the majority of the BPCRB’s eleven members because so few members voted. Thus,

where the memo states that a particular recommendation was “not recommended by a majority vote,” in
| many cases that may mean just three to five members voted “no.”

Sadly, the BPCRB’s discussions about the recommendations at its meetings also reflected a
surprising degree of confusion and lack of understanding about the existing provisions of the Model, the |
way oversight actually works at BART, and the reasoning underlying OIR’s recommendations. The chart
attached to the memo exemplifies the problem. It does not reflect any coherent reasons why BPCRB
voted one way or another. For example, the memo makes various confused references to what the law
may require, such as the Freedom of Information Act, which does not even apply to local agencies.

BPCRB likewise purports to defer judgement on many recommendations to the General Counsel’s office.



Such poSitions are uninformed and unhelpful. We trust the District will implement OIR’s
recommendations consistent with the law and the General Counsel’s advice.

Another stark example of BPCRB’s lack of understanding about the existing Model:
Recommendation 43 urges that the Model should be revised to clarify the independent yet complimentary
roles of the CRB and the OIPA. The chart attached to the memo contains incoherent commentary
suggesting that “the OIPA and the BPCRB[D] must not be separated,” and claims that “the [O]ffice of
[t]he Independent [Police] Auditor is the investigative arm of the process, [and] the board believes that it
is the BPCRB[D] who [sic] ultimately has oversight of the department.” These sweeping comments
reflect ignorance of the Model. The existing Model actually defines the relationship between OIPA and
the BPCRB in defail, and specifically authorizes OIPA to make its own recommendations to BPCRB, the
Chief, and the GM. In no meaningful sense does the BPCRB have oversight of the department to the
‘exclusion of OIPA. In fact, and contrary to any suggestion that OIPA is merely a subservient
investigative office for BPCRB, Section 1-08 of the Model, entitled “Independence of the Office of the
Independent Police Auditor,” expressly states that “The Auditor and any employee of the Office of the
Independent Police Auditor shall, at all times, be totally independent.” The comments regarding a
number of recommendations are similarly misplaced.

Finally, a number of BPCRB’s votes on particular recommendations reflect a lack of
understanding of general oversight principles, and the way the process actually works today at BART.
For example, Recommendation 36 calls for revisions to clarify that OIPA is enabled to conduct
systematic audits and access BPD records and data in order to improve the quality and service that BPD
provides to the public. For reasons that were not clear at the time, and are certainly not clarified by the
chart attached to BPCRB’s memo to the Board, this proposal was “not recommended by a majority vote.”
Nationally, auditing is increasingly becoming a best-practice norm for police oversight agencies, and it
already occurs in San Jose and San Francisco, just by way of example. Here at BART, the Model
provides for an agency entitled the Office of the Independent Police Auditor, and in fact, OIPA already
conducts informal audits of BPD procedures practices, with full cooperation from BPD. For instance,
when new body cameras were introduced, OIPA systematically reviewed body camera footage from use
of force incidents and discovered that the-cameras were routinely falling off of officers’ chests. OIPA
communicated this problem to BPD, aﬁd BPD raised the issue with Axon, the vendor, which promised to
provide'a chest clip to remedy the problem. Without OIPA’s audits, this problem may not have been
discovered until a critical incident occurred and the fobtage was unusable. We understand that the Chief,
the GM, OIPA, and the managemént union all support Recommendation 36, and the officers’ union has
not yet weighed in, but is likely to support it as well. BPCRB’s rejection of Recommendation 36 makes

. no sense whatsoever.



There are many more examples where other stakeholders, including BPD, the GM, OIPA, and the
unions, agree with particular recommendations, yet BPCRB voted “no.” This is a very unfortunate
situation, and we urge the Board not to let it unduly influence the Board’s careful consideration of OIR’s

well-reasoned recommendations.




SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

Memorandum

TO: Board of Directors ’ DATE: February 15,2018
FROM: Carlos Rojas, Chief of Police via G.M. Grace Crunican
SUBJECT: BART Police Oversight Structure Report

I have examined the Independent Review of the BART Police Over51ght Structure report by the OIR
Group that was completed in June 2017. I appreciate and recognize the need to clarify the roles of
the Civilian Review Board (CRB) and the Office of the Independent Police Auditor (OIPA).

Clarifying roles is a positive step to improving the Oversight Model, however, I have concerns about
the expansion of the Authority of OIPA and the CRB without further discussion. There was no .
information provided that would justify the expansion of the Oversight Model. Moreover, I believe
that in updating the Oversight Model its focus should be on role clarification and protocol
improvements. Furthermore, the seriousness of the confidentiality of police officer personnel files
and the information contained therein is paramount to ensure full compliance with California state
law. Many of the recommendations also raise concerns in protecting officer privacy, and the risk
associated with the potential breach of confidential information. Therefore, more discussions are
necessary to ensure both compliance with state law and a comprehensive understanding of the
recommendations.

The current Oversight Model provides guidelines as to the role of both the CRB and the OIPA. At
this time, detailed policies and/or procedures that may exist in the OIPA are not known or readily
available to the public or the police department. In some ways, the lack of role clanty has made it
difficult to motivate police personnel to engage in providing proactive policing services to BART
ridership. Therefore, many of the recommendations will be a positive improvement in clanfymg the
Oversight Model.

Updating the Oversight Model will be important to strengthening the relationship between BART
Police personnel and the important work being conducted by the OIPA. Based on my review and
analysis of the Oversight Structure report, I believe there are recommendations that will further clarify
the Oversight Model. The recommendations identified as “Agree” will also augment the trust and
credibility of both the Oversight Model and the work of the OIPA.

The attached table bifurcates the recommendations into the theme of “OIPA Protocol Improvement”
(Agree) and Expansmn of Authority and/or Infringement on Personnel Policy (Disagree). The BART
Police Department is very willing to work closely with OIPA on any of the agreed upon
recommendations.

- RECOMMENDATION:

The 39 recommendations that are illustrated as “Agree” under the green banner in the
attachment should be APPROVED as a starting point for the OIPA and BART Police
Department to collaborate and work on to achieve the goal of implementation. I do believe we
have 39 issues on which we can begin working on immediately. I would propose putting the
remaining 15 issues on hold until progress is made on the initial 39.



_ . 'ad l¥vaiq
Pa30Nnpuod uonessaAu; saeye jeulalu] Aue Jo sSuipuyy 91 VdIO 01 [eadde 0} 3y3u ay3 syueulejdwod apiaoid 03 pasinal aq Pinoys [aPOoA ayL (81)

‘uonEUIWLIBISP UORISOdSIP B JBPUBL ‘2D110d JO JBIYD BY1 PUE SANIUB JYSISIBAC By} Wolj Indul SuiAiBIa. Ja1je ‘pue SulPBW B BUSAUOD

IIM J8eUBA [eIBURD) BY3 ‘UOIISOdSIP 9SO B U0 981SeSIp SOIIUD 1Y31S49A0 301j0d 1YV BUl USym ey os pasueyd aq pinoys |3po Y1 (LT)

‘uoneuluz1ap s Aiofew sy wouy SuSIBAIp 0y SjRUOIIRL JISY] N0 135 PINOYS SISUISSIP BY1 ‘SSuIpul pue SUOIEPUSWIIOIB]
9SBJ 5,101IPNY 3yl Yum se3.3e Ajiofew snowjueun-uou e Ydym uj sases u| *a1jqnd apew aq pjnoys sSulpuly pue SUOIIEPUSWILIOIIA

95BJ S JONpNY 3y} U0 Jaquiaw Ag Ajjel 310A s, pie0g MBIASY USZIND 991104 LHV'd 243 18U JonJ3Sul 0} PAsIASL 3G PINOYS |9POIAF SYL (ET)

» *UOISN|2U0D 531 YoBal 0} uayel
sda1s aAnesIISaAul 8yl IN0ge Uoew.ojuL leuonippe jueulejdwod ayl apiaoid pue sed [enpiaipul Yaea. 0} s1a113] SuISod S) JOoJiel PInoys Vdio (TT)

"papuNoyuN 10 ‘P3]LIDUOXD ‘PaULIEISNS
1ou “pauielsns 40 Sujpuly-e PUSLUIOIBI PINOYS YdIO ‘UOHESIISIAUL VdIO UE 4O UOISN|DU0d aYy1 uodn jey) 103}491 0} payLiep 99 pinoys-|apo 3yl (0T)

*S9SEJ JO UOIIN|osaL BIYD pue 1dwold 01 JUBWHWWOD

B 109)ya1 0sje Inq sjuswia.inbal A103njels ay] 199w Ajuo Jou Jeyl sj020104d jeusaiul S U SauljaWIl 9A1ES11SAAU] IO 185 PINOYS YdIO (6)

‘SUONESIISBAUI [eUIDIUL SY 104 m:o_umpuwn_xw pue 2oueping apinoad 03 yoogpuey e no_m>m_u pInoys vdio (8)

21e311saAul 0} paydo Joupny ay3 1eyl suonessjje 8unjesnsanul Ja)ep piNom (d 1¥Ve pue 300 3yl Ag Ajjeriul paniasad
suonedajje jutejdwod Aue a3e8i3saau) 0} J9ylaym aulwialep pjnom vdio Agasaym wsipeted sanneSisaau) ue dojoasp pInoys dd 1HVd pPue vdio (2)

‘dd Lyvd Jo sapijod dy3 saestdwi 3ey1 3onpuodsiw jo uonesajje Aue 31eS11SaAUl 03 Alljiqe 3yl YdI0 spiroad 01 pasiaad aq pjnoys |apoiAl 3yl (9)

‘9aAo|dwa gd 14vg Aue jsuiese
PIEOH MBIASY USZRIJ 30104 1HVE 341 J0/pue VdI0 yum julejdwiod e 3|y 03 AHjige ay3 suosiad Aue apiroad 03 pasinal ag pinoys |apoAl @yl (g)

"sseo04d ay3 Sunejdwod ad 1¥yg o3 joud mco_u_mo%_n Jo ssaualeudoidde pue suojiediisaauj Jo ﬁ.m:wbw 341 UO suoIIEPUDWIUIOIB
. Sul1ay40 ‘Buliojyuow Bwil-|eal, 0] SUoRESISIAUI SJiejje jeusalul dd. LYv4g J0 uolouny Sulioiuow sy SuiAjipow 48pIsSu0d pInoys vdlo (2

‘SUaWBA0IdW 92119814 [030304d VdIO

suonepuawWIWOlIDy Em,_m._go 2d1jod ._..m_<_m — 9943y




-aiignd sy 03 papiroad 3219 a1 pue Juswnedag 9y jo Ayjenb sy pedwi 1ey) suondUNy Ad LHvd JO
SHpNE 21Wa1sAs 19npuod 01 Ajigisuodsas pue ‘Suyels ‘spiodal pue ezep 03 ssadoe ‘Allioyine ayl YdIO apinoid o3 pasiaal aq pinoys [apoiAl 3yl (9¢€)

-wa1sAs uoneaiuapi AjJes s,juawisedaqg ay Jo sniels syl uo Aprejnsaa Jodal pinoys vdio (S€)

-ssao04d uoneaynuap! AlJes s,ad 14ve ul s1ediued Alengal 01 vdio Jo) Aljiqisuodsas pue Ayuoyine apiaoad 01 pasiaaa aq pinoys |3po YL (ve)

*92104 JO SISN SNOLISS JO ‘sy3eap APoIsnd-ul ‘SSUII00YS PIAJOAUI-IDILJO AU JO MBIASS [euS3ul Y3 uo Apijgnd 1rodal pinoys vdIO (€€)

Juiejdwod e J0 193[gns e SI JU3pIdUL YL JSYISYM

10 SsajpJesal ‘dd 1My Ag SIUSpIdUl 92404 JO 3sn SUIMBIARL JO Aljigisuodsal pue Joj Alloyine syl vdio apiaoad 01 pasiasl 3¢ PINOYS. [8POAl ayL (og)

yieap
Apoisna-u) Aue pue ‘Ainful Jueaiusis ui m:E:mE 2040} JO 9sn Aue ‘Yieap Jo Ainful uy paynsal adioy Ajpeap Jo asn ay3 Jaylaym jo ssajpiesal (Ainp Jo
40 AInp uo) SBUROOYS PAAJOAUI-ID1L0 {[B SUIpN[DOUl JUBPIOUL [2IRLD Aue JO paiiIou Ajawil S1 VdiO 3Byl 24nsua 0} paoueyua 2g pInoys |9poN 3UL (67)

‘ssa00.4d uoin|osas aindsip sAlleUISY R
SAID9YS ue sapiroad pue s1a210 pue sjueulejdwod 01 SAIdRIIR Si 18yl SS300.4d UoIIRIPSW B 31eaUd 0] SLIOHS S 3|gnopaJ pinoys vdio (87)

v *saNSSI IWDISAS AUB 31RIPAWIS] 0] PPUSIUI SUOHDR DAIIDDII0D
dojansp 01 Ad 14V YIM JI0M pue souewlopad ad 14vg SUIAJoAUL SJUSWSSPN| 9SI9ApE pue SJUBWDJNSS Juedijiusis Aue malasa pinoys vdio (92)

‘paruswajduwi) 219M SUOIIBPUSWIWIOIDL PIeOg MBIASY USZIHD 201]0d 1¥Yd 343 PUB YdIO Yiym
031 @2480p 2y} pue }nsal ased Yyl Inoge uoleuLioyu; Suipircad ‘uoisnjpuo2 03 uordasul wody uonesnsaul Alans uo uodadl Aplgnd pinoys vdio (ve)

*SoNss| 950Y1 AJRIPAWS 01 Gd 1YV YIIM }JOM PUB UOIIBIYIPOW AU. 10§ SISeq Y3 PaLLIO)
1By Sanss] J1WR1sAs Aue Ayuapl 03 10)pnY 3yi a4iNbal pINoys |9POIA YL "UoiedIpow Aue 10) SUOSERJ BY] 91eN|eAd 01 pue uoisap Aieuljdidsip
pue uopisodsip JerHul PUIdSaL 10 AJIpoWl B3] SUOIIEUIWIDIDP UoIlelIgie Aue uo 11odas 01 JoNPNY 9yl 24inbaa 01 pasiaal aq pInoys [9po ayL (€7)

‘sjeadde asoy} 40 s3|nsaJ 8yl pue panRdal sjeadde jo Jaquinu syl uo Jodal Apendal pinoys vdio (0T)

"Vd10 01 Suipuy sy jeadde 03 1y3u JoY/SiYy Jo Jueuleidwod ay3 SwIojul OSje W 0JIN0 Ised
duipJe3aJ Jueulejduwiod ayj 0} 49119} UOLIEDYIIOU PaIINbAL MEoEtmamm 92104 mr_p I8y} 2UNSud 03 Od LYV YHM JIom pInoys vdio ucm 1dvd ad

ﬂcmEmSoEE_ mu:um(_n_ _880& vdio




“WIS} |BUCRIPPE UE 03 J9qWiatl pJeog MaIAsY o3 Sunnuioddeas o3 1oud paJ3pISuod aq jIm yoeano djignd

SJaquiaw yoes Jo a3.3ap ay) ‘Ajjeuld “JeaA snoinsad ay1 usyenapun sey ays/ay Yyoeasino sy uo Apygnd 1odal pinoys JaGWIBW PIeog MIIASY Yoed
‘siseq [enuue ue ug *Alioyine Suuiodde Jay/siy Aq suoneadxe Yoranno oy pawIaje 9g p|noys Jaquiaw SuodUl YIea ‘pua ey} 0L "parsiyoe

S 4oead1no 0} JUSWHWIWO3 S [SPOIAl SU1 JBU] 3INSUD 0] PAPUDIUI PIROY MBIASY USZIND Ad 1¥Vd 9yl Aq paidope aq pjnoys sainpasoid (0S)

"14vg Aq pansas sjeao) jo Aeste Jopim e 0} wmc_ume SN Su11B104 IDPISUOI PINOYS Pieog MIIASY :mm_.“_u 201j0d Livd 24yl (6%)

‘Siaquua Wl pieog MIIADY JUd44Nd 0} >__mzccm|_r:mm jsea)]

1e papinroJd 8q pinoys Sujuies] 2IAISS-Ul PUE SISGUISW PIROG MBIASY USZIND (d 1¥Vg SUIWIOdU] 10} PISIASP a4 PINOYS WNNaLINY Sujuies) v (8¥)

"PieOg MIIADY UBZIND 221{0d LUV 2Y3 U0 dAIas 0] 9|qiSijau) a.e |puuossad Qd 14yd 19uiio) 1eys Ajueld pinoys |spoiA a4l (/)

“uswiuioddess
$)[995.19qWaW pJeog MaIAY ULZIN) 301j0d 1¥yd e uaym indul oy Ayunlioddo syl vdiQ apiroad 01 pasiaal aq pInoys 9o 2yl (9v)

"vdi0 Jo aouewopad syl uo andul Supa9s st $1030341d JO
pieog ay3 uaym UoIIBULIOJUL JO SDINOS [e1IUS0d BUO S| pJeog MB3IADY UBZIID 301|0d 1HVd 33 1Y) 2Spajmouoe 01 pasiasl 9q pinoys |3poiAl aul. (St)

'VdIiO 01
Pausisse Mou $Se1 SAIIRISIUIWIPE YIIM 1SISSE 0] pleog malnay Uazi) 831j0d LHYY 241 10} uo1lsOd JUBISISSY SAIINIBXT UE JBPISU0D PINoYs 14ve (¥)

Vdio
‘pue paeog MRIABY UBZI) 3D110d LUV ay} 40 ‘sajos Aejuswiajdwiod 104 quapuadapui ay3 Ajue)d Ajssaidxe 01 vmm_>wh aq p|noys |9po UL (gh)

"Pa4INn200 sSuneaW Yons Jaylaym uo Hodad Ajjenuue pjnoys saiua YSIS49A0 Sy |
'SUONBIDOSSY 301j0d LYvd OM1 UM Ajjenuue Jses) 1e Sunasu e ajnpayds 03 1Jdwialie pinoys pieog MaIASY USZIlID 9210d 1Y¥Vd Yl pue vdio (zv)

*AlaoyIne 1ey) Jo uoiNISXa ayy-uj 91e12dood 03 siadquaw jo Ainp
24l pue sapius JyBIsIano s) Jo Alioyine ay3 a3es0diodul SI9PIO [RIBUSS S,(0d LHVE 1BY1 24NSUB 01 4d LHVE UUM oM PINOoYS YdIO pue 1Hvg (Th)

"ad 1¥vd Aq pe1dadoe pue pieog maIAay syl Ag PISIOPUD DM SUOIIEPUBLULLIODSI

341 Yaiym o1 9a133p a3 pue suolepuawioda.l Suipuelsino snojaaid Aue uo a1epdn ue apnjoul pINoys Ydio “1odal jenuue sy uj (o)

*S}pne asoyl Jo synsau ay3 Aprjgnd 1iodals
ncm sanssi Lm__E_m Suipaedal gd 1¥vg Aq supne Aue Joyuow 0} Anpgisuodsaa pue Ajoyine ay1 vdio w_u_>o.8_ 0] pasinal aq pinoys _mvo_>_ oyl ?mv

mucm8m>oa€_ mu:bm._n_ _880& <n:o




*0s SuUI0op 10} SHWi 2w} Aue \c_umam pue 291ujodde
gYDdg S 10s5309paJd J3Y JO SIY DAOWAL Ajjeaale]iun Aew 10103410 1HYg Paleas-Ajmau e Jaylaym Ajlie|d 01 pasiaad aq pinoys [9PoIAl aYL (¥S)

*S|eAIDIUI JBDA-INOJ JO WNWIUIW B 1B S3111IUD JYSISIA0 S, | 4V JO SMaIA J1poLiad 104 |BD 01 PasiAaL 99 pInoys |9PoAl 9y L (€S)

oM
1YSISI3A0 J12Y3 INOgE SJUBWISIL]S e 0} P1ROg MIIASY USZINID Od 1YVd dYl pue vdlQ dzuoyine Ajssaudxa 01 pasiaal 9q pjnoys [9poiA YL (ZS)

.mco_umu_E__ wucwmo_m a1 Hm:_mmm unod uo: _u_:o>> amf 95Ned Poos 1oy SBOUBSYER PISNIX3 AzHoYine 0} pasinal mo_ v_:osm _m_uoS_ ayl va

_ mu_u\um& _880& vdio




"UolIeIIpOW Byl Yum paside ay.4ayioym pue uoiledyipow

Areuydiosip 1o uoisodsip jeryul ue 30 uoneayipow Aue uo yiodaJ Apijgnd o3 Joupny sy aainbas pinoys [SPON Bul "Ajljigelunocdoe 40 UOISOJ9 snoIvs

B U1 3insal pjnom uoneoyipow Aue jeyy aasijaq sy pinoys 1o8euey [eiousn 3y3 03 ssad04d |eadde ue Jo)pny 3yl apiaoLd PINOYS [SPOIA] 3| “SUOITRUIULISIDP
Aseurdiosip 1o uomisodsip jeuonippe Aue SulA)ipow 03 Joud Joupny Y1 Y3m NSuod 03 924j0d 30 J31YD 8y1 aainbau 01 pasiaaa aq pinoys: [apoN 3yl (1)

‘sjuawadinbai
Alifeniuapyuco mej a1e3s yum 1ua1sisuod Suresw [eadde yons Aue yo synsau ay3 podas Apijgnd o3 Jolipny ay) auinbas 03 pasueyd aq pjnoys [SpoIAl 3yl (9T)

: *3untam uj s8uipuyy
SIy/13y 1no 185 0] JaSeue| jel13uan ayy aanbals 0} pasiaal Jayliny 3q pinoys [opolp 3yl -Sunesst jeadde ay) 1e a1y) ay1 Aq Yo} 195 syuswngie [euonippe

Aue 03 puodsau 0} pue ‘Suiyssw jeadde Aue je 1uasaud a9 03 ‘Suiium uj puodsal 03 Ajluniioddo ayj paeog MBINBY UBZID 321|0d 1YV 9yl 40 Jiey) syl
pue Joypny ay3 apiaoad pue Suim uj [eadde 104 syuswnSie pue suoseal 3y piemsoy and Ajawiy 03 Ja1yd ay3 sJinbas 03 peSueyd aq pinoys |19poiA a4yt (ST)

"“joeqpaay pue Indu) SAISIL 01 J3pJO
Ul P1EOg M3INSY USZAIJ 99110d 1YV SY} 0} SUOeBiISaAU] [euIaUl Od LHYE 1uasaid 01 UOIIBIOSIP Y1 J0NpPNY 3y1 apiroid 03 pasiAal aq pinoys [9poIA 3yl (¥T)

. Juspioul syl
40 1unadde o3pin Aue matA 03 Ayunpioddo ays Jueurejdwod ayy 4340 pinoys vdIO ‘Suipulj pauielsns e uj 1nsad 10U S0P UOIIESIISBAUI PIPN|DUOD B UBUM (zT)

"ljqnd 8y pue ‘pieog maiAsy USZIID 301j0d 1HYE Syl ‘4aSeuely [eIaUSD 3y} ‘s1013341Q JO pieog 3y} Jo

uonusiie sy} 03 uOHEINSIAUL [RUOLIPPE 19NPUOD 03} Ad 1HYE Aq dduessisal Aue podas 03 Anoyine ssaidxs aY1 VdI0 apinoLd 01 paiipow ag pinoys [SpoiN oyl
"uoneujwusiap Aseujdidsip pue uonisodsip yoes jo sssuajeudoidde 21 pue uonesisanul Yyoes jo Aujenb ayj Jo JUSWSSISSE S) INO SUILISS ‘|IB1SP UI SUOIdUNY
Suipne pue JuswaAjoAul s)1. 10day Apiignd pinoys pue Jaieapd auyjdisip pepuswiwodas pue suoijesiisaaul Uo ejep paliodal sy axew pinoys vdio (1)

. ‘uoiesnsanu; ue jo 3uidoas srendosdde ayl pue ‘Mairal [eUILLID
404 Asulony 1013ISIQ BY) 01 PapIeMIC) g pInoYs Ja1jew e 18yaym Suipaesal suoisIoap Ul paAjoAul aq p|noys 3 ‘3ui10}]UOW BWII-|B3J 0 SAOW Vd]O pPINoys (g)

"AINp 440 10 UO JBYIBYM SIBD1J0 UIOMS SUIAJOAU] 1ONPUOISIL
_m_pcmmon lie 0} ncm,n_a 14ve jo mmm>o_a8w UIOMS-UOU 01 spuaixa Ajoyine s,¥d10 9yl Jo 2dods ay3 1eyl Jesjd ayew o} pasinal aq pinoys [9poIA Y. (T)

10d [9UUOS.15d U0 JU3WABULYU| 10/PUE ALIOLINY JO UOIsUedXg

suollepuawiwioddy
1Y31S19nQ 92110d 1HVY ‘papasaN uonesyie)/aaidesiq



‘Auua Suiulan08 s,1Hyg 01 UOIIBIPISUOD JaYLINy
40} SUOIEPUALIWIOID S PIBMIO) 0] JaY1ayM JapISUod PInoys VdiO ‘ad L4va AQ pa1dadoe Jou aie SuoiBpusSWWOodal S,¥di0 UdIYM Ul suoljenlis uj 'sioyadiq
0 pieog 1o/pue JoSeue| [BI2UID Y} 0} SUONEPUBWLI0Ia. Adfjod piemioy 03 Ajsoyine ssaudxa 3yl V410 apinoid 01 pasinad g pinoys (PO ayl (6€)

‘swuo4a4 Aue uo >_u__nsa uodad pue gd
1¥vg Aq padojanap Sulaqg saaneniul mc_c_mb Jo Adyjod Aue uj paajoAul aq 01 Aljiqisuodsas pue Alioyine syl VdiO apiroid 01 pasinal 8q pInoys [9poiA AYL (8€)

*SPJROg M3IASJ 82104 40 @SN S,(dd 1YVd 0 dwod3no ay3 Suipnjoul wesSosd maiaal 92404 Jo asn sH uo Apljgnd podad pinoys vdio (Zg)

*SpJeOq M3IABI 82104 JO 3sN S,dd 14vg ul aredpdined Auendas pinoys vdio (T€)

‘uonesiy| A0 SuIMaLASL Ul 10Mm ST uo Aplignd Liodaa pinoys vdio (£2)

"paiesisanul AjySnoJoyl ale 19NpuUoISIW JO SUOIIESS||. SINSUS 0] SHNSME| PUE SWIEID M3 03 Ajdoyine papinoad aq pinoys vdio (52)

*3[119S 01 UOISIDAP 3y} Yum paaiSe vdi0 Jay1aym pue agels auljdiosip-1sod ayj e paj13as sesed Aue uo jodal

Apignd 01 Jolipny ay1 aainbai _u_:oﬁ [9POIA SYL “AlljiqeIUNOI0k [BNPIAIPU] JO UOISOID SNOLIAS B 0] JUnOWe PinoM JUaWS[119s ay) eyl pulj 1oHpny 9yl pinoys

Jadeuep [eiauaD) ay] 0] J211RW AY] Bj11aS 03 Uoiualul Aue jeadde 01 Allunuioddo syl Joupny ayl apiaoid pinoys |9poIAl 8yl “uone)nsuod 1oy Allunuoddo
ue Lou,_u:< mf m_o_>8n u:m vmman_ :mmn sey mc__a_um_u J9}Je S3SEJ 3|119S 0} m._mto Aue jo ydjo asudde o1 1yyg aJinbalt 0] pesinal.ag: E:ocm _mvo_>_ mc .r ANNV

>u_ on_ _mccow_wn_ uo EmEmmc:E Lo\ncm Bf:< u_o co_mcmaxm




anagers’ Association
101 8th STREET OAKLAND, CA 94604

February 14, 2018

BART Board of Directors
P.O. Box 12688
Oakland, CA 94604-2688

President Raburn and Members of the Board,.

On behalf of the BART Police Managers’ Association, I wanted to send a letter outlining the Association’s thoughts on
report issued by the OIR Group regarding the independent review of the BART Police oversight structure. We know the
report was lengthy and contained 53 recommendations for you all to consider, so there is a lot of information to digest
before any decisions are made. We felt it is important for us to share our perspective with you so you can have a well-
rounded understanding of the issues with some of the recommendations.

Below is our feedback in regard to each of the recommendations:

Recommendation 1: _

e  We agree with the part of the recommendation that OIPA’s oversight scope should include all employees who
conduct enforcement related activities and the ability to investigate any policy vielations, however it should not
include those in non-enforcement positions since employees within other Departments at BART working similar
type jobs are not subject to this type of oversight. We also agree with the part of the recommendation that OTPA
should conduct investigations in regard to off-duty conduct, however only when there is a nexus to the
employee’s employment at BART. '

Recommendation 2: '
o . We agree with the recommendation that OIPA should consider modifying is monitoring function of BART PD’s
internal affairs investigations to “real-time” monitoring, as it would make the process more efficient.

Recommendation 3:

e We disagree with the recommendation that OIPA should be involved in decisions regarding whether a matter
should be forwarded to the District Attorney for criminal review as this is outside of the scope of an
administrative investigation. Conducting a criminal investigation is vastly different than conducting an
administrative investigation, thus OIPA would be working outside of their area of expertise and training.

Recommendation 4: , ‘
e We agree with the part of the recommendation that OTPA should make its reported data on investigations and
recommended discipline clearer and publicly report its involvement and auditing functions, as they already have
a foundation for this through their monthly report publication. We disagree with the part of the recommendation
that OIPA should publicly report any resistance by BART PD, as we have found through working with OIPA
that perceived resistance could simply be a difference of opinion based on different perspectives of the issue.
There have been some issues that have arisen in the past where the Department was unable to enact the
recommendations simply because it is not efficient or an accepted best practice in the law enforcement industry.

Recoﬁunendation 5:
e We agree with the recommendation that OIPA should be allowed to accept complains from all persons.

Page 1 of 6



Recommendation 6:
e  We agree with the recommendation that OIPA should have the ability to investigate any allegation of misconduct,
however with the caveat that they only have the authority to mvestlgate those employees involved in enforcement
related activities.

Recommendation 7:

o We disagree with the recommendation that OIPA should develop an investigative paradigm whereby OIPA
would determine whether to investigate any complaint allegations received initially by their office, as they should
investigate all allegations received by their office since the complainant was more comfortable reporting it to
them. They should notify BART PD Office of Internal Affairs of the complaint, but it should be left up to the
Department to determine if they want to open a parallel investigation. Nonetheless, the Chief of Police should
remain the final reviewer and decision-maker of the investigations in regard to discipline thus allowing OIPA to
continue making their recommendations to the Chief of Police.

Recommendation 8:
e  We agree with the recommendation that OIPA should develop a handbook to prov1de guidance and expectations
for its internal investigations.

Recommendation 9:
e We agree with the recommendation that OIPA should set out investigation timelines in its internal protocols.

Recommendation 10:
e We agree with the recommendation that OIPA should recommend a finding of sustained, not sustained,
exonerated, or unfounded.

Recommendation 11:
» We disagree with the recommendation that OIPA should tailor their closing letters to provide additional
information to the complainant, as confidentiality laws require certain aspects of the investigation to remain
confidential. _

Recommendation 12:
e We disagree with the recommendatlon that OIPA should have the opportunity to allow a complainant the
opportunity to view any video in cases not resulting in a sustained finding, as the videos are often ctiminal
evidence and should only be released or shown when ordered through a proper legal process.

Recommendation 13: :
e We agree with the recommendatmn for the Model to be rev1sed to mstruct the BART Police Citizen Review
Board’s vote tally by member on the Auditor’s case recommendations, allowing the dissenters to set out their

rational for diverging from the majorities determination, and for those findings to be made public.

Recommendation 14: ‘ ,
e We disagree with the recommendation that OIPA should present BART PD internal affairs cases to the BART
Police Citizen Review Board, as we don’t see the benefit of them presenting cases they are not currently
investigating themselves.

Recommendation 15:

o  We disagree with the recommendation that the Chief of Police and General Manager be required to set out their
findings in writing. ,

Page 2 of 6

P



Recommendation 16:
e We disagree with the recommendation that the Auditor publicly report on the results of any appeal meeting with
the General Manager, as this would cause divisive relationship since this would be the end of his appeal process
and this method would seem to be trying to use public opinion to force his/her recommended outcome. ‘

Recommendation 17 :
e We agree with the recommendation that when the oversight entities disagree that the General Manager will
convene a meeting and solicit input from all parties before rendering his/her decision, as long as the discussions
remain confidential.

Recommendation 18;

e We disagree with the recommendation that complainants should be prov1ded the right to appeal to the OIPA the
findings of any internal affairs investigation, as the OIPA should be monitoring all the investigations and note
any issues prior to the final disposition. This would provide a complainant “two bites at the apple” should they
disagree with a disposition. ' .

Recommendation 19:
e We disagree with the recommendation that the Police Department’s notification letter to the complainant be
required to include the complainant’s right to appeal the findings to the OIPA, as this would again be providing
the complainant “two bites at the apple.”

Recommendation 20
*  We agree with the recommendation that the OIPA should regularly report on the number of appears received and
the results of those appeals, as there is already a limited appeals process through OIPA and they already report
on those appeals in their monthly report.

Recommendation 21
o  We disagree with the recommendation that the Chief of Police should be required to consult with the Auditor
prior to modifying any initial disposition or disciplinary actions, as usurp the authonty of the Chief of Police
who was hired to be the chief executive of the Department

Recommendatlon 22 _

e We disagree with the recommendation that the District apprise the OIPA of any offers to settle cases after
discipline has been imposed and provide the Auditor an opportunity for consultation, as there is an administrative
appeals process authorized by the California Police Officer Bill of Rights (POBR) and the ultimately
determination should rest with the General Manager or Chief of Police.

Recommendation 23
o We disagree with the part of the recommendation that the Auditor report on any arbitration cases, as the
arbitration process supersedes the internal affairs and/or oversight investigation processes and OIPA is not
involved in the arbitration. We agree with the part of the recommendation that the Auditor should review the
arbitration decision to identify any systemic issues that formed the basis for any modification and work with the
Department to remedy those issues. :

Recommendation 24
o We disagree with the recommendation that the OIPA should publicly report on every investigation ﬁom,
inception to conclusion, and provide information about the case result and the degree to which OIPA and BART
Police Citizen Review Board recommendations were implemented, as this would foster a divisive relationship.

Recommendation 25
o We disagree with the recommendation that the OIPA should be provided the authority to review clalms and
* lawsuits to ensure allegations of misconduct are thoroughly investigation, as the Department would be aware of
all the fact/circumstances leading to the lawsuit and should initiate an investigation if needed.

Page 3 of 6



Recommendation 26:
e We agree with the recommendation that the OIPA should review any significant settlement and adverse
judgements involving BART PD performance and work with the Department to develop corrective actions
intended to remediate any systemic issues.

Recommendation 27:
e We agree with the recommendation that the OIPA should publicly report on its work in reviewing civil litigation,
if it pertains only to systemic issues they identify and are trying to remediate.

Recommendation 28:
e We agree with the recommendation that the OIPA should increase its efforts to create a mediation process that
is attractive to complainants and officers, as we have yet to have any case process through mediation.

Recommendation 29:
o We agree with the recommendation that the OIPA is notified timely of any critical mmdent as the Department
has already implemented this process outside of being required by the Model.

Recommendation 30:
e We disagree with the recommendation that the OIPA be provided the authority and responsibility to review all
use of force incident, as the OIPA has full access already to all records/videos and there is already an extremely
robust use of force review process in place at the Department

Recommendation 31:
e We disagree with the recommendation that the OIPA. should regularly partlclpate in the use of force review
board, as there is already an extremely robust use of force review process in place at the Department and the
OIPA does not have the training and/or expertise to be able to evaluate every use of force.

Recommendation 32:

o We disagree with the recommendatlon that the OIPA should report pubhcly on the use of force review program
and outcomes of the use of force review programs, as the Chief of Police already produces a monthly report
provided to the BART Police Citizen Review Board that identified the number of use of force incident and any
excessive use of force incident would be identified through an internal affairs investigation.

Recommendation 33:
o We disagree with the recommendation that the OIPA should report publlcly on the internal review of officer-
involved shootings, in-custody deaths, or serious uses of force, as the County District Attorney already releases
their findings of an independent review.

Recommendation 34:
e We don’t have a definitive opinion on the OIPA participating in the Department’s early 1dent1ﬁcat10n process,
however there should be a clearly defined role for them if they are included in the process.

Recommendation 35
o We disagree with the recommendation that the OIPA should regularly report on the status of the Department’s
early identification system and results, as we are unclear as to what can be reported out because most, if not all,
of the information is to remain confidential by law.

Recommendation 36:

e We agree with the recommendation that the OIPA have the authority, access to data and records, staffing, and
responsibility to conduct systemic audits of Department functions.

Page 4 of 6



Recommendation 37
e We agree with the part of the recommendation that the OIPA should have the authority and responsibility to
monitor any audits conducted by the Department, however we disagree with the part of the recommendation that
the OIPA should report publicly on the audits as they should not be reporting on work they did not conduct
themselves.

Recommendation 38:
e We disagree with the recommendation that the OIPA be provided the authority and respon51b111ty to be involved
in any policy or training initiative being developed by the Department. The members of the OIPA are policing
experts, nor do they have the knowledge or training to provide direct input on all the practices of law enforcement.

Recommendation 39: ,

o We disagree with the recommendation that the OIPA should be provided the authority to forward policy
recommendations to the General Manager and/or Board of Directors, as the BART Police Citizen Review Board
already has this authority and the OIPA should have their support on any policy being pushed through this process
‘and if not then the policy should probably not process anyway.

Recommendatlon 40:
o We agree with the recommendation that the OIPA should include an update on any previous outstanding
recommendations and the degree to which the recommendations were endorsed by the BART Police Citizen
_Review Board and accepted by the Department.

Recommendation 41: i
e We agree with the recommendation that OIPA should ensure the Department’s policy manual incorporate the
authority of its oversight entities and the duty of members to cooperate in the execution of that authority, as it is
already the practice for members of the Department to cooperate with investigation conducted by OIPA and
would only necessitate a single line being added to one of our existing policies. '

Recommendation 42:
e We agree with the recommendation that the OIPA and BART Police Citizen Review Board should attempt to
schedule a meetlng at least annually with the two Police Associations.

Recommendation 43:
e We agree with the recommendation that the OIPA and Citizen Review Board should have independent and
complementary roles defined in the Model.

Recommendation 44:
o  We have a neutral opinion on whether BART should create an executive assistant position for the BART Police
Citizen Review Board.

Recommendation 45:
e We agree with the recommendation that the Citizen Review Board is one potential source of information when
the Board of Directors is seeking input on the performance of OIPA.

Recommendation 46
e  We agree with the recommendatlon that the OIPA should be provided the opportunity for input when a BART
Police Citizen Review Board member seeks reappointment.

Recommendation 47

e We agree with the recommendation that the Model should clarify that former BART PD personnel are ineligible
to serve on the BART Police Citizen Review Board.

Page 5 of 6



Recommendation 48
o We agree with the recommendation that a training curriculum should be devised for incoming BART Police
Citizen Review Board members and in-service training should be provided at least semi-annually to current
review board members.

Recommendation 49 , _ :
¢ We agree with the recommendation that the BART Police Citizen Review. Board should consider rotating its
meetings to a wider array of locales served by BART.

Recommendation 50 ‘ :
e We agree with the recommendation that procedures should be adopted by the BART Police Citizen Review
Board to ensure that the Model’s commitment to outreach is achieved. .

Recommendation 51 ‘
e  We agree with the recommendation that the Model be revised to authorize excused absences for good cause that
would not count against the absence limitations.

Recommendation 52
o We disagree with the recommendation that the Model should be revised to expressly authorize OIPA and the
BART Police Citizen Review Board to make public statements about their oversight work, as they should be
working with the Department to resolve any issues identified rather than using the media to iry to control the
Department. This would again foster an us versus them mentality when the two entities disagree with the

Department.

Recommendation 53
e We agree with the recommendation that the Model should be revised to call for periodic reviews of BART’s
oversight entities at a minimum of four-year intervals.

I hope this letter helped to clarify the position of the BPMA and if you have any further questions or concerns, please feel
free to contact me at bartpma@gmail.com.

Respectfully,

“Christopher V an
President

BART Police Managers’ Association

Page 6 of 6



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Directors DATE: February 15,2018
FROM: Grace Crunican
SUBJECT:  Dublin/Pleasanton BART Hybrid Parking Update — For Information

On February 9, 2017, the BART Board considered adoption of a parking garage project for the
Dublin / Pleasanton BART station that would add 540 net new parking spaces for BART patrons on
an existing BART surface parking lot. Before deciding, the Board directed staff to assess alternative
methods and technologies to provide 540 net new parking spaces more cost-effectively, as well as
options for multimodal station access improvements. At the July 27, 2017 meeting, the BART
Board considered staff’s recommendations and directed staff to advance the Hybrid Parking
program to improve access to the Tri-Valley BART stations. It was determined that the Hybrid
Parking program presented a more cost-effective and flexible solution with a faster implementation
timeframe, to provide 540 new parking spaces. The Board also directed staff to advance the Iron
Horse Trail/Bike Parking Project to improve pedestrian and bicycle access at the Dublin/Pleasanton
station.

At the February 22, 2018 Board meeting, staff will give an update on the progress of these efforts
and highlight two recent developments relevant to the project, as listed below.

1) Alameda County proposal for a garage adjacent to the D/P BART station: On behalf
of Alameda County, the Livermore-Amador Transit Authority (LAVTA), an- eligible
recipient of SB1 funds, submitted an SB1 Transit and Intercity Rail Capital Program
(TIRCP) grant application for $20 M in January 2018 for the construction of a multi-level
parking structure with 398 spaces near the Dublin / Pleasanton BART station. The garage is
to be planned, constructed, operated, maintained and owned by Alameda County (See
Attachment 1 — LAVTA “Submittal of TIRCP Grant Application”). TIRCP grant awards
are expected to be announced on April 30, 2018.

2) City of Pleasanton does not support the proposed Shared Parking near the West
Dublin / Pleasanton BART Station: The Hybrid Parking program included a shared
parking component at an existing, underutilized retail center parking lot located ¥ mile
from the West Dublin / Pleasanton BART station. In December, BART staff met with City
of Pleasanton staff to discuss next steps to advance a shared parking agreement between
BART and the owner of the parking lot (Regency Center). In response, BART staff
received a letter dated February 2, 2018 (See Attachment 2: “BART Parking at JC Penney



Plaza Shopping Center”) indicating that City of Pleasanton would not support shared
parking at this site. Under local zoning regulations, BART would need a City action to
allow shared use parking with the retail center. In light of the City’s response, BART staff is
in the process of reassessing the Hybrid Parking program proposal by shifting 155 parking
spaces originally intended as shared parking spaces to the automated parking system.
Details will be included in the staff presentation.

Due to these recent developments, staff wanted to provide the Board with an update, and get the
Board’s direction on next steps.

If you have any questions, please contact Carl Holmes, Assistant General Manager, Planning,
Development & Construction at (510) 464-7592.

%@W

Grace Crunican

cc:  Board Appointed Ofﬁcers
Deputy General Manager
Executive Staff



Atthchment 1: Submittal of TIRCP Grant Application



Livermore Amador Valley Transit Authority

STAFF REPORT

SUBJECT:  Submittal of TIRCP Grant Application

FROM: Michael Tree, Executive Director
DATE: January 8, 2018
Action Requested

Staff recommendation is that the LAVTA Board provide the Executive Director with
signature authorization to approve and submit a TIRCP application to fund a parking garage
adjacent to the Dublin/Pleasanton BART station. Said parking garage will be planned,
constructed, operated, maintained and owned by the County of Alameda. ’

Background

The Transit and Intercity Rail Capital Program (TIRCP) was created by Senate Bill (SB) 862
(Chapter 36, Statutes of 2014) and modified by Senate Bill 9 (Chapter 710, Statutes of 2015)
to provide grants from the Greenhouse Gas Reduction Fund to fund transformative capital
improvements that will modernize California’s intercity, commuter, and urban rail systems,
and bus and ferry transit systems to reduce emissions of greenhouse gases by reducing
congestion and vehicle miles traveled throughout California. The goal of the TIRCP is to
provide monies to fund transformative capital improvements that modernize California’s
intercity rail, bus, ferry and rail transit systems to achieve the following objectives:

e Reduction in greenhouse gas emissions;

e Expand and improve rail service to increase ridership;

¢ Integrate the rail service of the state’s various rail operations, including integration
with the high-speed rail system; and

e Improve safety

The California Department of Transportation, in collaboration with CalSTA., is résponsible
for administering this program.

Eligible applicants must be public agencies, including joint powers agencies, that operate or
have planning responsibility for existing or planned regularly scheduled intercity or
commuter passenger rail service (and associated feeder bus service to intercity rail services),
urban rail transit service, or bus or ferry transit service (including commuter bus services and
vanpool services).

Projects eligible for funding under the program include, but are not limited to, rail capital
projects, including the acquisition of rail cars and locomotives, and the facilities to support

7.1_SR_TIRCP Grant Application Page 1 of 2



them that expand, enhance, or improve existing rail systems and connectivity to existing and
future transit systems, including the high-speed rail system.

Discussion

The County of Alameda has the need for a parking garage on a 2.46-acre parcel of Alameda
County-owned land, adjacent to the Dublin/Pleasanton BART station. The envisioned $34
million 398 space parking garage will add much-needed parking in a critical transit center
that includes BART, County Connection, MAX BART Express, San Joaquin RTD,
Stanislaus Regional Transit and Wheels (LAVTA) and will facilitate commuters that are
seeking to utilize transit, but are often denied due to lack of parking as early as 7:30a.m. at
the BART station. The project is a future-thinking project that incorporates new and still
‘developing technology to reduce greenhouse gas emissions. The garage will include electric
vehicle charging stations and preferred parking to vanpools to further maximize utilization.

The County has approached LAVTA with the intent to partner with the transit agency to
submit a qualified application. The partnership will entail an application by LAVTA for
funding towards the parking garage, with the County providing the staff to prepare the
application, plan and manage the construction of the project, and operate, maintain, and own
the completed garage.

Fiscal Impact
None

Recommendation

Staff recommendation is that the LAVTA Board provide the Executive Director with
signature authorization to approve and submit a TIRCP application to fund a parking garage
adjacent to the Dublin/Pleasanton BART station. Said parking garage will be planned,
constructed, operated, maintained and owned by the County of Alameda.

Attachments:

1. Letter dated January 3, 2018 from Alameda County

Submitted:

' 7.1_SR_TIRCP Grant Application Page 2 of 2



Attachment 1

WILLIE A, HOPKINS, IR., Dirccror

1401 LAKESIDE DRIVE, QAKLAND, CALIFORNIA D4612 510 2089700 FAX 510208 9711 WWW ACGOV.ORG/GSAS

January 3, 2018

TO: . Michael Tree, Executive Director, Livermore Amador Valley Transit Authority
FROM: Willie A. Hopkihs, Jr., Director, Alameda County, General Services
SUBJECT: PROPOSED DUBLIN PARKING GARAGE PARTNERSHIP

This memo provides an overview of the need for a parking garage on a 2.46-acte parcel of Alameda
County-owned land, adjacent to the Dublin Bay Area Rapid Transit (BART) Station, how this
project would be of benefit to the region, and why Livermore Amador Valley Transit Authority
(LLAVTA) should support Alameda County’s apphcatlon to the 2018 Transit and Intercity Rail
Capital Program.

Bay Area residents are experiencing increasingly worse traffic congestion. The Metropolitan
Transportation Commission (MTC) recently found that traffic congestion has increased 80% since
2010, with 5 of the top most congested freeways occurring in Alameda County. Furthermore,
commuters that are seeking to utilize transit are often denied due to lack of parking. BART
estimates that the Dublin BART station is completely full by 7:30 AM daily. Providing additional
parking at transit connections will allow more commuters to transition to transit and reduce overall
vehicle miles traveled.

The proposed $34 million project will add much-needed parking for 398 vehicles in a critical
transit center that includes BART, County Connection, Max BART Express, San Joaquin RTD,
Stanislaus Regional Transit, and Wheels (LAVTA). The proposed partnership project between
Alameda County and LAVTA builds upon prior efforts from BART to expand parking at transit
stations and continues the trend to alleviate congestion and encourage increased utilization of
transit.

This proposal is a future-thinking project that incorporates new and still developing technology to
reduce greenhouse gas emissions. The garage is designed to accommodate the rise of autonomous
vehicles and the resulting decrease in parking demand with design features that allow for the
transformation of the building to office or other commercial space instead of a complete
demolition. The garage will also include electric vehicle charging stations and preferred parking
to vanpools to further maximize utilization.

The proposed project is well-qualified for the Transit and Intercity Rail Capital Program by
reducing vehicle miles traveled through increasing ridership of existing systems and prov1de an
excellent opportunity for our two agencws to work together to provide improved services to our
residents.

Please contact me if you have any additional questions or comments.



Attachment 2: BART Parking at JC Penney Plaza Shopping Center



THE CITY OF

e P mpapyve

February 2, 2018

Rachel Factor

Senior Planner .

‘San Francisco Bay.Area Rapid Transit District
300 Lakeside Drive, 21" Floor

Qakland, CA.94604-2688%

Subject:  BART Parking at.JC Penncy Plaza Shopping Center

Dear Rachel:

Thank you for your patience while we’ve.looked into your inquiry about tilizing some.of the parking af
the Regency Center/Pleasanton Plaza Shopping Center (“Regency Center”, alsa known as the JC Penney
Plaza). 'We appreciate you sharing the Transpoitation Analysis and-Parking Study for the Hybirid
Parking Strategy prepated by Urban Planning Partners/TJEM.

West Pleasanton ,

The Regency Cetiter is zoned Regional Commereial-Periphery (C-R(P)) District. The Pleasanton
Municipal Code does'not allow parking in this Zoning district to be leased or rénted to another property
owner or use; even if the City detefrines there is excess parkin g. Further; based on a review of the.
shopping cenfer’s permitted uses and required parking raties, staff does not find theré to. ‘be-a sutplus of
parking at the shopping center. Therefore; the City is unable to support BART”s praposal to lease
parking at this site.

In addition to the Zoning gonflict, the proposed ,Io,,ca'tiqn_ is nearly 4 half mile from the BART station. The
City does-not believe that the. Regeney rémbote lot would serve the needs of the BART riders or

Stoneridge Mall and BART passengers would coritinue to use the Mall parking lot as a closer
alternative.

East Pleasanton , '

The City is supportive-of a pilot study to determine if atteridant parking is 4 viable solution. We are
'unaware and the study did not identify any similar attendant parking implementations-where the patrons.
drrive in concentrated nuinbers. This may. extend waif times fof both the drop off-and pick up of vehicles
which may ultimately make the attendant solution unsuccessfiul.

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT P. O, BOX 5.230 ~ 200 Cld Bernal Avenue

www.Cityofpleasantonea, gov Pleasantori, CA 94566-0802
“Planning Building & Safety Code Eriforcement Permit Center Traffic Engineering

{925) 315600 {925Y 931-3300 1925Y931-5620 {925) 931.5630 925Y931-5677

Faxi 931-5483 Fax: 931.5478 Fak: 931-5478 Fax: 934-5478 Fax: 931-5487



Rachel Factor, San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit Distriot
February 2, 2018 :
Pag__e_ Two

Although the City-is encouraged by the pursuit of alternate solutions, the Dublin. Garage Expansion is
the preferred solution. '

If you have any questions regardmg the aforementmneci please do not hesitate to contact me at
925-931-5614 or § beauding leasat .

Sincerely,

Gerry Beaudm.v
Director of Commumty Development

c: Mlke Tassano, City Traffic Engineer
Ellen Clark, Planning Manager





=k

: How are we doing?

Quarterly Service Performance Review
Second Quarter, FY 2018
October - December, 2017

Operations & Safety Committee
February 22, 2018










SUMMARY CHART 2nd QUARTER FY 2018

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS CURRENT QUARTER PRIOR QTR ACTUALS YEARTO DATE
LAST THIS QTR
ACTUAL | STANDARD STATUS QUARTER LAST YEAR ACTUAL STANDARD STATUS

Average Ridership - Weekday 426,492 439,970 NOTMET | | 419,978 425,944 421,626 431,229 NOT MET
Customers on Time

Peak 89.36% 95.00%| NOT MET - 86.95% 87.53% 88.16% 95.00%| NOT MET

Daily 91.75% 95.00%| NOT MET 90.04% 90.09% 90.89% 95.00%| NOT MET
Trains on Time :

Peak 84.07% N/A N/A 79.68% 82.28% 81.88% N/A N/A

Daily 86.13% 92.00%| NOT MET - 83.14% 84.66% 84.63% 92.0%| NOT MET
Peak Period Transbay Car Throughput |

AM Peak 95.05% 97.50% NOTMET | | 96.68% 98.57% 95.87% 97.50%| NOT MET

PM Peak 95.27% 97.50%| NOTMET [ | 95.38% 99.16% 95.33% 97.50%| NOT MET
Car Availability at 4 AM (0400) 590 595| NOT MET 575 592 582 595| NOT MET
Mean Time Between Service Delays 4,627 4,000 MET 3,810 5,322 4,178 4,000 MET
Elevators in Service | ] | ]

Station 98.73% 98.00% MET 98.10% 98.23% 98.42% 98.00% MET

Garage 98.53% 98.00% MET 96.40% 95.63% 97.47% 98.00%| NOT MET -
Escalators in Service | |

Street 91.67% 95.00%| NOTMET [ | 92.10% 92.27% 91.88% 95.00%| NOTMET [ |

Platform 95.80% 96.00% NOT MET - 96.50% 96.83% 96.15% 96.00% MET
Autom atic Fare Collection | |

Gates 99.56% 99.00% MET 99.51% 99.07% 99.53% 99.00% MET

Vendors 95.84% 95.00% MET 95.79% 95.68% 95.82% 95.00% MET
Wayside Train Control System 1.49 1.00| NOT MET 2.00 1.92 1.75 1.00 NOT MET
Computer Control System 0.10 0.08] NOT MET 0.063 0.157 0.080 0.08 MET
Traction Power 0.12 0.20 MET 0.11 0.46 0.12 0.20 MET
Track 0.10 0.30 MET 0.13 0.13 0.12 0.30 MET
Transportation 0.41 0.50 MET 0.69 0.42 0.55 0.50] NOT MET
Environment Outside Stations 2.64 2.80] NOT MET 2.62 2.75 2.63 2.80] NOT MET
Environment Inside Stations 2.53 3.00] NOT MET 2.52 2.63 2.52 3.00] NOT MET
Station Vandalism 2.88 3.19| NOT MET 2.90 2.98 2.89 3.19| NOT MET
Station Services 2.84 3.06| NOT MET 2.86 2.88 2.85 3.06| NOT MET
Train P.A. Announcements 3.09 3.17| NOT MET - 3.06 3.10 3.08 3.17] NOT MET
Train Exterior Appearance 2.79 3.00] NOT MET 2.78 2.83 2.79 3.00f NOT MET
Train Interior Appearance 2.80 3.00] NOT MET 2.85 2.89 2.82 3.00f NOT MET
Train Temperature 3.10 312 NOTMET | | 3.06 3.11 3.08 3.12| NOT MET
Customer Complaints [

Complaints per 100,000 Passenger Trips 6.84 5.07| NOT MET 7.74 6.53 7.29 5.07 NOT MET
Safety .

Station Incidents/Million Patrons 1.68 5.50 MET 1.56 2.11 1.62 5.50 MET

Vehicle Incidents/Million Patrons 0.47 1.30 MET 0.62 0.26 0.55 1.30 MET

Lost Time Injuries/llinesses/Per OSHA 7.66 750 NoTwmET | | 7.24 6.56 7.24 7.50 MET

OSHA-Recordable Injuries/llinesses/Per OSHA 11.07 13.30 MET 12.99 10.80 12.99 13.30 MET

Unscheduled Door Openings/Million Car Miles 0.100 0.300 MET 0.050 0.110 0.075 0.300 MET

Rule Violations Summary/Million Car Miles 0.210 0.500 MET 0.150 0.110 0.180 0.500 MET
Police .

BART Police Presence 11% 11.9% NOT MET 11% 11% 11% 11.9%| NOT MET

Quality of Life per million riders 67.79 N/A N/A | 99.45 60.08 83.62 N/A N/A

Crimes Against Persons per million riders 3.49 2.00] NOT MET 3.15 2.24 3.32 2.00{ NOT MET

Auto Burglaries per 1,000 parking spaces 6.70 8.00 MET 6.26 4.33 6.48 8.00 MET

Auto Thefts per 1,000 parking spaces 2.29 6.00 MET 2.04 2.56 2.17 6.00 MET

Police Response Time per Emergency Incident (Minutes) 5.18 500 NOTMET | | 5.30 6.29 5.24 5.00f NOT MET

Bike Thefts (Quarterly Total and YTD Quarterly Average) 88 150.00 MET 125 109 107 150.00

L EGEND:

Goal met

Goal not met but within 5%

Goal not met by more than 5











‘Howare we doing? []  FY'18 Second Quarter Overview

Ridership decline continues at about same levels as last quarter,
weekends worse

Continued gains in train service reliability, Ops and BPD working
together to improve further

Equipment Reliability: Car, Track and Traction Power met; Computer
Control System and Train Control not met

Equipment Availability: Elevators (Station and Garage), Ticket
Machines and Fare Gates met; Escalators (Platform and Street) and
Cars not met

Passenger Environment: 2 of 4 Station indicators improved, none met
goal; 3 of 4 Train indicators improved, none met goal

Complaints decreased





LLE ISZSEEiniiE g%
Howarewe doing? [(] - CUStOMer Ridership
480,000
470,000
" 460,000
= 450,000 ~
- 440,000 AN [ —\
g 430,000 \ \\// \ \ —o— Results
& 420,000 ’\0\’/*’_”%/0\*
= 410,000 AN
o >~ ¢ \\ e G 0al
g 400,000
% 390,000 \

380,000
370,000

Total

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apri May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

ridership decreased by 3.4% compared to same quarter last year

v" Average weekday ridership (414,093) down 2.8% from same
quarter last year

v" Core weekday ridership down by 2.7% from same quarter last year
v SFO Extension weekday ridership down by 3.8% from same quarter

last year
v" Saturday and Sunday down by 9.0% and 9.4%, respectively, over
same quarter last year






: How are we doing?

100%0

B
£
8 90% —+— | T
o T
g 505 C—Results
E — Goal
D
n
[¢B]
e 70% -
=
<
o
60206
Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec
v' 91.8%, 95.00% goal not met, up 1.7% from prior quarter
v Delay events causing the most late trains:
1 4-Dec-17 |W. Oakland MUX (Recurring Failures) Equip [130
2 [16-Dec-17 [Powell Train Struck A Patron On Trackway People (109
3 |12-Dec-17 [T-Bay Tube Brake \ehicle |86
4 [16-Nov-17 |Systemwide \Weather (Wet Tracks) \Weather (83
5 [14-Oct-17 [24th Street Person on Trackway and Under Train People [72
6 [31-Oct-17 |Hayward FOTF (OOS Train Stopped/No Movement \Vehicle [52
7 [9-Nov-17 [H.Yd. I-lk SLd [False Occupancy (Routing Impaired) Equip [48
8 [24-Oct-17 |Balboa Park MUX (Blown Fuse/Replaced) Equip |41
9 [18-Oct-17 |H.Yd. I-lk SLd |Routing (VHLC Logic Controller/PC Board) Equip |41
10 [11-Oct-17 |SBr. I-Lk (N) [ICS/Net.Com/BART.Net Comm Link Failures) |Equip |40






: How are we doing?

On-Time Service - Train

100%0

90%0

80%o

70%

60206

[ Results

— G oal

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb MarAprilMayduneJduly AugSept Oct Nov Dec

v' 86.1%, 92.00% goal not met; up 3.0% from prior quarter
v 45.5% of late trains were late due to multiple small delays, each under 5 minutes
v’ Categorization of late trains due to a known delay event of 5 minutes or greater:

POLICE ACTIONS
TRAIN CONTROL

RAIL CAR

MULTIPLE CAUSE
VANDALISM

MEDICAL EMERGENCY
PERSON ON TRACKWAY
OPERATIONS

TRAIN STRUCK PATRON
WEATHER

22.1% of delayed trains
16.1% of delayed trains
12.6% of delayed trains
7.3% of delayed trains
6.1% of delayed trains
4.9% of delayed trains
4.6% of delayed trains
4.4% of delayed trains
3.1% of delayed trains
2.3% of delayed trains






:Howare we doing? [ \NVayslde Train Control System

Includes False Occupancy & Routing, Delays Per 100 Train Runs

C—Results

2.5
\ — Goal
2.0 A

1:5 | | \— T~

7\

Delayed Trains per 100 Train Trips
0]
o]

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

v Goal not met but better than previous quarter — Actual 1.49 / Goal 1.00

v The improvement can be attributed to the restructuring of the staffing plan. A
complete rebid in early October allowed for greater focus on PM and repairs
during the grave shift. Compliance percentages have increased and reliability of
assets are showing improvement as a result.





-Howare we doing? [(] - Computer Control System

Delayed Trains per 100 Train Trips

1.0
0.9
0.8
0.7
0.6
0.5
0.4
0.3
0.2
0.1
0.0

Includes ICS computer & SORS, Delays per 100 train runs

/ 1\

=) Results

e (G 0al

/ |\ A

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

v" Goal not met — Actual 0.1 / Goal 0.08

v October delay caused by faulty power supply on Net.com at San
Bruno.






: How are we doing? :[ TraCtI on POWGr

Includes Coverboards, Insulators,
Third Rail Trips, Substations,
Delays Per 100 Train Runs

[%2]

=2 25

LS.

|_

=

© 2.0

|_

o

=)

— 1.5

o

o CJResults
& 1.0 —Gaoal
8

|_

b 0.5 1

=)

© 0.0 ] S s (N

o Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April MayJune July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

v" Goal met — Actual .12 / Goal .2

v' Platform insulator replacement scheduled for late April 2018 at
Balboa Park

10





Delayed Trains per 100 Train Trips

: How are we doing? :[ Transportatl on

Includes Late Dispatches, Controller-Train
Operator-Tower Procedures and Other
Operational Delays Per 100 Train Runs

v" Goal met — Actual .41/ Goal .5

11






: How are we doing? :[ TraCk

Includes Rail, Track Tie,
Misalignment, Switch,
Delays Per 100 Train Runs

(72} 3.0

Q.

=

}_

c 2.5

.§ R It
esults

l_ 2.0

o .

8 — G oal

T 1.5

o

(72]

= 1.0

©

—

}_

B

>

5 T T~

Ty 0.0 u u u u f ¥ t t F t

D Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

v" Goal met — Actual .10 / Goal .30

12





Howarewe doing? [0 Car Equipment - Reliability

—_
D

>

o 7500

5 7000

wn

= 6500

©

| 6000

@

O 5500 A

> \

- 5000 \ JResults
(0p]

D

= 4000

o

<5

m 3500 A

[<b}

= 3000 -

|_

c 2500 .

8 Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec
=

v" Goal met —- MTBSD 4,627 hours / Goal 4,000 hours

13





:Howarewe doing? [  CQr Equipment —
Avallability @ 0400 hours

625
600
\\
wn 575 - \/ ﬁ/\v/
n —— ——
(40
@) 550 -
(V-
o 525 -
E CJResults
o 500 -
> 475 -
= Goal

Z

450 -

425 -

400

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Aprii May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov  Dec

v" Goal not met — 590 Actual vs. 595 Required

v" 40 cars out of service due to damaged collector shoes. Mainline incident on
Dec. 4t

v" 4 accident cars (3 coupler damage), 6 Berryessa test cars

14





: How are we doing?

i Elevator Availability - Stations
100%b
— [~ [~ _
L — 1 —u0—] —~
/
95% 4 — |
C—Active
= Goal
90% - — All
85% -
80%
Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

v" Goal 98%. Goal met — Actual 98.7%

v' Seeking contractor support to perform door replacements
on several Elev during 3™ /4t Qtr.

15





-Howarewe doing? [ Elevator Avallability - Garage

100%%0

/‘\ V‘éz

959« —7’
(o] —
90% - \ I Results

e G oal

85%0 A

80%0
Oct NovDec Jan Feb MarApriMaydJuneJduly AugSeptOct NovDec

v Goal 98%. Goal met - Actual 98.5%
v" Pleasant Hill Garage Renovation Set to Begin early Feb.

16





Howarewe doing [ ESCAlAtOr Avalilability - Street

100%06

——\ — —
209%6 - [ — ~——

—Results

— Goal
80%06 -

— Weighted
\ Availability

70%0

60%0

Oct  Nov Dec  Jan Feb Mar April May June  Ju Iy Aug Sept Oct  Nov  Dec

v Goal 95%. Goal not met - Actual 91.7%
v 3 major repairs (2 Bullgears / 1 Chain Job)
v’ Extended outage at WWarm Springs on unit under warranty
v' O&K Controller Replacement Project
» First two completed
« One in progress (16 Street), projected completion 4/18
v 6 Addt’l Chain Jobs required in 2018

17





Howarewe domg [ ESCalator Availability - Platform

100206

90%06 -~

— Results

— GO al

O, —
80% — Weighted

Availability

70%0 -

602%
Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

Goal 96%. Goal not met - Actual 95.8%

Civic Center (P3) machine shop took an excessive amount of time on the
bullgear

v" Balboa Park (P2) unique “one of a kind” Fujitec unit, required contractor
support

Civic Center (P1) currently undergoing a major repair

Montgomery (P3) next downtown chain replacement

8 Addt’l chain jobs required in 2018 (4 are downtown Platforms)

AN

A NEANERN

18





: How are we doing?

]

AFC Gate Availability

100%
90%
I Results
80% 1
e G 0al
70% 1
60%
Oct Nov  Dec Jan Feb Mar  Aprii  May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov  Dec

v" Goal met - Actual 99.6% / Goal 99.0%

19





novareweaoms [ AFC Vendor Availability

100%

90% -

80% - 1 Results

e (5 0al

70% A

60%
Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apri May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

v Goal met - Actual 95.8% / Goal 95.0%
v" Parking Validation Machines Availability — 99.8%
v Added minimum of 2 Clipper Vendor Machines per station

20





-Howarewe doing? [] ENVIronment - Outside Stations

Ratings guide:
4 = Excellent
3 = Good
2.80 = Goal

2 = Only Fair
1 = Poor

I Results

275 2.73 2.76 262 2./64a
—Goal
2
1 .
FYy 2017 Fvy 2017 Fvy 2017 Fvyzo01s8 Fyzo0l1s8
Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4 Qtr 1 Qtr 2

Composite rating of:
Walkways & Entry Plaza Cleanliness (50%) 2.52
BART Parking Lot Cleanliness (25%) 2.85
Appearance of BART Landscaping (25%) 2.671

v" Goal not met,

v" Cleanliness ratings of either Excellent or
Good:

Walkways/Entry Plazas: 53.7%
Parking Lots: 70.2%
Landscaping Appearance: 61.9%

Lindicates a statistically significant decrease from the prior quarter

21





Howarewedoimgz [0 ENVIFONMeNt - Inside Stations

4
Ratings guide:
4 = Excellent
3 =Good s 1 Results
3.00 = Goal =
2 = Only Fair . Giee 2|62 53 453 Goal
1 =Poor
2 .
1
FY2017 Qtr 2 FY2017 Qtr 3 FY2017 Qtr 4 FY2018 Qtr 1 FY2018 Qtr 2
Composite rating for Cleanliness of:
Station Platform (60%) 2.66
Other Station Areas (20%) 2.48
Restrooms (10%) 2.04
Elevator Cleanliness (10%) 2.30

v" Goal not met

v" Cleanliness ratings of either Excellent or Good:
Station Platform: 63.1%: Other Station Areas: 53.4%
Restrooms: 34.7% Elevators: 46.7%

Lindicates a statistically significant decrease from the prior quarter

22





: How are we doing? :[ Station Vandalism

a
Ratings guide:
4 = Excellent 5
3.19 = Goal C—Results
3=Good 2los 2.03 2los 2|90 2lss
2 = Only Fair
1 = Poor ol

2

a1

FY2017 OQtr 2 FY2017 OQtr 3 FY2017 OQtr 4 FY2018 OQOtr 1 FY2018 OQtr 2

Station Kept Free of Graffiti

v" Goal not met

v’ 73.4% of those surveyed ranked this category as
either Excellent or Good

23





: How are we doing?

Y1 Station Services

Ratings guide:

4 = Excellent
3.06 = Goal
3 = Good

2 = Only Fair
1 = Poor

88

i

I Results

—_— G oal

FY2017 Otr 2

FY2017 OQOtr 3 FY2017 Otr 4 FY2018 OQtr 1

Composite rating of:
Station Agent Availability (65%) 2.80
Brochures Availability (35%) 2.90

v" Goal not met

v" Availability ratings of either Excellent or Good:
Station Agents: 70.1%
Brochures: 73.7%

24

FY2018 Otr 2






Howarewe doing? [ | raln P.A. Announcements

4 = Excellent
3.17 = Goal
3 = Good

2 = Only Fair
1 = Poor

Ratings guide:

3{10

3J09

3(06

3|09

FY2017 OQtr 2

FY2017 OQtr 3

FY2017 OQtr 4

FY2018 Otr 1

— Results

FY2018 Otr 2

Composite rating of:

P.A. Arrival Announcements (33%)
P.A. Transfer Announcements (33%)

P.A. Destination Announcements (33%)

3.06
3.03
3.18

v" Goal not met

v Announcement ratings of either Excellent or Good:

Arrivals:
Transfers:

78.7%
76.3%
Destinations: 84.0%

25






: How are we doing? :[ Train EXteriOr Appearance

4

Ratings guide:
4 = Excellent 3
3.00 = Goal CResults
3 =Good
2 = Only Fair 2.83 2.82 279 2|78 2|79
1 =Poor —Goal

2

1

FY2017 Qtr 2 FY2017 Qtr 3 FY2017 Qtr 4 FY2018 Qtr 1 FY2018 Qtr 2

v'Goal not met
v'70.7% of those surveyed ranked this category as either Excellent or Good

26





Howarewedomg [T TraiN Interior Cleanliness

Ratings guide:

4 = Excellent c——Results
3 = Good 2lso 2.86 . 2]so
3.00 = Goal

2 = Only Fair
1 =Poor

— G oal
>

i
FY2017 Qtr 2 FY2017 Qtr 3 FY2017 Qtr 4

Fyz2018 Qtr 1 FYy2018 Qtr 2

Composite rating of:
Train interior cleanliness (60%) 2.521¢
Train interior kept free of graffiti (40%) 3.22 !

v" Goal not met
v" Train Interior ratings of either Excellent or Good:
Train Interior Cleanliness: 54.5%: Graffiti-free: 87.3%

| indicates a statistically significant decrease from the prior quarter

27





: How are we doing? ||

Train Temperature

4

Ratings guide: 3 4 — Results
4 = Excellent
3.12 = Goal 311 3.13 311 3]06 {10
3= Good
2 = Only Fair — G oal
1 =Poor

2 -

1

FY2017 Qtr FY2017 Qtr FY2017 Qtr FY2018 Qtr FY2018 Qtr
2 3 4 1 2

Comfortable Temperature Onboard Train

v" Goal not met

v’ 83.2 % of those surveyed rated this category as either
Excellent or Good

28






Howarewe doing? [ CUStOMer Complaints

Complaints Per 100,000 Customers

14
L, 12
§ 10
& A~ AT 77—
3 8 v/
O I
S 6 \/ T
o
s 4
—
5 77

0

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

C—Results

e G 0al

v" Total complaints lodged this period decreased 346 (14.5%) from last quarter, up 24

(1.2%) when compared with the second quarter FY17.

v Complaint numbers increased in the categories of Announcements, AFC, M&E,
Parking, Passenger Information, and Train Cleanliness while decreases appear in

Bike Program, Personnel, Police Services, Policies, Quality of Life, Service,
Station Cleanliness and Trains.

v “Compliments” show an increase with 112, up from 96 last quarter (one year ago

these numbered 86).

29






: How are we doing? :[

Station Incidents/Million Patrons

Patron Safety:
Station Incidents per Million Patrons

10
9
8
7
1 Results
6
5
= Benchmark
4
3
2 -
1 .
0
FY2017 Qtr 2 FY2017 Qtr 3 FY2017 Qtr 4 FY2018 Qtr 1 FY2018 Qtr 2
v" Goal met

30





: How are we doing? ||

Vehicle Incidents/Million Patrons

Patron Safety

Vehicle Incidents per Million Patrons

4
3
1 Results
2
e Benchmark
1
— |
0
FY2017 Qtr2 FY2017 Qtr3 FY2017 Qtr4 FY2018 Qtr1 FY2018 Qtr2
v' Goal met

31






: How are we doing? || Employee Safety

Lost Time Injuries/Iliness per OSHA rate

Lost Time Injuries/llIinesses
per OSHA Incidence Rate

14
(0] — R
— —(
e Benchmark
a4
(0]
FY2017 Qtr2 = FY2017 Qtr3 = FY2017 Qtr4 = FY2018 Qtrl1  FY2018 Qtr

v Goal no met

32





Howmewedong [ EMployee Safety:
OSHA-Recordable Injuries/llinesses
per OSHA Incidence Rate

sssssss

Q 24

@

-

T 20

(7p]

(@)

)

B 16

(,) —
173}

[«B}

[

= 12 R
= —_—
I8}

2

f — N

5 8

r—

[

2 4 1

o)

[3+]

o

S

(@] o }

S FY2017 Qtr 2 FY2017 Qtr 3 FY2017 Qtr Y Q Y Q
x

I

(7p]

O

v Goal met

33






Howareweaong [ Operating Safety:
Unscheduled Door Openings per Million Car Miles

1.000
%)
2
- 0.900
=
f —
[+ 0.800
O
S 0.700
g 0.600 C— Results
~—
%)
g 0.500
= — Benchmark
[«B]
=3 0.400
(@)
5 0.300
o
[ 0.200 -
°
D
=] 0.100 A
© V
[«B]
% 0.000 t
8 FY2017 Qtr 2 FY2017 Qtr 3 FY2017 OQtr 4 FY2018 Qtr 1 FY2018 OQtr 2
D

34





: How are we

wimg: [ Operating Safety:

Rule Violations per Million Car Miles

15
D
=
<
O
c 1.0
2 C— Results
=
5]
= e Benchmark
_E 0.5 =~ mmm—
<
=]
>
@
>
@
0.0 1 1 t
FY2017 Otr 2 FY2017 Otr 3 FY2017 Otr 4 FY2018 Otr 1 FY2018 Otr 2
v" Goal met

35






-Howarewedoing? [ BART Police Presence

20%

[ Results

e Goal (11.9% Avg.)

10.8% 10.5%
9.6%
0%
FY2017 Qtr 2 FY2017 Qtr 3 FY2017 Qtr 4 FY2018 Qtr 1
v" Goal not met
Police seen on train 5.0%
Police seen outside the station 13.9%
Police seen in the station 11.2%
Police seen on train after 7:00PM 6.2%
Police seen outside the station after 7:00PM | 14.7%
Police seen in the station after 7:00PM 11.8%

36

FY2018 Qtr 2





: How are we doing? :l Quality Of Life*

Crimes per Million Trips

250

200

150

O Results
100

—

o
FY2017 Qtr 2 FY2017 Qtr 3 FY2017 Qtr 4 FY2018 OQOtr 1 FY2018 Qtr 2

v Quality of Life incidents are down from the last quarter but up
from the corresponding quarter of the prior fiscal year.

*Quality of Life Violations include: Disturbing the Peace, Vagrancy, Public Urination,
Fare Evasion, Loud Music/Radios, Smoking, Eating/Drinking and Expectoration

37





:Howare we doing? [ Crimes Against Persons
(Homicide, Rape, Robbery, and Aggravated Assault)

4
/\/
(7]
(@ 3
=
l_ ——JResults
c
o >
— - Goal
e 1
(b}
o
(7]
(b}
& o
': FY2017 Qtr 2 FY2017 Qtr 3 FY2017 Qtr 4 FY2018 Qtr 1 FY2018 OQtr 2

v" Goal not met

v Crimes against persons are up from the last quarter and up from the
corresponding quarter of the prior fiscal year.

38





: How are we doing? :[ Auto B u rg I ary

12
0
D
(@]
S
%) 10
<3
— R It
% esults
< 8
o
o
o
8 6 —Goal
S
(¢B]
o
o I———
<) 4
&
=
O

2

(0}

FY2017 Qtr 2 FY2017 Qtr 3 FY2017 Qtr 4 FY2018 Qtr 1 FY2018 Qtr 2
v' Goal met

v The number of incidents per thousand parking spaces are unchanged from
last quarter and up from the corresponding quarter of the prior fiscal year.

39





: How are we doing? :[ Auto Theft

(7p]
(¢} 12
(&)
©
&

10
(@)
o=
E C—IResults
= 8
]
o
S
o (53 — Goal
—
—
()
o a4
(7p]
()
= -_— ]
-: 2 —
O

o T

FY2017 OQtr 2 FY2017 OQtr 3 FY2017 OQtr 4 FY2018 OQtr 1 FY2018 OQtr 2

v The number of incidents per thousand parking spaces are up from last
quarter and down from the corresponding quarter of the prior fiscal year.

40





Howarewe doing? [ AVErage Emergency Response Time

10
o)
(%)
Q
5 8
=
E C—Result
(e 6 S
<
GE) — Goal
=
D
n
S
S 2
7))
D
(e

@)
FY2017 FY2017 FY2017 FY2018 FY2018
Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4 Qtr 1 Qtr 2

v The average Emergency Response Time goal was not met for the quarter
but improved from the prior quarter and down from the corresponding
quarter of the prior fiscal year.

41





novareveaoms [ Bike Theft

300

250

200 — Results

150

100 -
—Goal

50

Total Quarterly Bike Thefts

O
FY2017 FY2017 FY2017 FY2018 FY2018

Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4 Qtr 1 Qtr 2

v' Goal met
v" 88 bike thefts for current quarter, down 37 from last quarter.

42





		Quarterly Service Performance Review�Second Quarter, FY 2018�October - December, 2017

		Slide Number 2

		Slide Number 3

		Slide Number 4

		Slide Number 5

		Customer Ridership

		Slide Number 7

		Slide Number 8

		Wayside Train Control System

		Computer Control System

		Traction Power 

		Transportation

		Track

		Car Equipment - Reliability

		Car Equipment – �Availability @ 0400 hours

		Elevator Availability - Stations

		Elevator Availability - Garage

		Escalator Availability - Street

		Escalator Availability - Platform

		AFC Gate Availability

		AFC Vendor Availability

		Slide Number 22

		Environment - Inside Stations

		Station Vandalism

		Station Services

		Train P.A. Announcements

		Train Exterior Appearance

		Train Interior Cleanliness

		Train Temperature

		Customer Complaints

		Slide Number 31

		Slide Number 32

		Slide Number 33

		Slide Number 34

		Operating Safety:�Unscheduled Door Openings per Million Car Miles

		Operating Safety:�Rule Violations per Million Car Miles

		BART Police Presence

		Slide Number 38

		Slide Number 39

		Slide Number 40

		Slide Number 41

		Average Emergency Response Time

		Slide Number 43




i
Dublin/Pleasanton BART

Hybrid Access/Parking Program Update

BART Board Meeting
February 22, 2018





| Timeline for Dublin/Pleasanton Hybrid

Parking/Access

Dec 2016 Feb 2017 June 2017 July 2017 February 2018

Action ltem: Informational Item:
Adopt Addendum to - Hybrid overview/status
the DTC EIR Phase 2 (Shared Parking and
Garage Deferred Board voted to Automated Parking)
Informational (Capital Cost: $34.3 M) action on D/P advance _ CEQA update
ltem: Board Direction: Access Hybrid - Funding update
Addendum to Multimodal Access Alternatives Strategy - Iron Horse Trail update
DTC EIR Phase Alternatives Analysis: Analysis for (Capital Cost: - County garage proposal
2 Garage More cost-effective, continued $17.2 M) (Capital Cost: $26.3 M)
faster, more flexibility Outreach

February 22, 2018 BART Board Meeting 2





Is: nnlr Dublin/Pleasanton Hybrid Parking Phasing

Plan (July 27, 2017 Board Meeting)

e

Reconfigure (55)
Shared parking (155)
Attendant Assist (340)
Automated (0)

Total = 540+

rm

Reconfigure (55)
Shared parking (155)
Attendant Assist (280)

= @ [ i

Automated (60)
Total = 540+

.

Reconfigure (55)
Shared parking (155)

Attendant Assist (0)

=4 [l [

Automated (340)
Total = 540+

Hybrid Max (TBD)

Reconfigure (55)

Shared parking (155)

Attendant Assist (0)

=0 0 0

Automated (545)

Total = 755

Annual result*:; -$170,000
Capital cost: $1.5 million
Annual O&M cost: $1.5

Annual result*: -$160,000
Capital cost: $4.3 million
Annual O&M cost: $1.3

Annual result*: +$15,000
Capital cost: $17.2 million
Annual O&M cost: $555,000

million million
Implementation time: 1-2 yrs Implementation time: 2-3 yrs Implementation time: 3-4 yrs
~ — N — ~ —

Annual result*: -560,000
Capital cost: $26.5 million
Annual O&M cost: $630,000

Implementation time: 4-5 yrs

* Annual result =

N— _

Total Annual Revenue (Parking & Fare) - Total Annual Parking costs (Annualized Capital Cost & O&M & Capitalized Maintenance)

February 22, 2018

BART Board Meeting





ba Dublin/Pleasanton Station —
Hybrid Parking Strategies (1 of 2)

=== Attendant B 24T A I
: —. ASS|St (260) O Mamne\\\Wa‘i ’

%.{3‘

; @) City Of.~

!Corporatl

- - d

. " i 5
~ 4 . =i = 5 "
T o . — — 2= e , - A .

— g " e -

Reconfiguration

N —I2

. | s

/Iercedes Befiz &7 :
of‘PIeasanton ' > b9
4 é i1 8

\O\ AN -'f ke o b B o

\%}\ / Qwens|Dr s =
e MO .ﬂ.kx",.“‘, _ ST s






tn Dublin/Pleasanton Station —
Hybrid Parking Strategies (2 of 2)

Automated
Parklng (340)

Ol

\1\.

v I e
: » OWens Dr,
——— 9
& "";._-5 y L

! el






R West Dublin/Pleasanton Station —

. p
- Dubhn‘Hent‘a‘g‘é“'

Park & Museums

hUHNBreedMnEWY,

T -
. . )

Igf X L
St A Ay
Residence Inn by

_Ma;ruon Pleasanton

IMalllinlPleasanton

Hybrid Parking Strategies

Assist (80)

\'
- Stoneridge gy &\
Corporate Commons ¥’

-—

=4
=%

toneridgefi@

-

s datea proposed
shared spaces)

e
yHg‘[_ne) Store @0 Y S
i e \gw

o E

-

i
W KaisenPern

E
REleasantoniMedic

N\

™.
N





A Hybrid Approach — Overview:
tx:l Y PP

Shared Parking

1. Feedback from Pleasanton on Shared Parking at Regency Center
» Zoned Regional Commercial -Periphery (C-R(P)) District

* Municipal Code does not allow parking in this zoning district to be leased or rented to another property
owner or use, even if the City determines there is excess parking.

* Based on a review of the shopping center's permitted uses and required parking ratios, staff does not find
there to be a surplus of parking at the shopping center.

2. Parking turnover, usage survey *

* Inthe proposed shared parking area, survey findings show a maximum occupancy of <5% (14/292 spaces) during the
busiest hour of the day (1pm).

W % of spaces occupied W % of spaces available 120.0%

100.0% 100.0% 98.9% 96.8% 100.0% 96.8% 95.7% 95.7% 95.7% 978% 96.8% 96.8% 100.0% 100.0%
.U%

80.0%

60.0%

40.0%

20.0%
0.0% 0.0% 1.1% 3.2% 0.0% 3.2% 4.3% 4.3% 4.3% 2.2% 3.2% 3.2% 0.0%

0.0%
7:00:00 PM 6:00:00 PM 5:00:00 PM 4:00:00 PM 3:00:00 PM 2:00:00 PM 1:00:00 PM 12:00:00 PM 11:00:00 AM 10:00:00 AM 9:00:00 AM 8:00:00 AM 7:00:00 AM

* Source: “Transportation Analysis and Parking Study for Hybrid Parking Strategy Draft Memorandum," prepared for BART (2018 with data from 11/2017).

February 22, 2018 BART Board Meeting 7





T Hybrid Approach — Overview:
tn V4 PP

Automated Parking (1 of 2)

Industry review goals
* Gauge market interest in constructing and operating automated parking for BART
* Refine technology and financial assumptions

* Determine potential for a Public Private Partnership (P3) under the CA
Infrastructure Finance Act (IFA) and possible models

Industry review results

» Capital cost for APS: At least 20% less than the proposed D/P garage expansion
depending on technology.

* Improves service: APS car retrieval time - Less than 5 min vs. > 5 min in traditional
structure.

 Continuous innovation-retrieval waiting-time: developers are seeking to improve the
user experience via apps/on site amenities.

* Improves user’s experience: Safety and security, more user-friendly.

* Eliminates parking payment violations: Resulting in increased revenue.

February 22, 2018 BART Board Meeting 8





T Hybrid Approach — Overview:
tn V4 PP

Automated Parking (2 of 2)

Potential for Public Private Partnership (P3) under Infrastructure Finance Act (IFA)

 DBF+OM structure (to be refined with market input during bidding process)
—BART transfers design, construction and O&M risk to private sector
—BART assumes revenue risk

—Private sector participates in some of the financing (10-20%) to have some
stake in the investment (less risk w/in IFA framework)

—Short payback period: 3-5 years
—O&M contract for 10 years with options to renew

* More traditional P3 structure (DBFOM) for 20-30 years not feasible
—Minimum interest for most investors is $100-S200 million
—Future demand is uncertain (autonomous vehicles, etc.)

—Little control over parking rates and no control over local enforcement
outside BART property

—Limited opportunities for ancillary revenues (development, billboards, etc.)

February 22, 2018 BART Board Meeting 9





% Hybrid Approach — Overview:
Updated results (no shared parking)

Reconfigure (55)
Attendant Assist (350)
Automated (0)

Total = 405

Reconfigure (55) —
Attendant Assist (330) ‘
Automated (100) @
Total = 485

Reconfigure (55) =
Attendant Assist (0) ‘
Automated (485) @
Total = 540

Garage Expansion

Total = 540

Annual result*: -$314,000
Capital cost: $1.2 million

O&M & Capital maintenance
cost/yr: $1.3 million

Implementation time: 1-2 yrs

Annual result*: -$500,000
Capital cost: $9.7 million**

O&M & Capital maintenance
cost/yr: $1.25 million

Implementation time: 2-3 yrs

Annual result*; -$178,000
Capital cost: $26.3 million**

O&M & Capital maintenance
cost/yr: $395,000

Implementation time: 3-4 yrs

Annual result*: -$263,000
Capital cost: $34.3 million***

O&M & Capital maintenance
cost/yr: $536,000

Implementation time: 3-4 yrs

Notes

e Annual result = Total Annual Revenue (Parking & Fare) - Total Annual Parking costs (Annualized Capital Cost & O&M & Capitalized Maintenance)
** Current estimate has increased since the July 2017 Board meeting based on input from Industry Review conducted in December 2017.

*** Capital cost In $2016 whereas updated Automated Parking costs are in $2018.

February 22, 2018

BART Board Meeting

10






tn Cost Comparison of Garage Expansion
to Hybrid Approaches — 30 year period

Net Present Value (NPV) of Total Public Cost *

Hybrid Garage
Parking Expansion

NPV - Capital -$25,370,000 -S32,380,000
NPV — Operating *** -11,790,000 -$11,940,000
NPV - Total -S$37,150,000 -S44,310,000

* Calculations use a 3.5% Discount Rate and 2.2% Inflation Rate
** With phasing automated parking to pilot smaller system
*** 0&M + Capitalized Maintenance costs

February 22, 2018 BART Board Meeting 11





e o | Other Hybrid Access/Parking Updates

e CEQA Addendum with Traffic Memorandum

—Need to update with new shared parklng |nformat|on provided
on February 2, 2018 N A ‘ A

* Funding update 2o
—MTC and ACTC R B

______
v ar an b o i et S

* [ron Horse Trail status -F

—Preliminary designin G =
progress ==

—Contract for detailed - By
design awarded S

—Engaging with internal and external stakeholders (Dublin,
Pleasanton, East Bay Regional Parks District, LAVTA, Alameda
Countymetc )

February 22

BART Board Meeting 12





Alameda County/Livermore-Amador Valley

Transit Authority (LAVTA) - Garage Proposal

Alameda County (AC) pursuing a feasibility
study for a garage adjacent to the D/P BART
station

County to plan and manage construction,
operate, maintain and own garage:

— 398 spaces at $34 M (S85,000/space)

— Potentially convertible to accommodate the
rise of autonomous vehicles and future
uncertainty about parking demand

— Electrical vehicle charging stations
— Preferred parking to vanpools

DUB/EICEZ0I0N e — === -+ On behalf of AC, LAVTA submitted a CalSTA
= =& e ot SB1 Transit and Intercity Rail Capital Program
(TIRCP) application for January 12, 2018
funding deadline.

TIRCP funding decisions by end of April 2018.

February 22, 2018 BART Board Meeting 13





Discussion

February 22, 2018 BART Board Meeting 14





i
Dublin/Pleasanton BART

Hybrid Access/Parking Program Update

BART Board Meeting
February 22, 2018






s Santa Clara County BART Extension:
m O&M Agreement Update

Board of Directors Presentation
February 22, 2018





I:JB i BART-VTA Comprehensive Agreement

2001): Histor

« A contractual approach towards providing BART service to Santa
Clara County was pursued after annexation failed in the 1990s.

« BART County CMAs and State & Federal legislators advocated to
ensure Santa Clara County provided a “fair and equitable” “buy-in” to
cover all Extension O&M and construction costs, along with core
BART system impacts and rehabilitation needs.

* Principles of Agreement including these “buy-in” provisions were
adopted by BART and VTA Boards in March 2001, and the full
Comprehensive Agreement executed in November 2001.

« The 2001 Comprehensive Agreement anticipated the construction in
a single phase of a 6 station, 16 mile Extension of the BART system
into Santa Clara County, but the project was phased into two
segments in the mid-2000s at FTA's direction.

« Santa Clara voters approved 1/8 cent sales tax to fund Extension
O&M costs in November 2008. 2





IJHCRlT Additional Considerations

Source: Email to the Board, February 20, 2018

« An Operations & Maintenance Agreement is needed prior to

the Fall 2018 Opening of the Phase | Extension to Berryessa,
In order to:

» Clarify roles and responsibilities
» Streamline processes

» Precisely identify VTA's obligations to fund BART capital
expenses

 VTA s using the Operations & Maintenance Agreement

negotiations to modify certain Comprehensive Agreement
provisions in a manner which is inconsistent with the

principals included in the 2001 regional accord and the
adopted Agreement





Ongoing Operating and Capital Funding

BART's focus (negotiating with VTA):

VTA will provide dedicated, stable, reliable, ongoing
funding for BART's O&M, capital and Core impact costs.

BART will have direct access to funds, with accountability
for spending.

A Trustee Account holds Santa Clara Measure B Funds.

BART receives a calculated subsidy monthly in advance.

A reserve account will backfill any shortfall in the subsidy
fund.

A mechanism is to be included for funding BART's share of
liability costs.

4





I Relationship Between O&M and

Comprehensive Agreements
Carrying Forward

= VTA has full responsibility for O&M costs and Core System

Impacts, and a proportionate share of Core System capital
Costs.

= VTA must provide stable, ongoing financial support
proportionate to level provided by BART District counties.

= BART will perform O&M according to the standards and
practices used on the Core System.

Changes

= BART responsible for station buildings, operating corridor and
ancillary facilities.

* VTA responsible for the transit centers (intermodal
connections and shared parking facilities). 5





Fundamental Comprehensive

Agreement Concepts

BART is working to ensure the following provisions will be
iIncluded in the O&M Agreement:

= The extension is to be cost-neutral to BART; VTA bears all
costs associated with the operation of the extension.

= Preserve BART's full decision-making authority over
BART's O&M activities.

= Preserve the Parties’ intent that the extension will not
degrade the operation of the Core System nor cause
deterioration of the District’'s ability to maintain BART
standards.

= Preserve the Parties’ intent to provide a BART extension
Into Santa Clara County that for the customer reflects
BART service on the Core System. 6





I 2334 Silicon Valley Santa Clara Extension:

Look-Ahead Schedule

O&M Agreement Phase Il Environmental
Negotiations Approval Process
Continue negotiations of outstandin Conclude Technical Meetings on
February 2018 J 9" | Downtown San Jose Tunneling
terms.
Methodology
Management coordination on final
Continue negotiations of outstanding | tunnel option (early-March)
terms.
March 2018 Start merging individual sections into | VTA staff transmits to Board its
a consolidated draft agreement. memo regarding CEQA certification
including tunneling and station
location recommendations (3/16)
Tentative Board Dates: VTA Board tp certify EIS/EIR and
approve project (4/9)
April 2018 . st : :
. i\ Rr?)sglmg\’ '?;Fgglgoigm BART Board to accept VTA-adopted
PP AP ’ EIS/EIR and approve project (4/26)






